CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

City Council Agenda

Tuesday, June 21, 2022
This meeting will be held in-person at City Hall with no electronic participation.
To attend in-person: There is no need to sign up to attend in-person; if you would like to speak during
audience participation there will be a sign-up sheet in the Council Chambers.
To watch the meeting (no participation):
1) City website – City Meeting Videos
2) City YouTube channel – City of Cherry Hills Village YouTube
5:00 p.m. – 6:30 p.m. - Town Hall – Remote Sellers/Internet Sales Tax Potential Ballot Issue
• Presentations at 5:00pm and 6:00pm (same presentation each time)
6:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting
1.
Call to Order
2.

Roll Call of Members

3.

Pledge of Allegiance

4.

Presentations
a.
Oath of Office – Chief Jason Lyons

5.

Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker)

6.

Reports from City Boards, Commissions and Committees

7.

Consent Agenda
a.
Approval of Minutes – June 7, 2022
b.
2021 Audited Financial Statements
c.
Resolution 13, Series 2022; Approving a Revocable Encroachment License Agreement
Between Adam H. and Adrine S. Writer for the Installation, Construction, and
Maintenance of Certain Improvements on City-Owned Property
d.
Construction Contract for the 2022 Concrete CIP - Essential Contractors

8.

Items Removed From Consent Agenda

9.

Unfinished Business

***Agenda Continues on Second Page***

Notice:

Agenda is subject to change.
If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303-789-2541, 72 hours in
advance.

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

10.

New Business
a.
Public Hearing - Resolution 14, Series 2022; Approving a Floodplain Variance for a New
Accessory Structure at 7 Random Road (Public Hearing)

11.

Reports
a.
Mayor
b.
Members of City Council
c.
City Manager and Staff
(i)
Department Monthly Reports
d.
City Attorney

12.

Adjournment

Notice:

Agenda is subject to change.
If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303-789-2541, 72 hours in
advance.
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Minutes of the
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
Held on Tuesday, June 7, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.
City Hall
The City Council held a study session at 6:00 p.m.
Mayor Russell Stewart called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL
Mayor Russell Stewart, Mayor Pro Tem Katy Brown, Councilors Randy Weil, Al Blum,
Mike Gallagher, and Dan Sheldon were present on roll call. Also present were City
Manager Chris Cramer, Deputy City Manager and Public Works Director Jay Goldie,
Assistant City Attorney Evin King, Police Chief Jason Lyons, Finance Director Doug
Farmen, Planning Manager Paul Workman, Human Resources Manager Kathryn
Ducharme, and City Clerk Laura Gillespie.
Mayor Pro Tem Katy Brown arrived at 6:31 p.m.
Absent: Councilor Afshin Safavi
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Council conducted the pledge of allegiance.
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD
Tory Leviton, 3901 E. Quincy Avenue, announced he was on Jeopardy on June 20th
and would have a watch party at the Wild Corgi.
Kelly Duke, attorney for Lyn Mirage, stated she was in attendance because for years
Ms. Mirage had been in a fight to save her property and what she perceived to be
property for all of Cherry Hills Village; Arapahoe County District Court, that was later
affirmed by the Colorado Court of Appeals, ruled a 1906 plat for the neighborhood of
Union, Holly, Belleview, and Dahlia streets conveyed private easement rights over
streets in that neighborhood rather than a public right-of-way; the Court of Appeals
ruling was contrary to over a century’s worth of history; the City constructed and had
always maintained and controlled the streets within those neighborhoods; including
vacating undeveloped portions of South Fairfax to Union, and other streets like
Chenango; the City did that pursuant to 11-5-20 and 11-5-30 under City Council
authority; before the Court of Appeals decision no other court had held any dedication of
streets by plat or otherwise conveyed private easement rights as opposed to a public
right-of-way; Cherry Hills Village knew this because it was consistent with how Cherry
Hills Village had used, developed, and controlled the streets in Cherry Hills Village since
June 7, 2022
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the City was first formed; with these rulings the Court of Appeals decision had called
into question the validity of the City’s vacation ordinances in Cherry Hills Village and of
any past or future vacation if this decision was left to stand; Ms. Mirage and other
neighbors had been concerned about development throughout Cherry Hills Village for
decades; this loss at the Court of Appeals opened the doors enough to give residents
concern about the validity of their vacation ordinances; property owners who believed
they held their property in fee simple ownership based on these vacations might find out
that the time, money, and investment was wasted because now others had rights to the
property they thought they solely owned; the Court of Appeals decision would
fundamentally change the character of Cherry Hills Village over time from semi-rural to
urban; this is what would happen to Ms. Mirage’s property if and when the neighboring
property owner chose to extend South Fairfax to build a thoroughfare through and
across her property; it would rip down 20-30 year old trees, grass, sprinkler lines, drip
lines; Ms. Mirage’s neighbor told the Court that he needed the additional access in order
to subdivide, which is what this was all about; there was nothing stopping others,
particularly developers, from evaluating this option for other streets to be able to
subdivide larger lots; Ms. Mirage had been fighting this fight for years but could not
continue to be the warrior protecting the neighborhood; she asked Ms. Duke to inform
the City and City Council that there were others, not just her, who were very concerned;
in her final effort Ms. Mirage intended to challenge the ruling in front of the Colorado
Supreme Court; they respectfully requested that the City prepare and file an amicus
brief in support of Ms. Mirage’s position; the amicus filing was due on June 16th; Ms.
Mirage had the support of many neighbors who had signed a petition demanding that
the Council take action; they were in the process of compiling those names and would
make them available to the City; this was the last opportunity to protect the status quo
and the special nature of Cherry Hills Village.
REPORTS FROM CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES
None
CONSENT AGENDA
Mayor Pro Tem Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Weil to approve the following
items on the Consent Agenda:
a.
b.

Approval of Minutes – May 17, 2022
Appointment of the City Treasurer

The motion passed unanimously.
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA
None
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Public Hearing – Council Bill 7, Series 2022; Vacating the City’s Interest in a Portion of
the Crest Road Right-of-Way (second and final reading, Public Hearing, continued from
May 17, 2022)
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie presented the vacation request from the owners of
3 Crest Road, Jordan and Kimberly Lacob, on second and final reading and public
hearing; the proposal had not changed since the April 19, 2022 hearing; at that meeting
a number of questions were raised that Council directed staff to report back on; first was
notification of the property owners of 10 Cherry Lane Drive, the property to the south of
the subject property; the current property owners of 10 Cherry Lane Drive received a
minimum of four separate notifications during the process; in response to Council’s
concerns Mr. Laycob directly contacted the neighbor at 10 Cherry Lane Drive and
received written verification that the property owner had no interest in any portion of the
proposed area of the vacation request; the correspondence was included in Council
packets; second, the configuration of the requested vacation leaving a five-foot strip of
right-of-way between 3 Crest Road and 10 Cherry Lane Drive; staff again reviewed the
configuration with the City Attorney and although unconventional, the requested
configuration did not pose a problem from either a legal or maintenance standpoint;
third, the placement of the fence on 10 Cherry Lane Drive was found to have been
installed pursuant to a 1995 building permit, which made the fence legally
nonconforming; finally, Council questioned the landscaping encroachments on 2 and 10
Cherry Lane Drive; the landscaping did not appear to have been placed recently as it
was mature and established, did not interfere with the public’s ability to utilize the
improved portion of the roadway, and did not interfere with drainage or maintenance;
staff found no encroachment issues for these two properties.
Councilor Blum asked for clarification for the location of the five-foot strip of right-of-way.
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie indicated on the map.
Mayor Stewart asked for any public comments. Hearing none the Public Hearing was
closed at 6:45 p.m.
Councilor Sheldon moved, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown, to approve on second
and final reading Council Bill 7, Series 2022; vacating the City’s interest in a portion of
the Crest Road right-of-way located within the City of Cherry Hills Village, Arapahoe
County, State of Colorado on second and final reading for consideration of $50,028.00.
Additionally, I move to approve the Agreement and License for Maintenance of Cityowned right-of-way and require the applicant to enter into the agreement as a condition
of approval.
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The following votes were recorded:
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum

yes
yes
yes
yes
yes

Vote on the Council Bill 7-2022: 5 ayes. 0 nays. The motion carried.
Council Bill 11, Series 2022; Amending Section 16-3-20 of Article III of Chapter 16 of
the Municipal Code Concerning Recreational Structure Setbacks in the O-1, Open
Space, Park and Recreation Area Zone District (second and final reading, continued
from May 17, 2022)
Planning Manager Workman presented Council Bill 11, Series 2022 on second and final
reading; no changes had been made since first reading; Option 5 in the staff memo had
been approved at first reading; potential pros of this option included creating clarity for
setback requirements for recreational structures in the O-1 Zone District, customized so
that no existing structures are made legally nonconforming, responded to the different
size, nature, and needs of the clubs based on their different size constraints, and
provided predictability for nearby property owners as it relates to potential impacts from
recreational structures; potential cons included that future applicants and staff would
have to determine the contiguous acreage of the club to determine the appropriate
setback requirements for proposed recreational structures; staff was aware there might
be concern on Council about the 10-foot setback from the street and the externalities
that might be created by that.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown asked if recreational structures for the schools and churches did
not apply to this discussion because those properties were zoned R-1.
Planning Manager Workman replied that was correct.
Councilor Weil asked if the recreational structure setback for the R-1 Zone District was
25 feet.
Planning Manager Workman replied that was correct.
Councilor Weil noted there were three clubs in the smaller acre category and only one
had a structure closer than 25 feet to a side property line; it seemed that the proposed
changes were to accommodate one tennis court; he noted the structure would be legal
nonconforming if a 25-foot setback were established and asked what complication
would result.
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Planning Manager Workman replied there might be no complication but the reason the
proposed changes accommodated that tennis court was that if the court needed to be
reconstructed and was required to meet a 25-foot setback it might impact the operations
of the site.
Councilor Weil expressed concern with the impact of a smaller setback on the semirural character of the Village and allowing more structures closer to property lines for
the smaller acre clubs.
Planning Manager Workman offered that the 10-foot side setback would not apply to the
Buell club as it did not have street side but would apply to the Arapahoe Tennis Club on
their Tenaya property line.
Councilor Gallagher moved, seconded by Councilor Blum, I move to approve, on
second and final reading, Council Bill 11, Series 2022, a bill for an ordinance to amend
Chapter 16 of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code to add specific setbacks for
recreational structures in the O-1, Open Space, Park and Recreation Area Zone District
as identified as Option 5 in the Proposed Amendments section of the June 7, 2022, staff
memo.
The following votes were recorded:
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum

no
yes
yes
yes
yes

Vote on the Council Bill 11-2022: 4 ayes. 1 nays. The motion carried.
NEW BUSINESS
Opportunity for Comment and Consideration of Resolution 12, Series 2022; Opting Out
of the State Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Program
HR Manager Ducharme presented Resolution 12, Series 2022; she explained in
November 2020 Colorado voters passed Proposition 118, allowing for implementation of
a state-run program for paid family and medical leave insurance (FAMLI); the state
gives local governments the option to opt out of the program; the vote to opt out needed
to take place 180 days before the premiums would begin in order for the local
government to not pay premiums; the FAMLI program was intended to ensure all
employers in the state provided twelve weeks of protected paid leave for caring for a
new child, an employee’s serious health condition, a family member’s serious health
condition, arrangements for a family member’s military deployment, and immediate
safety needs and impacts of domestic violence and/or sexual assault; the benefit was
June 7, 2022
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partial wage continuation of 37% to 90% depending on the employee’s annual base
salary amount; the program would require contributions from the City and employees of
0.45% of employee’s wages beginning on January 1, 2023, with benefits starting on
January 1, 2024; the contribution rate was set until 2025; if the City opted in at this time
it would be for three years; if the City opted out at this time Council had the option of
opting in during the normal budget process; if the City opted out, individuals could still
opt in at the 0.45% rate and the program benefits for those employees would remain the
same; the City currently paid approximately $8,000 per year for short-term disability
coverage; the cost to the City to participate in the FAMLI program would be between
$20,000 and $23,000 per year for the City portion of benefits as well as administrative
costs; opting in would also impact employees’ net pay; the City currently participated in
the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and provided short-term disability coverage
to its employees; the state rules for administration of the FAMLI program were largely
unknown at this time; she provided additional information about FMLA and short-term
disability benefits; City employees were notified on May 31, 2022 of tonight’s meeting
and the opportunity to comment; a majority of municipalities responding to CML’s poll
indicated their intent to opt out of the FAMLI program; three employees provided
comments:
1. I am writing you to ask you to please vote to opt out of CRS 8-13.3-5 (FAMLI) as
allowed through CRS 8-13.3-522. As a father of three boys who already
struggles to pay on the bills on a single income family, I have serious concerns
about additional withholdings being taken from my pay checks each month, and
whether or not I would be able to afford to continue working here if this were
forced upon me. I also believe that it is in the best interest of the city to opt out,
as it will also bring additional expenses to the city budget. Additionally, as the
City of Cherry Hills already offers a FMLA plan that is comparable to that being
offered from the state, this expense for both the employees as well as the city
would be unnecessary and therefore a waste of valuable resources. I also
believe that this is the right choice as any employees who see value in the state’s
FAMLI plan can opt in as an individual and still have the same coverage without
it being forced upon them. Therefore, I am asking you to please vote to opt out of
the State of Colorado’s FAMLI plan. Please allow us, the employees of Cherry
Hills Village, the opportunity to choose what we each feel is best for ourselves,
for our families.
2. To whom it may concern, with the limited information from the State and the fact
that the City already has a similar program in place I believe the City should opt
out of this program. It also sounds like individuals can opt in even with the City
opting out, this makes more sense to me then requiring all employees to pay into
a program that they may not want.
3. It seems to me that we have people who already use up their time and cause
issues. This will now allow those people to have a safety net on my dime. I am
not ok paying for people who already abuse the system.

June 7, 2022
City Council

Page 6 of 11

Draft

Draft

Draft

Jenn Diffendal, 5701 E. Stanford Drive, indicated this was an important piece of
legislation for City employees; she understood the City could opt out; she asked if the
City could pay both the employee and employer portions of the program using ARPA
funds; police officers would use the benefit the most; a lot of officers had to use their
PTO for COVID instead of vacations; the FAMLI program would benefit them if they
were shot in the line of duty; it offered an umbrella for parents with sick kids; the FAMLI
program benefits would have helped Cory Sack with financial difficulties; the City owed
this to officers because they incurred so much risk.
Councilor Blum asked about other municipalities.
HR Manager Ducharme replied Greenwood Village had opted out in May and
Centennial would be opting out in August.
Assistant City Attorney King added Golden would create its own plan or would opt out in
September; Central City and Leadville were considering opting out tonight.
Councilor Sheldon asked how employees who opted in would still receive the same
benefits if the City opted out.
Assistant City Attorney King replied that was stated in the FAMLI plan, but it was not yet
clear how the benefits would be paid for if the City opted out.
Councilor Sheldon indicated he could not support paying for something if the benefit to
employees would not be impacted.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown added that opting in would require all employees to pay into the
program, but if the City opted out then employees who did not want to participate would
not pay into the program.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Weil, to approve Resolution 12,
Series 2022; opting the City out of the State Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance
Program.
The motion passed unanimously with 5 ayes and 0 nays.
City Council Liaison Assignments
City Clerk Gillespie asked for Council direction on adding the Arapahoe County
Regional Opioid Abatement Council to the liaison assignments list, appointing a primary
representative and an alternate, and changing the Arapahoe County Transportation
Forum liaisons to be Councilor Weil as the primary liaison to coordinate with DRCOG,
and Mayor Stewart as the alternate.
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Mayor Pro Tem Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Weil, to approve the City Council
Liaison Assignments as attached to the June 7, 2022, staff memorandum by adding the
Arapahoe County Regional Opioid Abatement Council and appointing Mayor Stewart as
the primary representative and Councilor Gallagher as the secondary representative for
Cherry Hills Village; and also changing the assignments for Arapahoe County
Transportation Forum, designating Councilor Weil as the liaison and Mayor Stewart as
the alternate.
The motion passed unanimously.
REPORTS
Mayor’s Report
Mayor Stewart reported he attended the Arapahoe County Transportation Forum
meeting; the May OSTAB meetings.
Councilor Sheldon asked if the City had any grant requests pending.
Mayor Stewart replied they did not.
City Manager Cramer added the updated Master Plan would be instrumental in
determining priorities for grant projects.
Mayor Stewart noted there had been an expansion in what OSTAB grant funds could
cover that might be applicable to City projects; he attended the June 1st Metro Mayors
Caucus (MMC), which focused on affordable housing and rebuilding homes after the
Marshall Fire; the June 2nd MMC housing committee; the June 6th MMC transportation
committee; August would be a free RTD fare month; he would attend the Mayors Munch
on June 15th; they had received notice from Arapahoe County that Denver would
oppose the split diamond option for the Belleview/I-25 Interchange project.
Members of City Council
Councilor Blum had no report.
Councilor Sheldon suggested Council consider changing the policy that homeowners
were responsible for tree limbs in their adjacent right-of-way in cases of large
snowstorms such as the one the City recently experienced.
City Manager Cramer replied a significant budget change would be needed to enact
such a policy change as the impact to City staff and normal City operations would be
significant; it had been the City’s policy for many years that the adjacent homeowner
was responsible for maintenance of trees in their adjacent right-of-way including clean
up of branches in events such as this; that policy was clarified in the updated right-ofJune 7, 2022
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way standards recently adopted by Council and would need to be amended again if
Council wanted to change that policy.
Councilor Blum suggested Council consider it a contingency as part of the 2023 budget.
City Manager Cramer replied they could, but additional steps would also be needed to
make the policy change.
Councilor Gallagher indicated he had no problem with the current policy, and if
homeowners received the benefit of the landscaping in the adjacent right-of-way, then
the other side of the coin was the responsibility to maintain it.
Councilor Sheldon asked if it was then an enforcement issue to have homeowners take
care of the tree limbs.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown suggested a program similar to the holiday tree drop off
program, and the limbs could sit there until staff had time to chip them; if there was an
abandoned piece of patio furniture in the right-of-way the homeowner would be
expected to clean it up.
Councilor Weil noted it was a grey area and many residents had dragged tree limbs
from their private property into the street hoping the City would pick them up.
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie indicated that the branches in the street were
normally pushed back into the right-of-way by snowplows.
Councilor Sheldon noted there did not seem to be consensus so asked Council and
staff to continue thinking of possible solutions.
City Manager Cramer replied staff had already started those discussions; he noted any
enforcement efforts would have to be postponed due to the high demand of companies
that residents might hire to help take care of branches.
Councilor Sheldon indicated he would like the City to explore selling 90 Meade Lane, he
did not believe the property would appreciate any further, he agreed with former
councilor Earl Hoellen it was time to take action and asked that the issue be added to a
future agenda. He thanked the other Council members and staff for being professional,
courteous, and responsible in the way they handled City business; a lot of other
municipalities did not operate as a professional organization that tried to solve
problems.
Councilor Gallagher welcomed Chief Lyons and Director Farmen to their first Council
meeting.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown had no report.
June 7, 2022
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Councilor Weil reported he attended the last DRCOG meeting; bike to work day was
June 22nd; he would attend tomorrow’s DRCOG board meeting; regarding the potential
sales tax ballot measure, he met weekly with City Manager Cramer and consultant Kyle
Blakely, the campaign committee was being built, presentations at HOA meetings were
continuing, he thanked Council for their work, the presentations seemed to be going
well.
City Manager & Staff
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie reported Zayo was working on getting the last
lines off the poles for the Quincy undergrounding project; the Southmoor Hudson
undergrounding project had begun and was proceeding very well; the High Line Canal
Conservancy had released their five year work plan for each jurisdictions; the plan for
Cherry Hills Village included signage and wayfinding, tree planting, Russian Olive
removal, tree risk assessment, adopt a bench program, and the stormwater plan; the
City was the only one who had truly begun to examine their section of the Canal
regarding stormwater; Denver Water had announced they wanted each jurisdiction to
take over stormwater by 2026.
Councilor Sheldon asked for more detail on the progress of the City’s stormwater plan.
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie provided more detail and indicated drafts would be
brought to Council over the coming months prior to the final plan.
Councilor Sheldon asked about the capital cost.
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie replied the HLCC estimated $1.2 million for the
stormwater infrastructure for the City’s portion of the Canal, with an additional $30$60,000 annually for maintenance.
City Manager Cramer noted the $1.2 million in infrastructure would have to be done
within three years; staff would identify which items would be needed first.
Mayor Stewart discussed about the technical aspects.
Planning Manager Workman reported Community Development Clerk Ethen Westbrook
would be leaving the City for a great opportunity; next week a rough draft of language
for the master plan update would be discussed at the Planning and Zoning Commission
study session; similar information would come to Council at a later study session.
Mayor Stewart indicated Mr. Westbrook at done great work.
City Manager Cramer welcomed Chief Lyons and Director Farmen. He reported at the
next Council meeting there would be a Town Hall instead of a study session; likely there
June 7, 2022
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would be a presentation at 5pm and another at 6pm; he asked Council members to
volunteer to reach out to potential committee members; he and Mayor Stewart would
attend the CML annual conference.
City Attorney
Assistant City Attorney King had no report.
ADJOURNMENT
Hearing no objection Mayor Stewart adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m.
(SEAL)

_________________________________
Russell O. Stewart, Mayor
_________________________________
Laura Gillespie, City Clerk
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: 7b

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

DOUG FARMEN, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

SUBJECT: THE 2021 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

ISSUE
Should City Council approve the 2021 Financial Audit Statements (Exhibit A)?
DISCUSSION
Section 3.10 of the City Charter requires an independent audit of the financial affairs by a certified
public accountant that is experienced in municipal accounting. Attached as Exhibit A is the Audit
of the Financial Statements of the City of Cherry Hills Village for year-end December 31, 2021,
including an unqualified audit letter written by the John Cutler of John Cutler & Associates. John
Cutler & Associates have audited the City’s financial statements since 2009. In the 2021 report,
Mr. Cutler stated:
“We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions. In our opinion, the financial statements…present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Cherry Hills Village as of December 31, 2021, and the respective
changes in the financial position, and where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State
of America.”
STAFF ANALYSIS
Staff provided a Management Discussion and Analysis at the beginning of the audit report. A
portion of the financial summary for 2021 include:
• The assets of the City of Cherry Hills Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal
year 2021 by $46.4 million (net position). Of this amount, $21.9 million (unrestricted net
position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to residents and creditors.
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COLORADO
•

•
•

At the close of fiscal year 2021, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $24.4 million, an increase of $3.4 million in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 74% or $18.0 million is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).
Also, at the end of the fiscal year 2021, the fund balance for the General Fund was $19.2
million, of which $.7 million was committed to capital expenditures.
General Fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by $2.3 million for the fiscal
year 2021 and actual expenditures were $.8 million less than budgeted expenditures.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54 was adopted by the City in
2011. Statement 54 clarified the definitions of governmental fund types, requiring the Capital
Fund to be combined with the General Fund in the financial statements. Staff will continue to
account for the General Fund and Capital Fund separately in all monthly financial reports.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the Audit of the Financial Statements of the City of Cherry Hills Village for
year-end December 31, 2021.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: 2021 Audited Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT A

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Cherry Hills Village
Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cherry Hills Village (the “City”) as of and for the year ended December 31,
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Cherry Hills Village as of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Cherry Hills Village, and to meet our ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.
600 17TH STREET SUITE 2800 SOUTH • DENVER, COLORADO 80202 •TEL 303.634.2259 •FAX 303.496.4631

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
 Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures of the financial statements.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
 Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis on pages a - h and the budgetary comparison schedule for the general and major special revenue funds on
pages 28-29 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the local
highway finance report as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The supplementary information and other information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information and other
information are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

June 10, 2022

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As management of the City of Cherry Hills Village, we offer this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Cherry Hills Village for the fiscal year
that ended December 31, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with the Auditors’ Report at
the front of this report and the City’s financial statements, which follow this section.
Financial Highlights







The assets of the City of Cherry Hills Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of
fiscal year 2021 by $46.4 million (net position). Of this amount, $21.9 million
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.
At the close of fiscal year 2021, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $24.4 million, an increase of $3.4 million
in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 74% or $18.0 million is available
for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).
At the end of the fiscal year 2021, the fund balance for the general fund was $19.2
million, of which $690,599 was committed for capital projects.
General Fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by $2.3 million for the
fiscal year 2021 and actual expenditures were $754,303 less than budgeted
expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Cherry
Hills Village basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
report information on all activities of the City. The statement of net position includes all
the City’s assets and liabilities. All the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The statement of net position presents information on all the City of Cherry Hills Village
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City of Cherry Hills Village is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City of Cherry Hills
Village net position changed during fiscal year 2021. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows.
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Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some items will result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, judicial, data
processing, community development, Village Crier, public safety, public works and parks
and recreation.
Fund financial statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed
information about the City’s most significant funds – not the City as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes.


Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants.



The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (like the Parks and Recreation Fund) or to show that it is properly using
certain taxes and grants (like the Conservation Trust Fund and the Arapahoe County
Open Space Fund).

Governmental funds – All of the City’s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets can be converted to cash
flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in
the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional
information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement is provided that explains
the relationship between them.
Proprietary Funds – The City of Cherry Hills Village maintains one type of proprietary
fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund
to account for its Water and Sewer Fund. This fund is considered to be a major fund of
the City of Cherry Hills Village.
Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole
Net Position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the City of Cherry Hills Village, assets
exceeded liabilities by $46,423,654 at the close of the 2021 fiscal year.
A portion of the City of Cherry Hills Village’s net position (46%) reflects its investment
in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). The City of Cherry
Hills Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending.
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An additional portion of the City of Cherry Hills Village net position (5%) represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions for how they may be used. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net position (49% or $22,694,800) may be used to meet
the City’s obligations to citizens and creditors.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Cherry Hills Village can report positive
balances in net position for the City as a whole, as well as for its governmental activities
as a whole. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.
City of Cherry Hills Village Net Position
Governmental Governmental
Activities
Activities
2021

2020

Business-Type Business-Type
Activities
Activities
2021

2020

Current and other assets

$30,846,669

$27,095,241

$904,221

$1,787,032

Capital assets

$32,278,640

$32,454,962

$59,365

$82,977

$63,125,309 $59,550,203

Total assets
Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

$963,586

$1,870,009

$10,766,694

$11,157,158

$0

$0

$6,442,839

$6,157,678

$150,688

$517,897

$17,209,533 $17,314,836

$150,688

$517,897

$59,365

$82,977

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$21,176,946

$21,348,418

$2,492,543

$1,729,942

$0

$0

$21,941,267

$18,851,987

$753,533

$1,269,135

$45,610,756 $41,930,347

$812,898

$1,352,112

Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities



Governmental-type activities increased the City’s total net position by $3,680,409
from 2020.
The increase in total net position is due to the purchase of equipment and vehicles for
the Public Works Department, a new vehicle for the Police Department along with
increased revenues and decreased liabilities is most funds.

Business Type Activities



Business-type activities decreased the City’s total net position by $539,214 from
2020.
The decrease is primarily due to the approved sewer service project and repayment
of shared costs from Southgate Sanitation District, Cherryvale Sanitation District and
Country Homes Sanitation District.
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City of Cherry Hills Village Changes in Net Position
Governmental Governmental
Activities
Activities
2021
2020
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues
Property taxes
Sales and Use taxes
Specific Ownership taxes
Franchise fees
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings

Business-type
Activities
2021

Business-type
Activities
2020

$2,269,875
$1,172,265
$457,654

$1,719,560
$916,975
$739,867

$83,420
$0
$5,550

$83,420
$0
$20,100

$5,401,954
$3,448,582
$371,854
$597,032
$299,261
$10,025

$5,426,645
$2,701,021
$378,583
$540,959
$191,482
$136,124

$0
$0
$0
$0
$617,859
$441

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$7,320

Total revenues

$14,028,502

$12,751,216

$707,270

$110,840

Expenses
General Government
Judicial
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Parks and Recreation
Village Crier
Other
Total expenses
Increases in net position
Net position, beginning
Net position, ending

$1,330,654
$109,063
$3,746,955
$1,109,639
$587,617
$3,017,294
$35,518
$411,353
$10,348,093
$3,680,409
$41,930,347
$45,610,756

$1,439,822
$81,826
$3,542,624
$1,209,393
$568,147
$2,561,028
$33,707
$430,942
$9,867,489
$2,852,606
$39,077,741
$41,930,347

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$1,246,484
$1,246,484
-$539,214
$1,352,112
$812,898

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$30,677
$30,677
$80,163
$1,271,949
$1,352,112
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

Revenue by Source – Governmental Activites

The City of Cherry Hills Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. In 2011, the City adopted a new
accounting pronouncement which requires it to classify fund balance based mainly on the
extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on how the funds are allowed to be
spent.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Cherry Hills Village financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the end of fiscal year 2021, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $24.4 million, an increase of $3.4 million in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 74% of this total amount ($18.0 million)
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed, restricted or is
nonspendable.
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Cherry Hills Village (and is
combined with the Capital Fund for audit purposes). At the end of fiscal year 2021,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund, combined with the Capital Fund, was
$18.0 million while total fund balance reached $19.2 million. As a measure of the Fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 236% of total
General Fund/Capital Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 94% of that
same amount.
The Parks and Recreation Fund began receiving revenues in 2006. This fund had a
balance of $1,951,417 at the end of 2021 and will continue to receive property tax
revenue as ordered by the South Suburban exclusion.
In 2017 a Capital Projects Fund was created to account for the Certificate of Participation
(COP) proceeds and expenditures for the new Public Works Facility, the new City Hall
and the improvements to John Meade Park/Alan Hutto Memorial Commons. This fund
had a positive balance of $690,615 at the end of 2021. The only revenue this fund will
receive is interest earnings.
Proprietary Fund
The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for all revenue and expenses associated with the
consolidation and operations of water and sewer utilities under the auspices of the City.
In 2020, sewer repairs and maintenance fees of $430 per year were charged to residents
under the Englewood total service agreement. Expenditures exceed revenues by
$539,214 in this fund 2021.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The General Fund expenditures in 2021 were $754,303 under budget and revenues were
$2,370,617 over budget. The General Fund balance increased by $2,265,625 and had an
ending fund balance of $19,282,766.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets. The City of Cherry Hills Village investment in capital assets as of
December 31, 2021 amounts to $32.2 million. This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, art and sewer lines.
Capital asset events during the 2021 fiscal year included the following:




A new Police Department vehicle in the amount of $59,920.
New Public Works Department and Parks Division equipment and vehicle in the
amount of $211,715.
Chip seal replacement in the amount of $305,185.
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City of Cherry Hills Village’s Capital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)
2021
Land
CIP
Buildings and Improvements
Software
Equipment
Art
Sewer Lines
Total Capital Assets

$18,912,391
$0
$12,244,080
$119,000
$783,870
$219,299
$59,365
$32,338,005

2020
$15,169,580
$3,742,811
$12,403,694
$143,463
$736,615
$258,799
$82,977
$32,537,939

Long-term debt. At the end of the 2021 fiscal year, the City of Cherry Hills Village had
total long-term debt outstanding of $11,101,694. This total debt represents accrued
compensated absences ($344,537), Certificates of Participation ($10,402,736) and
Charlou Park 3rd Filing General Improvement District bond payable ($364,421).
Economic Factors, Next Year’s Budget and Rates
The City of Cherry Hills Village sales tax rate remains at 3.5% and the mill levy is
14.722.
In preparing the 2021 budget, the City of Cherry Hills Village had to take several factors
into consideration. In 2011, the City Council approved the creation of a new Capital
Fund and approximately $9 million of the General Fund balance was transferred to the
Capital Fund at that time. The 2021 budget was adopted with a very slight increase in
property tax revenues (less than 1%) from 2020 and also a small increase in sales tax and
building permit revenue. All other revenues would remain constant or increase slightly
due to continued uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic.
During the 2021 fiscal year, the fund balance in the General Fund (to include the Capital
Fund) increased to $19.2 million (from $17.0 million). The General Fund (to include the
Capital Fund) balance is projected to end 2022 at approximately $18.7 million.
The adopted 2021 fiscal year total budget appropriations are $11.8 million, a decrease of
$653,928 from 2020. This decrease is due to the completion Hampden Avenue
underpass, near completion of the sewer project and decreased expenditures in the
Capital Fund.

g

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Cherry Hills
Village’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:
Doug Farmen
Director of Finance and Administration
(303) 783-2730
dfarmen@cherryhillsvillage.com
or
City of Cherry Hills Village
2450 East Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2021

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL
TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ACTIVITIES

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investments
Receivables
Property Taxes
Sales and Other
Accounts Receivable
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated
Capital Assets, Depreciated
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Parks and Recreation
Restricted for Emergencies
Restricted for Public Art
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTALS
2021

2020

903,683
-

$ 23,541,194
1,477,206

$ 21,741,286
580,281

5,783,371
231,008
412,553
18,912,391

538
-

5,783,371
231,008
413,091
18,912,391

5,435,924
581,496
238,266
18,912,391

13,366,249

59,365

13,425,614

13,625,548

62,820,289

963,586

63,783,875

61,115,192

289,511
36,761
34,732

150,688
-

440,199
36,761
34,732

247,047
18,830
40,000
573,254
35,520

335,000
10,766,694

325,000
11,157,158

11,613,386

12,396,809

5,746,835

5,435,924

59,365
753,533

21,236,311
1,951,417
499,600
41,526
22,694,800

21,431,395
1,353,069
345,000
31,873
20,121,122

812,898

$ 46,423,654

$ 43,282,459

$ 22,637,511
1,477,206

$

335,000
10,766,694

-

11,462,698

150,688

5,746,835

-

21,176,946
1,951,417
499,600
41,526
21,941,267
$ 45,610,756

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2021

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General Government
Judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Interest on Long Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING
CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR
GRANTS AND
GRANTS AND
SERVICES
CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

EXPENSES

$ 1,330,654
109,063
587,617
35,518
3,746,955
1,109,639
3,017,294
411,353

$

287,553
1,917,298
16,255
65,024
-

$

835,361
336,904
-

$

10,348,093

2,286,130

1,246,484

83,420

-

5,550

1,246,484

83,420

-

5,550

$ 11,594,577

$

2,369,550

1,172,265

457,654
-

$

1,172,265

457,654

$

463,204

GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Interest
Miscellaneous
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION Beginning
NET POSITION Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

$

(495,293)
178,490
1,329,681
(19,263)
(3,681,931)
(772,735)
(2,559,640)
(411,353)

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

$

(6,432,044)

$

-

TOTALS
2021

$

-

(495,293)
178,490
1,329,681
(19,263)
(3,681,931)
(772,735)
(2,559,640)
(411,353)

2020

$

(822,968)
231,866
792,909
(19,142)
(3,497,812)
(909,272)
(1,821,161)
(430,942)

(6,432,044)

(6,476,522)

-

(1,157,514)

(1,157,514)

72,843

-

(1,157,514)

(1,157,514)

72,843

(6,432,044)

(1,157,514)

(7,589,558)

(6,403,679)

5,401,954
371,854
3,448,582
597,032
10,025
283,006

441
617,859

5,401,954
371,854
3,448,582
597,032
10,466
900,865

5,426,645
378,583
2,701,021
540,959
143,444
145,796

10,112,453

618,300

10,730,753

9,336,448

3,680,409

(539,214)

3,141,195

2,932,769

41,930,347

1,352,112

43,282,459

40,349,690

45,610,756

$

812,898

$

46,423,654

$

43,282,459

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investments
Due From Other Funds
Property Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Expenses
Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue
FUND EQUITY
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS, AND FUND EQUITY

General
Fund

Parks and
Recreation
Fund

$ 18,711,513
80,701
2,849,604
412,553
231,008

$ 2,060,653
2,897,006
-

$

546,997
224,319
-

$ 1,865,345
930,209
36,761
-

$ 22,285,379

$ 4,957,659

$

771,316

$ 2,832,315

$

$

$

80,701
-

153,010
-

109,010
-

$

27,491
224,319
36,761
-

109,010

2,849,604

2,897,231

541,126
690,599
18,051,041

1,951,417
-

690,615
-

2,543,744
-

19,282,766

1,951,417

690,615

2,543,744

$ 22,285,380

$ 4,957,658

771,316

$ 2,832,315

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported in
the funds. These include COPs Payable ($9,915,000), Premium on COPs Payable ($487,736),
Notes Payable ($354,421) accrued interest payable ($34,732), and Compensated Absences ($344,537).
Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

80,701

Other
Governmental
Funds

153,010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
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Capital
Projects
Fund

-

$

288,571

-

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS
2021
2020

$ 22,637,511
1,477,206
305,020
5,783,371
412,553
231,008

$ 19,956,296
580,281
305,020
5,435,924
236,224
581,496

$ 30,846,669

$ 27,095,241

$

$

289,511
305,020
36,761
-

246,987
18,830
305,020
40,000
55,417

631,292

666,254

5,746,835

5,435,924

3,775,485
2,642,016
18,051,041

2,999,726
3,961,367
14,031,970

24,468,542

20,993,063

32,278,640

32,454,962

(11,136,426)

(11,517,678)

$ 45,610,756

$ 41,930,347

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2021

General
Fund

Parks and
Recreation
Fund

$ 2,625,783
371,854
3,448,582
597,032
1,917,298
370,188
352,577
75,330
7,364

$ 2,732,957
136,395
504

9,766,008

2,869,856

1,278,041
109,063
587,617
35,518
3,606,592
962,717
-

1,715,897

-

40,948
710,678

141,750
191,807
735,208

173,250
234,431
-

4

10,000
19,502
-

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

7,648,313

2,123,578

4

781,128

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

2,117,695

746,278

16

611,490

147,930

(147,930)

-

-

147,930

(147,930)

-

-

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES

2,265,625

598,348

16

611,490

FUND BALANCES, Beginning

17,017,141

1,353,069

690,599

1,932,254

$ 19,282,766

$ 1,951,417

690,615

$ 2,543,744

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the Issuance of Debt
Operating Transfers
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

FUND BALANCES, Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Capital
Projects
Fund
$

Other
Governmental
Funds

-

$

20
20

$

43,214
1,123,336
223,911
2,157
1,392,618

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS
2021
2020

$ 5,401,954
371,854
3,448,582
597,032
1,917,298
1,629,919
352,577
299,261
10,025

$ 5,426,645
378,583
2,701,021
540,959
1,361,056
1,656,842
358,504
191,482
136,124

14,028,502

12,751,216

1,318,989
109,063
587,617
35,518
3,606,592
962,717
2,426,575

1,384,353
81,826
568,147
33,707
3,394,048
1,053,874
1,881,013

325,000
445,740
735,212

315,350
455,329
3,025,068

10,553,023

12,192,715

3,475,479

558,501

-

-

-

-

3,475,479

558,501

20,993,063

20,434,562

$ 24,468,542

$ 20,993,063

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation ($403,756) exceeded capital outla $227,434,
in the current period.

(176,322)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. These include debt principal payments of
$335,000, amortization of premium $24,387, change in accrued compensated absences of $21,077,
and change in accrued interest of $788.
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

381,252
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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3,475,479

3,680,409

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
As of December 31, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

2021
$

2020

903,683
538

$ 1,784,990
2,042

904,221

1,787,032

59,365

82,977

TOTAL ASSETS

963,586

1,870,009

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenues

150,688
-

60
517,837

TOTAL LIABILITIES

150,688

517,897

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

59,365
753,533

82,977
1,269,135

812,898

$ 1,352,112

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation

TOTAL NET POSITION

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Year Ended December 31, 2021
2021
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

$

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
General and Administrative
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Miscellaneous
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital Contributions- Tap Fees
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION Beginning
NET POSITION, Ending

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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83,420

2020
$

83,420

83,420

83,420

1,220,298
2,574
23,612

6,614
451
23,612

1,246,484

30,677

(1,163,064)

52,743

441
617,859

7,320
-

618,300

7,320

(544,764)

60,063

5,550

20,100

(539,214)

80,163

1,352,112

1,271,949

812,898

$ 1,352,112

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Year Ended December 31, 2021
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Miscellaneous
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Ending

$

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenues
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2020

84,924
(1,590,081)
(1,505,157)

20,100

441

7,320

617,859

7,320

(881,307)

620,677

1,784,990

1,164,313

903,683

$ 1,784,990

$

52,743

23,612

23,612

1,504
150,628
(517,837)
(342,093)

(995)
60
517,837
540,514

$ (1,505,157)

8

82,425
510,832
593,257

5,550

$ (1,163,064)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$

$

593,257

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AGENCY FUND - SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.7
December 31, 2021

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

$

19,893
7,363

TOTAL ASSETS

$

27,256

LIABILITIES
Due to Property Owners

$

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado (the “City”) is a continuation of the City of
Cherry Hills Village after adoption of its Home Rule Charter in 1966. The City is
governed by a Mayor and six-member council elected by the residents.
The accounting policies of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. Following is a summary of
the more significant policies.
Reporting Entity
In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the City of Cherry Hills Village
has considered the possibility of inclusion of additional entities in its basic financial
statements.
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on financial accountability. The
City is financially accountable for organizations that make up its legal entity. It is also
financially accountable for legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the City. The City may also be
financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent upon it.
Based on the application of these criteria, the following organization is included in the
City’s reporting entity.
Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3rd Filing General Improvement District
The Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3rd Filing General Improvement District (the
“District”) was established by voters in the November 2018 election. On January 19, 2020,
City Council passed an Ordinance declaring the District organized. The purpose of the
District is to obtain financing to be repaid with property taxes levied by the District. The
District is blended into the City’s financial statements as a special revenue fund. City
Council serves as the Board of the District and has significant operational responsibility of
the component unit.
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the
given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, grants, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s
practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
In the fund financial statements, the City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Parks and Recreation Fund accounts for allocated property tax revenues for parks
and recreation activities.
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the City’s proceeds from issuance of
Certificates of Participation and related capital expenditures.
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
The Water Fund accounts for the financial activities associated with the provision of
water services.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:
The Agency Fund accounts for resources to support the activities of the Special
Improvement District No. 7. The City holds all assets in a purely custodial capacity.
Cash and Investments
Cash equivalents include investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Investments are recorded at fair value.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Property and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure (Sewer Lines)

50 years
10-25 years
5-10 years
25-50 years

Compensated Absences
The City allows its employees to accrue personal time off (PTO). Employees are expected
to manage their PTO banks throughout the year, and banks should not exceed 200 hours.
Any excess leave accumulated (over 200 hours) at the end of the year shall be subject to
forfeiture except where the employee has been denied the opportunity to take vacation
time, or where special circumstances exist, and approval to exceed the limits has been
authorized by the City Manager. If approved, hours in excess of the 200 hour maximum
will be paid at 100% of the employee’s regular hourly pay rate during the year in which the
PTO was accrued. Upon separation of employment, up to 200 hours of unused PTO are
paid out using the employee’s regular hourly pay rate. Hours in excess of 200 are paid out
at a rate of 50% of the employee’s regular hourly pay rate.
These compensated absences are recognized when due in the governmental fund types. A
liability has been recorded in the government-wide financial statements for the accrued
compensated absences.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows or resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position and
fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows or resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position and fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied on November 1 and attach as an enforceable lien on property on
January 1. Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on February 28 and
June 15. The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and remits to the City on a
monthly basis.
Since property tax revenues are collected in arrears during the succeeding year, a receivable
and corresponding deferred revenue are recorded at December 31. As the tax is collected
in the succeeding year, the deferred revenue is recognized as revenue and the receivable is
reduced.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 1:

Fund Balance Classification
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the
City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the
respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental
fund financial statements are as follows:


Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. At December 31, 2021, the City does not report any nonspendable fund balances.



Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed
on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a
debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City
has classified the following amounts as restricted:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.



General Fund: Emergency Reserves of $499,600 are restricted because its use is
restricted by State Statute for declared emergencies. In addition, donations in the
amount of $41,526 are restricted for art purchases.
Capital Projects Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted for capital
expenditures.
Land Donation Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because its use
is restricted by donors.
Open Space Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because its use is
restricted by vote.
Conservation Trust Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because its
use is restricted by State statute.
CHV Charlou Park GID Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted as its
use is restricted by vote.

Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or
changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that
was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. As of December 31,
2021, the City committed $690,599 of its General Fund fund balance to be used for
capital projects. In addition, the City has committed the fund balance in the Park and
Recreation Fund to be used for parks and open space projects and maintenance.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 1:


Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City Council
intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. As of
December 31, 2021, the City does not have any assigned fund balances.



Unassigned – This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.
The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance
amounts.
The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed
resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the
right to selectively spend Unassigned resources.
Comparative Data
Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial
statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position
and operations. However, complete comparative data in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion would make the
financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read.
Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of operations in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable
to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this
data.

NOTE 2:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:


In October, the City staff submits to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.



Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)


Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution.



The City Administration is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.



Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the City. Budgets for the General,
Capital Projects, and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The Budgetary
comparison presented for the Enterprise Fund is presented on a non-GAAP
budgetary basis. Capital outlay and debt payments are budgeted as expenditures.



Budgeted amounts in the financial statements are as originally adopted or as
amended by the City Council. All appropriations lapse at year end. Colorado
governments may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A summary of deposits and investments as of December 31, 2021 follows:
Petty Cash
Cash Deposits
Investments

$

Total

351
2,163,225
22,854,824

$ 25,018,400

Cash and investments are reported in the financial statements as follows:
Governmental Activities - Unrestricted
Governmental Activities – Restricted
Business-type Activities
Total

$ 22,637,511
1,477,206
903,683
$ 25,018,400
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA)
requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories.
Eligibility is determined by state regulations. At December 31, 2021, State regulatory
commissioners have indicated that all financial institutions holding deposits for the City
are eligible public depositories. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels
must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the
financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds held. The pool is
to be maintained by another institution or held in trust for all the uninsured public
deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of
the uninsured deposits.
The City has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.
At December 31, 2021, the City had deposits with financial institutions with a carrying
amount of $2,163,225. The bank balances with the financial institutions were $2,472,376.
Of these balances, $587,695 was covered by federal depository insurance and $1,884,681
was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the financial institutions
name (PDPA).
Investments
Interest Rate Risk
The City has a formal investment policy that limits interest rate risk by structuring the
investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing
operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to
maturity and by investing operating funds primarily with durations of no longer than five
years, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools.

18

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Credit Risk
Colorado statutes specify in which instruments the units of local government may invest
which includes:







Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Local government investment pools
Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds
Guaranteed investment contracts

The above investments are authorized for all funds and fund types used by Colorado
municipalities.
Local Government Investment Pools
The City had invested $361,413 in the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE) an
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Title
24, Article 75, Part 7 of the Colorado Revised Statues, to pool surplus funds for
investment purposes. The State Securities Commissioner administers and enforces the
requirements of creating and operating the Pools. CSAFE reports its underlying
investments at amortized cost and is considered a qualifying external investment pool
under GASB Statement 79. CSAFE operates similar to money market funds where each
share is equal in value to $1.00. The fair value of the position in the pools is the same as
the value of the pooled shares.
CSAFE is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. The designated custodial bank provides
safekeeping and depository services in connection with the direct investment and
withdrawal functions. Substantially all securities are owned by the pools and held by the
Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s
internal records identify the investments owned by the pools. Investments of the pools
comply with state statues, consisting of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips,
repurchase agreements, U.S. Instrumentalities, Commercial Paper, Bank Deposits and
Money Market Funds. CSAFE does not have any limitations or restrictions on participant
withdrawals.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Local Government Investment Pools (Continued)
The City had invested $22,493,411 in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust
(ColoTrust) which has a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. ColoTrust is an
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus
funds and is regulated by the State Securities Commissioner. It operates similarly to a
money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00. Investments consist of U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Agency securities, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Agency securities. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping
and depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions.
Substantially all securities owned are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account
maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records identify the
investments owned by the entities.
ColoTrust is not a 2a7-like external investment pool. The unit of account is each share
held, and the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share price
multiplied by the number of shares held. The government-investor does not “look
through” the pool to report a pro rata share of the pool’s investments, receivables, and
payables.
Restricted Cash and Investments
At December 31, 2021, cash and investments in the amount of $546,997 is restricted for
capital expenditures in the Capital Projects Fund, cash in the amount of $94,848 is
restricted in the CHV Charlou Park GID fund as the debt reserve requirement per the
Series 2019 Note agreement, and cash in the amount of $835,361 is restricted in the ARPA
fund for approved grant expensitures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 is summarized below:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, not depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets, not depreciated

Balances
12/31/2020
$

Additions

15,169,580
3,742,811
18,912,391

$

Balances
12/31/2021

Deletions

3,742,811
3,742,811

$

- $
3,742,811
3,742,811

18,912,391
18,912,391

Capital Assets, depreciated
Buildings
Software
Art
Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets, depreciated

13,261,020
274,367
455,000
3,324,092
17,314,479

227,434
227,434

-

13,261,020
274,367
455,000
3,551,526
17,541,913

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Software
Art
Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, depreciated, Net

857,326
130,904
196,201
2,587,477
3,771,908
13,542,571

159,614
24,463
39,500
180,179
403,756
(176,322)

-

1,016,940
155,367
235,701
2,767,656
4,175,664
13,366,249

3,566,489

$ (3,742,811)

Governmental Activities,
Capital Assets, Net

$

32,454,962

$

Balances
12/31/2020
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, depreciated
Sewer Lines
Total Capital Assets, depreciated

$

708,364 $
708,364

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer Lines
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Business-Type Activities,
Capital Assets, Net

625,387
625,387
$

82,977 $
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Additions

$

Balances
12/31/2021

Deletions
-

$

23,612
23,612
(23,612)

-

$

$

32,278,640

-

708,364
708,364
648,999
648,999

$

59,365

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation

$

Total

33,530
140,363
146,922
82,941

$ 403,756

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT
Governmental Activities
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the governmental activities for
the year ended December 31, 2021.
Balance
12/31/2020

Additions

General Obligation Debt:
2017 COPs
$ 10,230,000 $
2017 COPs Premium
512,123
Debt from Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements:
2019 GID GO Note Payable 364,421
Other General Obligations:
Compensated Absences
375,614
Total

$ 11,482,158 $

- $
-

Payments

Balance
12/31/2021

315,000 $ 9,915,000 $
24,387
487,736

Due In
One Year
325,000
-

-

10,000

354,421

10,000

20,430

51,507

344,537

-

20,430 $

400,894 $ 11,101,694 $

335,000

General Obligation Debt
2017 Certificates of Participation (COPs)
On February 28, 2017, the City issued Certificates of Participation, Series 2017, in the
amount of $11,395,000. Proceeds are used to finance the construction of buildings and
improvements to City owned park property. The certificates carry interest rates ranging
from 2% to 5% per annum. Principal payments are due annually on November 15 and
interest payments are due on May 15 and November 15 through 2041. These Certificates
are rated AA+ by S&P Global Ratings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
The Certificates have been issued in connection with a lease of the property from the City
to UMB Bank N.A., and a lease back to the City from the UMB Bank N.A. This lease is
subject to annual appropriation by the City. If the Lease is not renewed because of an
Event of Nonappropriation has occurred or is terminated because and Event of Default
has occurred, the City will be required to vacate or surrender possession of the Leased
Property.
Certificates maturing in the years 2017 through 2026 are not subject to redemption prior to
their respective maturity dates. Certificates maturing in the year 2027 and thereafter are
subject to redemption at the option of the City on December 1, 2026 and any date
thereafter at a redemption price equal to par plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption. Certificates maturing on December 1, 2036 are also subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption by lot on December 1 of each year at a redemption price equal to
the principal amount plus accrued interest to the redemption date.
Debt from Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements
2019 GID General Obligation Note Payable
On March 26, 2019, the Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3rd Filing General Improvement
District (the District), a blended component unit of the City, issued the General Obligation
Note, Series 2020, in the amount of $375,000. Proceeds are used to finance the
construction fund improvements related to underground existing overhead electrical
distribution lines. The Series 2020 Note carries interest at a rate of 5.50%. Principal
payments are due annually on December 1 and interest payments are due on June 1 and
December 1 through 2040. In the event of default, the interest rate of the Series 2019 Note
shall be adjusted to 8.50%.
The Series 2019 Note are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the
District on December 1, 2029, and any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount of the Series 2019 Note to be redeemed, without redemption premium,
plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Other Obligations
Compensated Absences
Compensated Absences are being paid from resources generated by the General Fund.
Annual debt service requirements for the general obligation debt at December 31, 2021 are
as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Principal

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041

$

Total Debt Service Requirements

$9,915,000

Interest

Total

325,000 $ 416,788 $ 741,788
335,000
407,036
742,036
345,000
396,988
741,988
360,000
379,738
739,738
380,000
361,738
741,738
2,185,000
1,513,488
3,698,488
2,670,000
1,026,348
3,696,348
3,315,000
382,124
3,697,124
$ 4,884,248 $14,799,248

Annual debt service requirements for the direct borrowings and direct placements at
December 31, 2021 are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Principal

Interest

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040

$

10,000 $
10,000
10,000
15,000
15,000
80,000
105,000
109,421

Total Debt Service Requirements

$

354,421 $ 228,525 $ 582,945

24

19,525 $
18,975
18,425
17,875
17,050
72,875
48,125
15,675

Total
29,525
28,975
28,425
32,875
32,050
152,875
153,125
125,096

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 6: RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS
Police Pension Plan
Plan Description - The City contributes to a single employer money purchase pension plan
(Plan) on behalf of police officers. All full time, paid police employees of the City are
members of the Plan.
Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are
established and may be amended by the City Council. Both the City and the employee
contribute 8.0% of the employee’s covered salary. Employees vest in 25% of the City
contributions after one year of employment and an additional 25% each year thereafter.
Employees fully vest after four years of participation in the Plan. During the year ending
December 31, 2021 the City contributed $185,354 to the Plan, equal to the required
contributions. All Plan assets are managed by the International City/County Management
Association Retirement Corporation.
Non-Sworn Managers Pension Plan
The City contributes to a single-employer defined contribution money purchase pension
plan (the “Plan”) on behalf of non-sworn managers. All non-sworn managers are required
to participate in the Plan. The contribution requirements are established and may be
amended by the City Council. The city is required to contribute 5% the employee’s covered
salary and employees contribute 11% of covered salary. Employees fully vest in the Plan
immediately.
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the City contributed $41,830 to the Plan, equal
to the required contributions. All Plan assets are managed by the International City/County
Management Association Retirement Corporation.
Deferred 457 Compensation Plan
The City has a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. Participation in the Plan is optional for employees. The City
matches the contribution of participating employees up to 3% of sworn police officer
salaries and up to 5% of other non-management employee salaries. Total contributions to
the Plan during the year ended December 31, 2021 were $303,096. The Plan is administered
by the International City/County Management Association Retirement Corporation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 7: CONSOLIDATION OF WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICTS
The City has taken action to dissolve certain water and sanitation districts and other entities
which have provided services to areas within the City limits. The City will provide water
and sanitation services to these and future areas through service contracts with the Board
of Water Commissioners to the City and County of Denver (Denver).
Denver
The City has entered into a “total service” contract with Denver to provide water service
within the City’s service area, even though only part of the City is being served at this time.
Although the City retains legal title to the water distribution facilities, Denver is responsible
for all operations and maintenance, including all replacements of the facilities. Denver bills
users within the City directly.
Englewood
The City has entered into a “total service” contract with Englewood to provide water
within two small areas of the City. Englewood is responsible for all operations and
maintenance, including all replacements of the distribution facilities within the service areas
and bills users directly.
NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority
The City entered into an MOU with South Metro Fire Rescue Authority in February of
2011 for the planning and design of a public safety facility.
In September of 2011, the City entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Authority to construct, own, and operate a common public safety facility. Ownership of the
facility will be determined by a calculation of the aggregate amount of contributions made
by each party to the Agreement. Upon completion of the construction, ongoing operating
costs will be calculated based on the percentage share of ownership interest. The original
Agreement expired in December 31, 2012 and automatically renews upon the same terms
and conditions for one-year periods.
The City began construction of the facility in March of 2012 and the construction was
substantially completed by December 31, 2012. The City’s Police Department along with
the South Metro Fire Rescue Authority moved into the new facility in January of 2013. The
City’s portion of the building cost is recorded as Buildings on the City’s government-wide
financial statements.
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December 31, 2021
NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES(Continued)
Under the terms of the operations agreement, South Metro Fire Rescue Authority is
responsible for paying 50 percent of the building’s utility costs and 20 percent of the
building telephone and internet services. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority paid $31,554 to the City for reimbursement of these
operating costs under the terms of the agreement.
Tabor Amendment
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20,
which has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other
specific requirements of state and local government. On November 5, 1996, voters within
the City approved the collection, retention and expenditure of the full revenues generated
by the City in 1996 and subsequent years for street improvement projects, capital projects,
basic municipal services and/or lawful municipal purposes, notwithstanding the provisions
of the Amendment.
The City has established an emergency reserve, representing 3% of qualifying expenditures,
as required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2021, the emergency reserve of $499,600
was recorded in the General Fund.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interest

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 2,675,392
295,000
2,090,000
500,000
966,200
343,815
361,000
78,784
85,200

$ 2,675,392
295,000
2,090,000
500,000
966,200
343,815
361,000
78,784
85,200

$ 2,625,783
371,854
3,448,582
597,032
1,917,298
370,188
352,577
75,330
7,364

7,395,391

7,395,391

1,922,038
94,508
552,739
38,936
3,414,172
1,027,441

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$ 2,648,705
378,583
2,701,021
540,959
1,361,056
946,115
358,504
73,985
92,099

9,766,008

2,370,617

9,101,027

1,963,238
94,508
552,739
38,936
3,414,172
1,027,441

1,278,041
109,063
587,617
35,518
3,606,592
962,717

685,197
(14,555)
(34,878)
3,418
(192,420)
64,724

1,271,498
81,826
568,147
33,707
3,394,048
1,053,874

141,750
191,807
978,025

141,750
191,807
978,025

141,750
191,807
735,208

242,817

137,250
195,774
1,143,924

8,361,416

8,402,616

7,648,313

754,303

7,880,048

(966,025)

(1,007,225)

2,117,695

3,124,920

1,220,979

188,000

147,930

(40,070)

143,715

(819,225)

2,265,625

3,084,850

1,364,694

16,333,729

17,017,141

683,412

15,652,447

$ 15,514,504

$ 19,282,766

3,768,262

$ 17,017,141

(966,025)
$

(966,025)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

2020
ACTUAL

(49,609)
76,854
1,358,582
97,032
951,098
26,373
(8,423)
(3,454)
(77,836)

-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

$

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
PARKS AND RECREATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 2,720,104
125,000
10,000

$ 2,720,104
125,000
10,000

$ 2,732,957
136,395
504

2,855,104

2,855,104

1,209,902
49,842
53,702
227,511
98,275
418,811
-

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
12,853
11,395
(9,496)

$ 2,737,333
403,511
5,662

2,869,856

14,752

3,146,506

1,213,175
49,842
53,702
232,865
98,275
418,811
-

1,104,925
42,198
45,057
177,850
65,013
280,854
-

108,250
7,644
8,645
55,015
33,262
137,957
-

1,063,717
40,424
40,649
114,182
48,156
151,721
926,746

173,250
234,431

173,250
234,431

173,250
234,431

2,465,724

2,474,351

2,123,578

350,773

2,792,625

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

389,380

380,753

746,278

365,525

353,881

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out

(188,000)

(188,000)

(147,930)

(40,070)

(143,715)

201,380

192,753

598,348

405,595

210,166

1,083,625

1,083,625

1,353,069

269,444

1,142,903

$ 1,285,005

$ 1,276,378

$ 1,951,417

675,039

$ 1,353,069

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Personal Services
Supplies and Materials
Utilities
Contractual Services
Maintenance
Other
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

2020
ACTUAL

-

$

167,750
239,280

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2021

LAND
DONATION
FUND

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Property Taxes Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue

$

350,997
-

$ 1,029,714
-

$

484,634
-

$

94,848
36,761

$

350,997

$ 1,029,714

$

484,634

$

131,609

$

762
-

$

$

17,150
-

$

36,761

TOTAL LIABILITIES

762

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue

-

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

ARAPAHOE
COUNTY
CONSERVATION CHV CHARLOU
OPEN SPACE
TRUST
PARK GID
FUND
FUND
FUND

$

9,579
224,319
233,898

-

17,150

36,761

-

-

350,235

795,816

467,484

94,848

350,235

795,816

467,484

94,848

350,997

$ 1,029,714

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

484,634

$

131,609

ARPA
FUND

TOTALS
2021

2020

$

835,361
-

$ 1,865,345
930,209
36,761

$ 2,205,347
33,300
40,428

$

835,361

$ 2,832,315

$ 2,279,075

$

$

$

-

-

$

27,491
224,319
36,761
288,571

-

42,074
224,319
40,000
306,393

40,428

835,361

2,543,744

1,932,254

835,361

2,543,744

1,932,254

835,361

$ 2,832,315

$ 2,279,075

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2021

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Other
Interest

LAND
DONATION
FUND

ARAPAHOE
COUNTY
OPEN SPACE
FUND

$

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Parks and Recreation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest

2,173
8,361
524

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from the Issuance of Debt

$

80,767
101

CHV CHARLOU
PARK GID
FUND

$

43,214
137

11,058

421,980

80,868

43,351

39,753
-

682,000

28,678

1,195
-

-

10,000
19,502

-

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

205,035
215,550
1,395

CONSERVATION
TRUST
FUND

-

39,753

682,000

28,678

30,697

(28,695)

(260,020)

52,190

12,654

-

-

-

-

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

(28,695)

(260,020)

52,190

12,654

FUND BALANCES, Beginning

378,930

1,055,836

415,294

82,194

FUND BALANCES, Ending

$

350,235

$

795,816

$

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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467,484

$

94,848

ARPA
FUND

$

835,361
835,361

$

2020

43,214
1,123,336
223,911
2,157

$

40,607
307,216
17,497
34,003

1,392,618

399,323

-

40,948
710,678

109,187
422,164

-

10,000
19,502

10,350
20,275

-

781,128

561,976

611,490

(162,653)

835,361

835,361
$

TOTALS
2021

835,361

-

-

611,490

(162,653)

1,932,254

2,094,907

$ 2,543,744

$ 1,932,254

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
LAND DONATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Other
Interest

$

1,000
4,000
6,500

ACTUAL
$

2,173
8,361
524

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

1,173
4,361
(5,976)

2020
ACTUAL
$

12,691
9,011

TOTAL REVENUES

11,500

11,058

(442)

21,702

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative

61,621

39,753

21,868

108,725

61,621

39,753

21,868

108,725

(50,121)

(28,695)

21,426

(87,023)

295,255

378,930

83,675

465,953

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

245,134

$

350,235

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

105,101

$

378,930

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
ARAPAHOE COUNTY OPEN SPACE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Open Space Shareback
Intergovernmental
Other
Interest

$ 160,000
3,000
225,000
10,000

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

FINAL
BUDGET
$

160,000
3,000
225,000
10,000

ACTUAL
$

197,602
7,433
215,550
1,395

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

37,602
4,433
(9,450)
(8,605)

2020
ACTUAL
$

187,543
51,070
4,806
23,084

398,000

398,000

421,980

23,980

266,503

645,000

758,910

682,000

76,910

353,987

645,000

758,910

682,000

76,910

353,987

(247,000)

(360,910)

(260,020)

100,890

(87,484)

653,018

653,018

1,055,836

402,818

1,143,320

503,708

$ 1,055,836

$ 406,018

$

292,108

$

795,816

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Other
Interest

$

TOTAL REVENUES

60,000
19,308
1,700

ACTUAL
$

80,767
101

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

20,767
(19,308)
(1,599)

2020
ACTUAL
$

68,603
1,671

81,008

80,868

(140)

70,274

44,500

28,678

15,822

68,177

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

44,500

28,678

15,822

68,177

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

36,508

52,190

(15,962)

2,097

424,725

415,294

(9,431)

413,197

EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

461,233

$

467,484

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

6,251

$

415,294

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CHV CHARLOU PARK GID FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Interest

$

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

40,428
3,234
-

ACTUAL
$

40,428
2,786
137

$

(448)
137

2020
ACTUAL
$

38,368
2,239
237

43,662

43,351

(311)

40,844

3,606
-

1,195
-

2,411
-

462
-

10,000
20,075

10,000
19,502

573

10,350
20,275

33,681

30,697

2,984

31,087

9,981

12,654

2,673

9,757

-

-

9,981

12,654

2,673

9,757

43,662

82,194

38,532

72,437

53,643

$

94,848

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

-

$

41,205

-

$

82,194

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
ARPA FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental

$

TOTAL REVENUES

FINAL
BUDGET

-

$

-

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative

835,361

ACTUAL
$

835,361

835,361

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

835,361

-

2020
ACTUAL
$

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

-

-

-

-

-

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers Out

-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

-

835,361

$

835,361

-

-

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

835,361

835,361

-

-

$

835,361

$

835,361

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

-

$

-

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Interest
Other

$

-

TOTAL REVENUES

-

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
Capital Outlay

-

ACTUAL
$

20

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

20

20

2020
ACTUAL
$

20

-

4,360
100,000
104,360

4

(4)

3,668
954,398

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

-

4

(4)

958,066

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

-

16

16

(853,706)

-

690,599

690,599

1,544,305

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

-

$

690,615

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

690,615

$

690,599

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
WATER AND SEWER FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Tap Fees
Sewer Repairs and Maintenance Fees
Miscellaneous
Interest

$

5,000
69,660
63,000
8,000

ACTUAL
$

5,550
83,420
617,859
441

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

550
13,760
554,859
(7,559)

2020
ACTUAL
$

20,100
83,420
7,320

TOTAL REVENUES

145,660

707,270

561,610

110,840

EXPENDITURES
Legal Fees
Contractual Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Other
Depreciation Expense

2,000
20,000
703,701
500
23,612

1,905
413
1,220,298
256
23,612

95
19,587
(516,597)
244
-

195
6,614
256
23,612

749,813

1,246,484

(496,671)

30,677

$ (604,153)

(539,214)

64,939

80,163

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET INCOME
NET POSITION, Beginning
NET POSITION, Ending

$

1,352,112

1,271,949

812,898

$ 1,352,112

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2021

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31,
2020

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31,
ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS
2021

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Due from Others

$

-

$

19,893
7,363

$

-

$

19,893
7,363

TOTAL ASSETS

$

-

$

27,256

$

-

$

27,256

LIABILITIES
Due Property Owners
Accounts Payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

$

-

$

-

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

-

$

-

STATE COMPLIANCE

Financial Planning 02/01
Form # 350-050-36

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT
This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of Prepared By:
Phone:
City of Cherry Hills Village

City or County:
Arapahoe
YEAR ENDING :
December 2021
Jessica Sager
303-783-2730

I. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE
A.

ITEM
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Total receipts available
Minus amount used for collection expenses
Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
Minus amount used for mass transit
Remainder used for highway purposes

Local
Motor-Fuel
Taxes

B.
Local
Motor-Vehicle
Taxes

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
A. Receipts from local sources:
1. Local highway-user taxes
a. Motor Fuel (from Item I.A.5.)
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)
c. Total (a.+b.)
2. General fund appropriations
3. Other local imposts (from page 2)
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2)
5. Transfers from toll facilities
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:
a. Bonds - Original Issues
b. Bonds - Refunding Issues
c. Notes
d. Total (a. + b. + c.)
7. Total (1 through 6)
B. Private Contributions
C. Receipts from State government
(from page 2)
D. Receipts from Federal Government
(from page 2)
E. Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D)

A. Bonds (Total)
1. Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B. Notes (Total)

AMOUNT

1,027,441
459,629
0
0
0
0
0
1,487,070
273,371
0
1,760,441

C. Receipts from
State HighwayUser Taxes

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
AMOUNT
A. Local highway disbursements:
1. Capital outlay (from page 2)
398,465
2. Maintenance:
750,751
3. Road and street services:
a. Traffic control operations
15,297
b. Snow and ice removal
51,063
c. Other
3,665
d. Total (a. through c.)
70,024
4. General administration & miscellaneous
230,335
5. Highway law enforcement and safety
321,652
6. Total (1 through 5)
1,771,228
B. Debt service on local obligations:
1. Bonds:
a. Interest
0
b. Redemption
0
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
2. Notes:
a. Interest
0
b. Redemption
0
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
0
3. Total (1.c + 2.c)
C. Payments to State for highways
0
D. Payments to toll facilities
0
E. Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D)
1,771,228

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Amount Issued
Opening Debt

Redemptions

Closing Debt

0
0

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

Notes and Comments:

A. Beginning Balance
0

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)

B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance
1,760,441
1,771,228
0

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
1
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E. Reconciliation
(10,787)

(Next Page)

0000001MBL.xls

STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2021

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ITEM
A.3. Other local imposts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments
b. Other local imposts:
1. Sales Taxes
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees
3. Liens
4. Licenses
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other
6. Total (1. through 5.)
c. Total (a. + b.)

ITEM
A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Interest on investments
b. Traffic Fines & Penalities
c. Parking Garage Fees
d. Parking Meter Fees
e. Sale of Surplus Property
f. Charges for Services
459,629
g. Other Misc. Receipts
459,629
h. Other
459,629
i. Total (a. through h.)

AMOUNT

AMOUNT

0

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
C. Receipts from State Government
1. Highway-user taxes
2. State general funds
3. Other State funds:
a. State bond proceeds
b. Project Match
c. Motor Vehicle Registrations
d. Other (Specify)
e. Other (Specify)
f. Total (a. through e.)
4. Total (1. + 2. + 3.f)

AMOUNT
249,129

24,242
24,242
273,371

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
D. Receipts from Federal Government
1. FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
2. Other Federal agencies:
a. Forest Service
b. FEMA
c. HUD
d. Federal Transit Admin
e. U.S. Corps of Engineers
f. Other Federal
g. Total (a. through f.)
3. Total (1. + 2.g)

AMOUNT

0
(Carry forward to page 1)

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

A.1. Capital outlay:
a. Right-Of-Way Costs
b. Engineering Costs
c. Construction:
(1). New Facilities
(2). Capacity Improvements
(3). System Preservation
(4). System Enhancement & Operation
(5). Total Construction (1) + (2) + (3) + (4)
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5)

ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(a)

OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(b)
7,517

390,948
0
0

390,948
398,465

TOTAL
(c)
0
7,517
0
0
390,948
0
390,948
398,465
(Carry forward to page 1)

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

COLORADO

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 7c

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR;
CHRIS CRAMER, CITY MANAGER/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 13, SERIES 2022; APPROVING A REVOCABLE
ENCROACHMENT LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN ADAM H. AND
ADRINE S. WRITER AND THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE FOR
THE INSTALLATION, CONSTRUCTION, AND MAINTENANCE OF
CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

ISSUE
Shall City Council approve Resolution 13, Series 2022, granting a Revocable Encroachment
License to install, construct, and maintain a new sanitary sewer service line in Volunteer Park
which is owned by the City (Exhibit A)?
DISCUSSION
The owners of 6 Cherry Lane Drive are requesting to install a new service line from their home
to the sanitary sewer line located in Cherry Lane Drive which is situated to the west of the
property (see Exhibit B). Historically this service line has crossed Volunteer Park in the same
manner and general location as is being requested. Staff was unable to locate any previous
documentation granting the right for this property to install the private sanitary sewer line across
the City owned property. In order to better track and control private improvements within City
owned properties these type of installations must be documented and the use of a revocable
license gives the City more flexibility than an easement, if in the future changes or improvements
are desired.
Staff has contacted the Cherry Hills Village Sanitation District and confirmed that there is no
sanitary sewer line in the road adjacent to 6 Cherry Lane Drive that could be utilized to avoid the
need to have the service line cross the park in this manner. In addition to the Revocable License
the applicant would be required to obtain a right-of-way permit for the actual construction of the
G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO
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new line. The right-of-way permit will ensure that the restoration and revegetation of the site are
completed satisfactorily through the bond requirements. Restoration in this case may require
temporary irrigation or hand watering by the applicant to guarantee that the park is restored to its
current condition. Through the right-of-way process staff is able to monitor and inspect the
restoration for a two-year period.
BUDGET IMPACT
There is no negative budget impact to the City by issuing this Revocable License Agreement.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that City Council approve Resolution 13, Series 2022, entering into the
Revocable Encroachment License with Adam and Adrine Writer, owners of 6 Cherry Lane
Drive, with the condition that full restoration of the site be completed through temporary
irrigation or hand watering until vegetation is established in an acceptable manner.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve Resolution 13, Series 2022, approving a Revocable Encroachment License
Agreement between Adam H. Writer and Adrine S. Writer and the City of Cherry Hills Village
for the installation, construction, and maintenance of certain improvements on City-owned
property; and require the applicant to obtain a right-of-way permit for the construction of the line
and full restoration of the site, including vegetation reestablishment in a manner equal or better
than preconstruction conditions.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Resolution 13, Series 2022
Attachment A:
Revocable Encroachment License Agreement
Exhibit B:
Area Map
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RESOLUTION NO. 13
SERIES OF 2022

INTRODUCED BY: ____________________
SECONDED BY: ____________________

A RESOLUTION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
APPROVING A REVOCABLE ENCROACHMENT LICENSE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN ADAM H. WRITER AND ADRINE S. WRITER
AND THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
FOR THE INSTALLATION, CONSTRUCTION, AND MAINTENANCE OF
CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY
WHEREAS, the City of Cherry Hills Village (“City”) has the general authority, in
accordance with Section 31-15-101(1)(d), Colorado Revised Statutes, to acquire, hold and
dispose of real property; and
WHEREAS, Section 12.4 of the Cherry Hills Village Home Rule Charter provides that City
Council may grant permits for the temporary use or occupation of any street, alley or public place,
and establish conditions and compensation to be paid the City therefor; and
WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer service line servicing the property located at 6 Cherry Lane
Drive (the “Service Line”) has historically run through City-owned property known as Volunteer
Park, but the City has no record of authorizing such encroachment on its property; and
WHEREAS, the Service Line needs to be replaced because it is no longer serviceable,
and the City desires to authorize the replacement of the Service Line in its present location subject
to certain terms and conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve and enter into the attached Agreement
for the Grant of a Revocable Encroachment License (the “License Agreement”) according to the
terms and conditions set forth therein.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO THAT:
Section 1.
The City Council accepts and approves the License Agreement with Adam
H. Writer and Adrine S. Writer, as set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference, subject to minor modifications and revisions approved by the City Manager
and City Attorney that do not increase the City’s financial obligations, and authorizes the Mayor
to execute the same.
Section 2.

This Resolution is effective upon adoption.
Introduced, passed and adopted at the
regular meeting of City Council this __ day
of ___________, 2022, by a vote of _ yes _ no.

Resolution 13, Series 2022
Page 1 of 3

Russell O. Stewart, Mayor
ATTEST:

Approved as to form:

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

City Attorney

Resolution 13, Series 2022
Page 2 of 3

ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE,
COLORADO AND ADAM H. WRITER AND ADRINE S. WRITER FOR THE GRANT
OF A REVOCABLE ENCROACHMENT LICENSE TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, AND
MAINTAIN CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY

Resolution 13, Series 2022
Page 3 of 3

AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE,
COLORADO AND ADAM H. WRITER AND ADRINE S. WRITER FOR THE GRANT OF A
REVOCABLE ENCROACHMENT LICENSE TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, AND MAINTAIN
CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY
1.0

PARTIES. The parties to this Agreement are the CITY OF CHERRY HILLS
VILLAGE, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipality (the "City"), and
ADAM H. WRITER AND ADRINE S. WRITER (collectively, the “Licensee”).
This Agreement is effective upon execution by the Licensee and the City on
the date indicated below.

2.0

RECITALS AND PURPOSE.

3.0

2.1.

The City is the owner of certain property located in the City of Cherry
Hills Village, Arapahoe County, Colorado, commonly known as
Volunteer Park (“City Property”).

2.2.

The Licensee desires to encroach upon and occupy the City Property for
the purpose of installing, constructing, and maintaining certain private
improvements as more fully described herein, including but not limited
to (Sanitary Sewer Service Line).

2.3.

The City is willing to grant a revocable license to the Licensee under the
terms and conditions as hereinafter specified in this Agreement provided
that nothing in this Agreement shall waive or modify any obligation to
seek building permits, variances, or other approval necessary to meet
any obligation imposed by law. The Licensee remains obligated to apply
for and obtain all necessary permits and approvals and pay all required
fees and comply with all applicable local laws, including but not limited to
the provisions of Article II, Chapter 11 of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal
Code.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
3.1.

The City hereby grants to the Licensee a revocable license for the
encroachment and occupation by the following Improvements on the
City Property, described as follows:
(Sanitary Sewer Service Line for 6 Cherry Lane Drive):
being more specifically described and depicted in the attached Exhibit
A-1 and A-2 (“Improvements”). Nothing in this Agreement is intended
to waive, alter, modify, or permit any violation of any state or local law
applicable within the City of Cherry Hills Village. To the extent that the
location or other specifications of this License or any exhibit conflicts
with state or local laws, the more restrictive of the state or local law shall
govern.
Except for the encroachment and occupation of the Improvements
identified in this paragraph 3.1, no other encroachment, structure,

improvement, vehicle, fence, wall, landscaping, or any other real or
personal property shall be erected, installed, constructed, parked,
stored, kept, or maintained in any way or fashion on the City Property.
3.2.

The encroachment and occupation by the Improvements as specified in
paragraph 3.1 above shall continue for a period of (20) twenty years from
the date of this Agreement to the time that this Agreement is terminated.
This Agreement shall automatically renew for additional (20) twenty-year
periods unless otherwise terminated in accordance with this agreement.

3.3.

City Termination: The City may terminate this Agreement at any time
if the City Manager makes, in his or her sole discretion, a written
determination that removal of the Improvements is necessary to
protect the public health, safety, or welfare or is otherwise in the best
interests of the City. At such time as the City Manager makes a
determination that removal of the Improvements is necessary, the
City Manager shall also determine the reasonable period of time
within which the Improvements must be removed by the Licensee.
Except in the case of a public safety emergency or where a shorter
period of time is justified due to the nature of the Improvements, the
Licensee shall customarily not be required to remove the
Improvements within less than thirty (30) days of notice to the
Licensee. The City may also terminate this Agreement at any time in
the case of a declaration by the City Council for the City of Cherry
Hills Village that a public safety emergency exists by giving written
notice to the Licensee five (5) days in advance of the effective date of
termination.

3.4.

Licensee Termination: The Licensee may terminate this Agreement
at any time by delivery of written notice of termination to the City which
notice shall state an appropriate date of termination consistent with
the requirements of this paragraph. Prior to delivery of such notice,
the Licensee shall consult with the City to determine whether the City
directs that the Improvements be removed as a condition of
termination. Should the City direct removal of one or more of the
Improvements, the Licensee shall cause such Improvements to be
removed at Licensee's cost and expense prior to the effective date
of termination stated in the notice of termination. Should the City
consent to or permit one or more of the Improvements to remain
within the City Property, the Licensee shall cause all other
Improvements to be removed at the Licensee's cost and expense
prior to the date of termination stated in the Licensee's notice of
termination and, as to those Improvements to which the City has
consented to their remaining in place, the Licensee agrees to one of
the following options, as determined by the City in its sole discretion:
(1) convey such remaining Improvements to the City by affirmatively
declaring in the Licensee's notice of termination that such
Improvements remaining within the City Property following the date of
termination are owned by the Licensee and are deemed conveyed

upon the date of termination by the Licensee to the City and that the
Licensee neither requests nor desires any additional compensation
for the conveyance of such Improvements (the Parties recognizing
and agreeing that, by the City's consenting to and or permitting such
Improvements to remain within the City Property, the Licensee is
relieved of the cost and expense of removal of such Improvements
and such relief is sufficient and adequate consideration for
conveyance of such Improvements to the City); or (2) enter into a
new agreement with the City by which ongoing maintenance of the
remaining Improvements and liability with respect to such
Improvements are addressed to the City’s satisfaction.
3.5.

The Licensee expressly agrees to, and shall, indemnify and hold
harmless the City and any of its officers, agents, or employees from
any and all claims, damages, liability, or court awards, including
costs and attorney's fees that are or may be awarded as a result of
any loss, injury or damage sustained or claimed to have been
sustained by anyone, including but not limited to, any person, firm,
partnership, or corporation, in connection with or arising out of any
omission or act of commission by the Licensee or any of its
employees, agents, partners, or lessees, in encroaching upon the
City Property. In particular and without limiting the scope of the
foregoing agreement to indemnify and hold harmless, the Licensee
shall indemnify the City for all claims, damages, liability, or court
awards, including costs and attorney's fees that are or may be
awarded as a result of any loss, injury or damage sustained or
claimed to have been sustained by anyone, including but not limited
to, any person, firm, partnership, or corporation, in connection with
or arising out of any claim in whole or in part that all or any portion of
the Improvements and encroachments permitted by this Agreement
constitutes a dangerous or unsafe condition within a public right-ofway.

3.6.

The Licensee agrees that it will never institute any action or suit at
law or in equity against the City or any of its officers or employees,
nor institute, prosecute, or in any way aid in the institution or
prosecution of any claim, demand, or compensation for or on account
of any damages, loss, or injury either to person or property, or both,
known or unknown, past, present or future, arising as a result of or
from the revocable license granted to the Licensee by this
Agreement. This provision includes but is not limited to claims relating
to road maintenance, snow removal or other public works activities
performed by or on behalf of the City.

3.7.

The Licensee agrees to (1) construct, maintain, and repair the
Improvements placed or located, or to be placed or located on the
City Property by the Licensee or its lessees, agents, employees, or
other persons under the control or direction of the Licensee pursuant
to this Agreement; and (2) remove or maintain and repair the existing
sanitary sewer service line, at the cost and expense of the Licensee
and at no cost or expense to the City, and shall return all City Property
disturbed by such activities including, but not limited to, ground cuts

or excavation necessary to construct the improvements, to its
condition as existed prior to such activities. The Licensee agrees to
remove or cover graffiti or other damage caused to the
Improvement(s) within a reasonable time following notice or
knowledge of such damage or within forty-eight (48) hours of delivery
to the Licensee of a written demand by the City, whichever is earlier.
The Licensee shall not erect, cause to be erected or permit the
erection of any sign, advertising object, or illustration upon any
improvement, structure, fence, or wall placed or located by the City
Property pursuant to this Agreement and shall promptly remove any
such sign or advertising.
3.8.

Improvements shall be installed and located such that proper sight
distances for vehicle drivers are provided, as determined by the City
Traffic Engineer. Mature landscaping shall not interfere with sight
distance or street sign visibility, encroach on the sidewalk pedestrian
space, or extend over utility boxes, manholes or other public facilities.
Landscaping installed by the Licensee shall be maintained in living
and healthy condition at the sole expense of the Licensee

3.9.

The Licensee agrees that the City is not liable, and will not assume
any liability, responsibility, or costs for any damage, maintenance, or
repair of any Improvements erected or maintained by the Licensee.

3.10.

The Licensee agrees to repair and reconstruct any damage to the
City Property upon termination of this Agreement or removal of the
Improvements described in paragraph 3.1 and any other
improvements erected by the Licensee on the City Property and the
Licensee shall return the City Property to its original condition at the
cost and expense of the Licensee and at no cost or expense to the
City.

3.9

The Licensee agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a
policy or policies of insurance protecting against injury, damage or
loss occurring on the licensed premises in the minimum amount of
$600,000.00 per occurrence. Such policy or policies shall be
endorsed to name the City as an "additional insured." However, the
Licensee's failure to take such steps to insure the premises shall not
waive, affect, or impair any obligation of the Licensee to indemnify or hold
the City harmless in accordance with this Agreement.

4.0

ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement shall not be assigned by the Licensee without
the prior written consent of the City which may withhold its consent for any
reason; provided that the City encourages the Licensee to inform any purchaser
of the Licensee's property or interests of the existence of this Agreement and the
City will promptly consider any request by the Licensee for assignment of this
Agreement to such purchaser.

5.0

NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if personally
served or if sent by certified mail or registered mail, postage and fees prepaid,
addressed to the party to whom such notice is to be given at the address set

forth on the signature page below, the address of the registered agent for such
party, or at such other address as has been previously furnished in writing, to
the other party or parties. Such notice shall be deemed to have been given when
deposited in the United States Mail.
6.0

INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT. This Agreement represents the entire
agreement between the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements
or understandings. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in
writing signed by the parties. If any other provision of this Agreement is held
invalid or unenforceable, no other provision shall be affected by such holding,
and all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force
and effect. Invalidation of the Agreement in its entirety shall revoke any
authorization, whether explicit or implied, to the continuing use and occupancy
of the City Property for the Improvements.

7.0

GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws

8.0

WAIVER OF BREACH. A waiver by any party to this Agreement of the breach
of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as
a waiver of any subsequent breach by either party.

9.0

BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding
upon, the parties, their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and
assigns; provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to
permit the assignment of this Agreement except as otherwise expressly
authorized herein.

10.0

UNDERLYING INTENT AND SCOPE. It is the intent of this Agreement that the
City shall incur no cost or expense attributable to or arising from the
construction, maintenance, or operation of the Improvements and
encroachments permitted by or referenced in this Agreement and that, in all
instances, the risk of loss, liability, obligation, damages, and claims associated
with the encroachments shall be borne by the Licensee. This Agreement does
not confer upon the Licensee any other right, permit, license, approval, or
consent other than that expressly provided for herein and this Agreement shall
not be construed to waive, modify, amend, or alter the application of any other
federal, state, or local laws, including laws governing zoning, land use, property
maintenance, or nuisance.

11.0

AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTY. Each of the undersigned persons
represents that such person is expressly authorized to execute this
Agreement on behalf of his or her respective Party and to bind his or her
respective Party and that the other Party may rely upon such representation
of authority.

of the State of Colorado and venue for any action arising under this agreement
shall be in the appropriate court for Arapahoe County, Colorado.

DATED THIS _____ DAY OF ____________, 20__.

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE:
By: ___________________________
Russell O. Stewart, Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM (excluding exhibits):
__________________________
For City Attorney’s Office
LICENSEE:

LICENSEE:

_______________________________

_______________________________

Printed name: ____________________

Printed name: ____________________

Address: ________________________

Address: ________________________

________________________________

________________________________

STATE OF COLORADO
COUNTY OF ARAPAHOE

)
) ss.
)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of
______________, 20__, personally by ________________________.
_________________________________
Notary Public

(SEAL)

Commission expires:

EXHIBITS A-1 and A-2
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EXHIBIT A-1
REVOCABLE ENCROACHMENT LICENSE
THE REVOCABLE ENCROACHMENT LICENSE IS GENERALLY LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHERRY
HILLS VILLAGE, COUNTY OF ARAPAHOE, STATE OF COLORADO, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE WESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 33, CHERRY HILLS ANNEX, AS RECORDED IN
RECEPTION NUMBER 457181, IN ARAPAHOE COUNTY RECORDS;
THENCE S 55°04’17” E ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY LOT LINE OF SAID LOT 33 AS PLATTED A DISTANCE
OF 102.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE S 50°58’41” W ALONG SAID CENTERLINE A DISTANCE OF 168.63 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF
THE SANITARY SEWER MAIN AND THE POINT OF TERMINUS.

CURTIS M. LANDRY, P.L.S. 28275
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF CJ SURVEYING, LLC

Exhibit B
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: 7d

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 2022 CONCRETE CIP ESSENTIAL
CONTRACTORS
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

ISSUE
Shall City Council approve the Construction Contract with Essential Contractors for the 2022
Street Improvement Program Concrete Project (Exhibit A)?
DISCUSSION
On May 19, 2022, the City accepted bids for the 2022 Street Improvement Program Concrete
Project. The project includes the removal and replacement of 1800 linear feet of gutter pan on
Sunrise Drive.
The following bids were received:
COMPANY
ESSENTIAL CONTRACTORS
STRAIGHT LINE SAWCUTTING, INC.
ENGINEERED PAVING
FASICK CONCRETE, INC.

BID AMOUNT
$79,200.00
$94,374.00
$110,070.00
$120,600.00

Essential Contractors was the low bid for the 2022 Concrete Capital Improvement Program. This
will be the first time the City has utilized this firm; therefore, staff has vetted Essential
Contractors’ references with several local municipalities as to their prior performance. Based on
their references staff feels that Essential Contractors can produce the quality of work that meets
the City’s expectations and contract requirements.

G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO
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BUDGET IMPACT
There is a total of $80,400.00 budgeted in 2022 for this project within the Capital Improvement
Budget. There is no negative impact on the budget as the proposed contract amount is within the
2022 budgeted amount.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff is requesting approval of the Construction Contract with Essential Contractors in the
amount of $79,200.00. There is a total of $80,400.00 in the 2022 Capital Improvement Budget
for this project. Staff is requesting that City Council also approve an owner contingency for this
project of $1,200.00, bringing the total maximum expenditure to $80,400.00.
City Attorney Guckenberger has reviewed the Contract for Services and approved it as to form.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the Construction Contract with Essential Contractors in the amount of
$79,200.00 with an owner contingency of $1,200.00 for a total maximum expenditure of
$80,400.00 and I further move to authorize the City Attorney to make such changes as may be
needed to correct any nonmaterial errors or language or to negotiate such changes to the
agreement as may be appropriate and do not substantially increase the obligations of the City and
to authorize the Mayor to sign such agreement when in final form.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: Contract for Services with Essential Contractors
Exhibit B: General Conditions and Specifications of the Contract
Exhibit C: Form of Bid-Essential Contractors

G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO
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Exhibit A

CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT:

2022 CONCRETE PROJECT

City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2022-002
This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into by and between Essential
Contractors (hereinafter, “Contractor”), a corporation registered to operate in the State of Colorado having
a principal office address of 2447 S Zeno Street, Aurora, CO 80013 and the CITY OF CHERRY HILLS
VILLAGE (hereinafter, “City” or “Owner”), a home rule municipal corporation of the State of Colorado,
having an address of 2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113 (collectively, the
City and Contractor may be referred to herein as the “Parties” or individually as “Party”).
In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:
PART 1 – WORK; TIME
1.01
The Contractor agrees to furnish all of the technical, administrative, professional, and other labor,
all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, vehicles, local travel, office space and facilities, testing and
analyses, calculations, and any other facilities or resources necessary to perform in a workmanlike manner
all Work required by the Contract Documents.
1.02
This Contract shall be effective as of the date of its mutual execution by the Parties (“Effective
Date”). The Contractor agrees to undertake the performance of the Work within One Hundred Twenty
(120) days following the Notice of Award and agrees that the Work will be completed within twenty (20)
working days (holidays, weekends, and inclement weather excluded) of the date of the Notice to Proceed
unless the Contract Time is extended by the City as provided in the Contract Documents.
1.03
The Parties agree that, in any section in which the Contractor prepares any document for “the
approval of the City,” such subsequent approval by the City does not mean that City is responsible for the
accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment contained in the document. The City does not waive the right to hold
the Contractor responsible for the accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment expressed in the document, as it is
expressly agreed by the Parties that the City is relying on the expertise of the Contractor for the timely
completion of the Work required by the Contract Documents.
PART 2 – CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT
2.01
The City shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents the amount(s) shown on Contractor's Form of Bid, Items 1 - 3, not to exceed Seventy Nine
Thousand Two Hundred Dollars and No Cents) ($79,200.00). The amount the City has appropriated for
this Contract is an amount that is, at a minimum, equal to the Contract Sum stated in this paragraph.
1
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2.02
The City shall make payments as set forth in Article 9 of the General Conditions, subject to the
City's obligation to retain a portion of the payments until final completion and acceptance by the City of all
Work included in the Contract Documents.
2.03
Prior to final payment, all Work specified by the Contract Documents must be completed. Payment
shall be made only after the procedure specified by the General Conditions is completed.
2.04
The City represents that either an appropriation for the price specified in this Construction Contract
has been made by the City Council or that sufficient funds have otherwise been made available for the
payment of this Construction Contract.
2.05
The Parties understand and acknowledge that the City of Cherry Hills Village is subject to Article
X § 20 of the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR”). The Parties do not intend to violate the terms and
requirements of TABOR by the execution of this Contract. It is understood and agreed that this Contract
does not create a multi-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or obligation within the meaning of TABOR and,
therefore, notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, all payment obligations of the City are
expressly dependent and conditioned upon the continuing availability of the funds beyond the term of the
City’s current fiscal period ending upon the next succeeding December 31. Financial obligations of the
City payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated,
budgeted, and otherwise made available in accordance with the rules, regulations, and resolutions of the
City of Cherry Hills Village and other applicable law. Upon the failure to appropriate such funds, this
Contract shall be terminated.
2.06
Beginning on the Effective Date, Contractor may apply for payment to the Project Manager no
more frequently than every thirty (30) days for Work completed. Upon issuance of a Certificate for Payment
by the Project Manager, the City shall pay Contractor in accordance with Article 9 of the General
Conditions.
PART 3 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS
3.01
In order to induce the City to enter into this Construction Contract, the Contractor makes the
following representations:
(a) The Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and the extent of the Contract Documents,
Work, the location and site of the Work and any and all local conditions and federal, state and local laws,
ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders that in any manner may affect cost, progress, or performance of
the Work.
(b) Contractor has carefully studied all physical conditions at the site and existing facilities
affecting cost, progress, or performance of the Work.
(c) Contractor has given the City written notice of all conflicts, errors, or discrepancies that it has
discovered in the Contract Documents and, if applicable, the written resolution(s) thereof by the City is/are
acceptable to the Contractor.
(d)
Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under this Contract. Contractor shall not contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with any illegal aliens to perform work under
this Contract. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies as of the date of this Contract that has
confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment and who will
perform work under the public contract for services through participation in the e-verify program or
2
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department program. The Contractor is prohibited from using either the e-verify program or the department
program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Contract is being
performed. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this
Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall be required to notify the
subcontractor and the City within three (3) days that the Contractor has actual knowledge that a
subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien. The Contractor shall terminate the
subcontract if the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three
(3) days of receiving the notice regarding Contractor’s actual knowledge. The Contractor shall not
terminate the subcontract if, during such three (3) days, the subcontractor provides information to establish
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. The Contractor is
required to comply with any reasonable request made by the Department of Labor and Employment made
in the course of an investigation undertaken to determine compliance with this provision and applicable
state law. If the Contractor violates this provision, the City may terminate this Contract, and the Contractor
may be liable for actual and/or consequential damages incurred by the City, notwithstanding any limitation
on such damages otherwise provided by this Contract.
3.02
Contractor agrees to remedy all defects appearing in the Work or developing in the materials
furnished and the workmanship performed under this Construction Contract for a period of one (1) year or
such other time that is specified in the Contract Documents after the date of acceptance of the Work by the
City, and further agrees to indemnify and save the City harmless from any costs encountered in remedying
such defects. Contractor shall provide a performance, payment, maintenance and warranty bond that shall
remain in effect until all defects are corrected as required by this paragraph.
PART 4 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
4.01 The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire Construction Contract between the City and the
Contractor, are attached to this Construction Contract and made a part hereof by this reference, including:
Invitation for Bids
Other: _____________________________
Instructions to Bidders
Bid Bond
Bid Form
Notice of Award
Notice to Proceed
Construction Contract
Construction Drawings
Specifications
Right-of-Way Standards
Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
General Conditions, including table of contents
Special Conditions
Construction Contract Addenda
Change Orders, Change Order Directives, and Order for Minor Change in Work
Insurance Certificates and Endorsements
Tax-Exempt Certificates
In the event of an inconsistency between any provisions of the Contract Documents, the more specific
provisions shall govern the less specific provisions, and written addenda, change orders, or other
modifications approved in writing by both Parties subsequent to the date of this Contract as set forth on
page 1 hereof shall govern the original Contract Documents.

3
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4.02
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above. The Contract Documents may
only be altered, amended, or repealed by a modification, in writing, executed by the City and the Contractor
as provided in Part 9 of this Contract and as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.
PART 5 - PROJECT MANAGER AND SUPERINTENDENT
5.01
The Project Manager, for the purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following, or such other
person or firm as the City may designate in writing:
Name:
Address:
Telephone:
Email:

Ryan Berninzoni
2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
303-783-2741
rberninzoni@cherryhillsvillage.com

The Project Manager is authorized to represent and act as agent for the City with respect to the City’s rights
and duties under the Contract Documents, provided, however, the Project Manager shall not have any
authority to approve any Change Order or approve any amendment to the Construction Contract or Contract
Documents, except for those minor Change Orders defined in paragraph 7.4.1 of the General Conditions,
such authority being specifically reserved to the duly authorized official of the City having such approval
authority pursuant to the City’s Charter and ordinances. In the event of doubt as to such authority, the
Contractor may request a written representation from the City Manager resolving such doubt and
designating the person with authority under the circumstances, which written representation shall be
conclusive and binding upon the City.
5.02
The Contractor’s Superintendent, for purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following and is
subject to Article 3 (Section 3.9) of the General Conditions and such other obligations as the Contract
Documents may specify:
Name: Essential Contractors “Jahn Castillo”
Address: 2447 S Zeno Street
Telephone: 720-492-5363
Email: castillo@essentailcontractors.net
PART 6 - ASSIGNMENT
6.01
No assignment by a Party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents will be
binding on another Party hereto without the written consent of the Party sought to be bound; and
specifically, but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law),
and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. This
restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the Contractor's right to payment to
its surety or lender.
6.02
It is agreed that this Construction Contract shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties
hereto, their heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors.
PART 7 - GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE
7.01
This Construction Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado and the Charter
and ordinances of the City of Cherry Hills Village.
4
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7.02
This Construction Contract shall be deemed entered into in Arapahoe County, State of Colorado,
as the City is located in said county. The location for settlement of any and all claims, controversies, and
disputes arising out of or related to this Construction Contract or any breach thereof, whether by alternative
dispute resolution or litigation, shall be proper only in Arapahoe County.
PART 8 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
8.01
The City and the Contractor recognize that time is of the essence in this Construction Contract and
that the City will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially completed within the time specified
in paragraph 1.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed by the City by written Change Order or
Construction Change Directive. They also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in
proving, in a legal or arbitration proceeding, the actual loss suffered by the City if the Work is not
substantially complete on time. Accordingly, rather than requiring any such proof, the City and the
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) the Contractor shall pay the
City the applicable amount set forth in the General Conditions for each day that expires after the time
specified in paragraph 1.02 until the Work is complete. It is agreed that this is a reasonable estimate of the
damages likely to be suffered by the City for late completion of the Work. If the Contractor shall fail to
pay such liquidated damages promptly upon demand therefor, the Surety on the Performance, Payment,
Maintenance and Warranty Bond shall pay such damages. In addition, and at the City’s option, the City
may withhold all or any part of such liquidated damages from any payment due the Contractor.
PART 9 - MODIFICATIONS
This Construction Contract shall be modified only by written Change Orders or Addenda agreed upon by
the Parties hereto, duly issued in form approved by the City Attorney and in conformance with the other
Contract Documents. Pursuant to Article 7 of the General Conditions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time
may be changed by a Change Order only. The City shall not approve any Contract modification that
increases the Contract Sum without providing the Contractor written assurance that the City has
appropriated funds for the additional amounts.
Notwithstanding the paragraph immediately above, the City reserves the right to renew this Construction
Contract for up to three (3) additional years, in its sole discretion, all terms and conditions to remain the
same with the exception of the prices to be paid for the required maintenance, work, and materials. No
later than October 1 of the year in which this Contract takes effect, the Contractor may submit to the Project
Manager a revised price schedule for the succeeding year. The Project Manager shall accept or reject the
revised price schedule by written notification to the Contractor on or before December 1 of that same year.
The Project Manager’s acceptance of the revised price schedule shall constitute notice of the City’s intent
to exercise its option to renew this Contract for an additional year, subject to final approval of such renewal
by City Council or such other duly authorized official of the City having such approval authority pursuant
to the City’s Charter and ordinances; and subject to annual appropriation. Any renewal of this Contract for
an additional year shall be pursuant to a written letter amendment to the Contract signed by both Parties,
and such renewal shall be exempt from competitive bidding requirements pursuant to Section 4-3-20(b)(5)
of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code.
PART 10 - CONTINGENCY
This Construction Contract is expressly contingent upon the approval of the City of all of the terms set forth
herein. In the event this Construction Contract is not approved in its entirety by the City, neither Party shall
be bound to the terms of this Construction Contract.
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The person or persons signing and executing this Construction Contract on behalf of each Party do hereby
warrant and guarantee that he/she or they have been fully authorized to execute this Construction Contract and
to validly and legally bind such Party to all the terms, performances, and provisions herein set forth.
No officer or employee or agent of the City shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under
or growing out of the Contract.
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BY THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THIS
CONTRACT SHALL BE SENT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, CITY OF CHERRY
HILLS VILLAGE, ATTENTION: RYAN BERNINZONI, PROJECT MANAGER
PART 11 – INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
11.01 General. Contractor is an independent contractor. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Contract, all personnel assigned by Contractor to perform work under the terms of this Contract shall
be, and remain at all times, employees or agents of Contractor for all purposes. Contractor shall make
no representation that it is a City employee for any purposes.
11.02 Liability for Employment-Related Rights and Compensation. The Contractor shall be solely
responsible for all compensation, benefits, insurance and employment-related rights of any person
completing the Work hereunder during the course of or arising or accruing as a result of any
employment, whether past or present, with the Contractor, as well as all legal costs including attorney’s
fees incurred in the defense of any conflict or legal action resulting from such employment or related
to the corporate amenities of such employment. The Contractor will comply with all laws, regulations,
municipal codes, and ordinances and other requirements and standards applicable to the Contractor’s
employees, including, without limitation, federal and state laws governing wages and overtime, equal
employment, safety and health, employees’ citizenship, withholdings, reports and record keeping.
Accordingly, the City shall not be called upon to assume any liability for or direct payment of any
salaries, wages, contribution to pension funds, insurance premiums or payments, workers’
compensation benefits or any other amenities of employment to any of the Contractor’s employees or
any other liabilities whatsoever, unless otherwise specifically provided herein.
11.03 Insurance Coverage and Employment Benefits. The City will not include the Contractor as an
insured under any policy the City has for itself. The City shall not be obligated to secure nor provide
any insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or the
Contractor’s employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors, agents, or representatives, including but not
limited to coverage or benefits related to: local, state, or federal income or other tax contributions,
FICA, workers’ compensation, unemployment compensation, medical insurance, life insurance, paid
vacations, paid holidays, pension or retirement account contributions, profit sharing, professional
liability insurance, or errors and omissions insurance. The following disclosure is provided in
accordance with Colorado law:

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT NOR ITS AGENTS OR
EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS
UNLESS CONTRACTOR OR SOME ENTITY OTHER THAN THE CITY PROVIDES
SUCH BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT
NOR ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES ARE ENTITLED TO WORKERS’
COMPENSATION BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR ALSO ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS
6
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OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON ANY MONEYS
EARNED OR PAID PURSUANT TO THIS CONTRACT.
11.04 Employee Benefits Claims. To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Contractor waives all
claims against the City for any Employee Benefits; the Contractor will defend the City from any claim
and will indemnify the City against any liability for any Employee Benefits for the Contractor imposed
on the City; and the Contractor will reimburse the City for any award, judgment, or fine against the
City based on the position the Contractor was ever the City’s employee, and all attorneys’ fees and
costs the City reasonably incurs defending itself against any such liability.
PART 12 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
12.01 Compliance with Laws and Regulations. All of the Work performed under this Contract by the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and codes of the United States and
the State of Colorado. The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions of the City and shall commit no trespass on any public or private property in the performance
of any of the Work identified in this Contract.
12.02 ADA Compliance. Contractor shall comply with applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended from time to time (the “ADA”), and any other applicable federal
regulation. A signed, written certificate stating compliance with the ADA may be requested at any
time during the term, or any Renewal Term, of this Contract.
12.03 Severability. In the event any of the provisions of this Contract are held to be unenforceable or
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be
affected, provided that the remaining provisions without the invalidated provisions are consistent with
the Parties’ intent. Should either Party fail to enforce a specific term of this Contract it shall not be a
waiver of a subsequent right of enforcement, nor shall it be deemed a modification or alteration of the
terms and conditions contained herein.
12.04 Retention and Open Records Act Compliance. All records of the Contractor related to the
completion of the Work hereunder, including public records as defined in the Colorado Open Records
Act (“CORA”), and records produced or maintained in accordance with this Contract, are to be
retained and stored in accordance with the City’s records retention and disposal policies. Those
records which constitute “public records” under CORA are to be at the City offices or accessible and
opened for public inspection in accordance with CORA and City policies. Public records requests
for such records shall be processed in accordance with City policies. Contractor agrees to allow
access by the City and the public to all documents subject to disclosure under applicable law.
Contractor’s willful failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this paragraph shall result in
the immediate termination of this Contract by the City. For purposes of CORA, the City Clerk is the
custodian of all records produced or created as a result of this Contract. Nothing contained herein
shall limit the Contractor’s right to defend against disclosure of records alleged to be public.
12.05 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Contract and all
rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the City and the Contractor,
and nothing contained in this Contract shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any
other or third person under such Contract.
12.06 Headings. The headings contained in this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall not in
any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.
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12.07 Entire Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions contained herein
constitute the entire agreement and that all representations made by any elected official, officer,
director, agent or employee of the respective Parties unless included herein are null and void and of
no effect. No alterations, amendments, changes, or modifications to this Contract, except those which
are expressly reserved herein to the Project Manager and/or the Superintendent, shall be valid unless
they are contained in writing and executed by all the Parties with the same formality as this Contract.
12.08 Contract Controls. In the event a conflict exists between this Contract and any term in any exhibit
attached or incorporated into this Contract, the terms in this Contract shall supersede the terms in
such exhibit.
12.09 Release of Information. The Contractor shall not, without the prior written approval of the City,
release any privileged or confidential information obtained in connection with the Work or this
Contract.
12.010
Survival. The Parties understand and agree that all terms and conditions of the Contract
that require continued performance, compliance, or effect beyond the termination date of the Contract
shall survive such termination date and shall be enforceable in the event of a failure to perform or
comply.
12.011
Binding Effect. The Parties agree that this Contract, by its terms, shall be binding upon the
successors, heirs, legal representatives, and assigns; provided that this section shall not authorize
assignment.
12.012
Protection of Personal Identifying Information. If the Work includes or requires the City
to disclose to Contractor any personal identifying information as defined in C.R.S. § 24-73-101,
Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of C.R.S. §§ 24-73-101, et seq., relating to
third-party service providers.
12.013
Authority. The individuals executing this Contract represent that they are expressly
authorized to enter into this Contract on behalf of the City of Cherry Hills Village and the Contractor
and bind their respective entities.
12.014
Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. In addition,
the Parties specifically acknowledge and agree that electronic signatures shall be effective for all
purposes, in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, Title 24,
Article 71.3 of the Colorado Revised Statutes.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Construction Contract in triplicate. Two
counterparts have been delivered to the City and one counterpart has been delivered to the Contractor. All
portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by the City and the Contractor.

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE,
COLORADO

By: __________________________________
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Russell O. Stewart, Mayor
Date: _________________________________
ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

______________________________
Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

_____________________________________
Kathie Guckenberger, City Attorney

DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBLE FOR ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT: PUBLIC WORKS
CONTRACTOR:
By:

____________________________________

Name: ____________________________________
Title:

____________________________

Date:

____________________________________

STATE OF _______________ )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ______________ )
The foregoing Construction Contract was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________________,
2022, by _____________________ as ________________________ of ( contractor)
Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires: ____________________.
Notary Public
(Required for all contracts pursuant to C.R.S.
§ 8-40-202(2)(b)(IV))
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GENERAL CONDITIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS TO THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
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ARTICLE 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1

DEFINITIONS

1.1.1 “Application for Payment” means the Contractor’s request for payment submitted to the Project
Manager according to the process set forth in paragraphs 9.3.1- 9.3.4.
1.1.2

“Bidding Documents” means the Notice to Bidders; Request for Proposals; Invitation to Bid;
Instructions to Bidders; Bid Proposal; Bid Schedule; and Bid Bond, as applicable.

1.1.3

“Certificate for Payment” means the amount approved for payment by the Project Manager
after the receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, as more fully defined in
paragraph 9.4.1.

1.1.4

“Change Order” means a written order to the Contractor, signed by the Contractor and the
Owner stating their agreement upon a change in the Work; the amount of the adjustment in the
Contract Sum, if any; or the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any, as more fully
defined in paragraph 7.2.

1.1.5

“Claim” means a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right,
adjustment of contract terms, payment of money, extension of time, or other relief with respect
to the terms of the Construction Contract, or other disputes between the Owner and Contractor
arising out of or relating to the Construction Contract.

1.1.6

“Construction Change Directive” means a written order directed to the Contractor and signed
by the Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if
any, in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both, as defined more fully in paragraphs 7.3.17.3.9.

1.1.7

“Construction Contract” or “Contract” means the entire and integrated agreement between the
parties hereto, evidenced by the Contract Documents, which supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral, subject only to amendment or
modification as permitted by Article 7 and as permitted by the Construction Contract.

1.1.8

“Contract Documents” means the Construction Contract, the Conditions of the Contract
(General, Special, Supplementary and other Conditions, as applicable), the Drawings, the
Specifications, all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the
Contract, and all other documents listed in the Contract, including the Bidding Documents, the
Notice of Award, Notice to Proceed; Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond;
Certificates of Insurance; and Tax-Exempt Certificates. Nothing contained in the Contract
Documents creates any contractual relationship between the Owner any subcontractor, sub-
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subcontractor, or supplier of equipment or materials (except as provided in paragraph 5.3
hereof).
1.1.9

“Contract Sum” means the amount stated in paragraph 2.01 of the Construction Contract and,
including authorized adjustments thereto, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the
Contractor for the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

1.1.10 “Contract Time” means the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for Substantial
Completion of the Work, including authorized adjustments thereto.
1.1.11 “Contractor” means the person or entity identified as such in the Construction Contract or an
authorized representative thereof.
1.1.12 “Date of Commencement of the Work” is the date established in the Notice to Proceed. If there
is no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Construction Contract or such other date as
may be established therein.
1.1.13 The “Date of Substantial Completion” is the date certified by the Project Manager in
accordance with paragraph 9.8.
1.1.14 “Day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
designated.
1.1.15 “Drawings” are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents, wherever located
and whenever issued, showing the design, location and dimensions of the Work, generally
including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.
1.1.16 “Final Completion” means the finding by the Project Manager that the final Certificate for
Payment should be issued based on his knowledge, information and belief that the Work has
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and
that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor, and noted in said final Certificate for
Payment, is due and payable, as more fully defined in paragraph 9.10.1.
1.1.17 “Modification” means (1) a written amendment to the Construction Contract signed by both
parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written Order for a
Minor Change in the Work approved by the Owner pursuant to paragraph 7.4.
1.1.18 “Notice to Proceed” means the form issued by the City and accepted in writing by the
Contractor that notifies Contractor to begin work on or before a date certain, establishes an end
date, and returns bid security.
1.1.19 “Order for a Minor Change in the Work” means an order for minor changes in the Work issued
by the Project Manager not involving an adjustment to the Contract Sum or extending the
Contract Time as permitted by paragraph 7.4.1.
1.1.20 “Owner” means the person or entity identified as such in the Construction Contract or an
authorized representative thereof. The term “City of Cherry Hills Village” or “City” may be
used interchangeably with the term “Owner”.
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1.1.21 “Product Data” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.2.
1.1.22 “Project” means the total construction of which the Work performed under the Construction
Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the
Owner or by separate contractors.
1.1.23 “Project Manager” means the City representative identified as such in Part 5 of the Contract.
1.1.24 “Project Manual” means the volume usually assembled for the Work which may include the
bidding requirements, sample forms, conditions of the Contract, and Specifications.
1.1.25 “Samples” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.3.
1.1.26 “Shop Drawings” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph 3.12.1.
1.1.27 “Specifications” are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written
requirements for materials, equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship for
the Work, and performance of related services.
1.1.28 “Subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to
perform any of the Work at the site or an authorized representative thereof. "Subcontractor"
does not include any separate contractor or his subcontractor.
1.1.29 “Substantial Completion” means the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work (or
designated portion thereof that the Owner agrees to accept separately) is sufficiently complete
in accordance with the Contract Documents so the Owner can occupy or use the Work for its
intended use as more fully explained in paragraph 9.8.
1.1.30 “Sub-subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a
subcontractor to perform any of the Work at the site or an authorized representative thereof.
1.1.31 “Underground Utilities” means any below ground line, structure, facility or installation used
by a utility or service provider including, but not limited to, telephone company lines, cable
and conduit; cable television lines, cable and conduit; internet lines, cable and conduit; sewer
lines and water lines, including individual sewer and water service lines; stormwater lines; gas
lines; electrical lines, cables and conduit; and traffic signal lines, cable and conduit.
1.1.32 “Work” means the construction, deliverables, and services required by the Contract
Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials,
equipment, and services provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor's
obligations for the completed construction required by the Contract Documents. The Work
may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.
1.2
1.2.1

EXECUTION, CORRELATION AND INTENT
The Contract Documents shall be signed in not less than triplicate by the Owner and Contractor
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and shall be maintained by the Project Manager.
1.2.2 By executing the Construction Contract, the Contractor represents that he has visited the site,
familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his
observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
In connection with the foregoing, and having carefully examined all Contract Documents, as
aforesaid, and having visited the site, and having familiarized himself with the site construction
circumstances of the Project, the Contractor acknowledges and declares that it has no knowledge of any
discrepancies, omissions, ambiguities, or conflicts in said Contract Documents and that if it becomes aware
of any such discrepancies, omissions, ambiguities, or conflicts, it will promptly notify Owner and Project
Manager of such fact.
1.2.3 The Contract Documents include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of
the Work by the Contractor. The Work shall consist of all items specifically included in the Contract
Documents as well as all additional items of work which are reasonably inferable from that which is
specified in order to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contract
Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one Contract Document shall be as binding as
if required by all. Any differences between the requirements of the Drawings and the Specifications or any
differences within the Drawings themselves or within the Specifications themselves have been referred to
the Owner by Contractor prior to the submission of bids and have been clarified by an Addendum issued to
all Bidders.
If any such differences or conflicts were not called to the Owner’s attention prior to submission of
bids, the Project Manager shall decide which of the conflicting requirements will govern based upon the
most stringent of the requirements, and subject to the approval of the Owner, the Contractor shall perform
the Work at no additional cost or Contract Time to the Owner in accordance with the Project Manager’s
decision. Work not covered in the Contract Documents will not be required unless it is consistent therewith
and is reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results.
1.2.4 The organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and the arrangement of
Drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among subcontractors or in establishing the
extent of Work to be performed by any trade.
1.2.5 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words and abbreviations which have wellknown technical or trade meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized
meanings.
1.2.6 In the interest of brevity, the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all”
and “any” and articles such as “the” and “an.” The fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one
statement and appears in another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.
1.2.7 Interpretation of Contract Documents. Masculine includes both the masculine and the feminine;
singular includes the singular and the plural; headings are for reference only and are not substantive.
1.3

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS
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1.3.1 The Drawings, Specifications, and other similar or related documents and copies thereof are
furnished to the Contractor for the purpose of performing the Work and are, and shall remain, the property
of the Owner. The Contractor may retain one (1) record set. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor,
sub-subcontractor or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the Drawings,
Specifications and other similar or related documents, and Owner will retain all common law, statutory,
and other reserved rights, in addition to the copyright (including, without limitation, the right to create
derivative works therefrom). All copies of such documents shall be returned to the Owner upon completion
of the Work. The Drawings, Specifications, and other similar or related documents and copies thereof
furnished to the Contractor, are for use solely with respect to this Project. They are not to be used by the
Contractor or any subcontractor, sub-subcontractor or material or equipment supplier on other projects or
for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the Owner.
The Contractor, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are granted a
limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Drawings, Specifications and other
documents appropriate to and solely for use in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.
All copies made under this license shall bear the statutory copyright notice, if any, shown on the Drawings,
Specifications and other documents. Submittal or distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or
for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of any
copyright or other reserved rights.
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ARTICLE 2
OWNER
2.1

INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

2.1.1 The Owner shall furnish existing surveys describing the physical characteristics, legal limitations
and utility locations, if such utilities are the property of Owner, for the site of the Project, and a legal
description of the site, if necessary. The Contractor shall undertake such further investigations and studies
as may be necessary or useful to determine site characteristics and conditions. In connection with the
foregoing, Contractor shall locate prior to performing any Work, all Underground Utilities. If utility locate
services are provided in the field by utility owners, Contractor nonetheless remains solely responsible to
determine the actual location of all Underground Utilities.
2.1.2 Except for permits and fees which are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract
Documents, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges
required for the construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing
facilities. Such approvals and the like shall be provided by Owner within a time and in a manner as to avoid
any unreasonable delays in the Work or schedule of Contractor and shall include only such approvals for
permanent facilities which are necessary to perform the Work as set forth in the Contract Documents.
2.1.3 Information or services required to be furnished by Owner shall be furnished by the Owner with
reasonable promptness to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly progress of the Work.
2.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be furnished, free of
charge, all copies of Drawings and Specifications reasonably necessary for the execution of the Work.
2.1.5

The Owner shall forward all instructions to the Contractor through the Project Manager.

2.1.6 The foregoing are in addition to other duties and responsibilities of the Owner enumerated herein
and especially those in respect to Work by Owner or by Separate Contractors, Payments and Completion,
and Insurance in Articles 6, 9, and 11 respectively.
2.2

OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

2.2.1 If the Contractor fails to correct defective Work as required by Paragraph 12.2 or fails to carry out
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or fails or refuses to provide a sufficient amount of
properly supervised and coordinated labor, materials, or equipment so as to be able to complete the Work
within the Contract Time, or fails to remove and discharge (within ten (10) days) any lien filed upon
Owner’s property by anyone claiming by, through, or under Contractor, or disregards the instructions of
the Project Manager or Owner when based on the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Owner or
the Project Manager, by a written order, may order the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof,
until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Owner and the Project Manager
to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit
of the Contractor or any other person or entity.
2.3

OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK
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2.3.1 If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents and fails within a seven (7) day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to
commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, or fails within
such seven (7) day period to eliminate (or diligently commence to eliminate) the cause of any stop work
order issued under paragraph 2.2.1 hereof, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting
from the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including
compensation and additional services and expenses made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. If
the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor
shall pay the difference to the Owner.
ARTICLE 3
CONTRACTOR
3.1

REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY
CONTRACTOR

3.1.1 In addition to and not in derogation of Contractor’s duties under paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 hereof,
Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and shall at once report to the Owner
any error, inconsistency or omission discovered. The Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner for any
damage resulting from any such errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents hereof
unless the Contractor recognized or reasonably should have recognized such error, inconsistency or
omission and failed to report it to the Owner. If the Contractor performs any construction activity involving
an error, inconsistency or omissions in the Contract Documents that Contractor recognized or reasonably
should have recognized, without such notice to the Owner, the Contractor shall assume complete
responsibility for such performance and shall bear the full amount of all costs related to correcting such
inconsistent performance. The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work at any time without
Contract Documents or, where required, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples for such
portion of the Work.
3.1.1.1 If any errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in Contract Documents are recognized or reasonably
should have been recognized by the Contractor, any member of its organization, or any of its subcontractors,
the Contractor shall be responsible for notifying the Owner in writing of such error, inconsistency, or
omission before proceeding with the Work. The Owner will take such notice under advisement and within
a reasonable time commensurate with job progress, render a decision. If Contractor fails to give such notice
and proceeds with such work, it shall correct any such error, inconsistency, or omission at no additional
cost to Owner.
3.1.2 In addition to and not in derogation of Contractor's duties under paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 hereof,
the Contractor shall take field measurements and verify field conditions and shall carefully compare such
field measurements and conditions and other information known to the Contractor with the Contract
Documents before commencing activities. Errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered shall be reported
to the Project Manager at once.
3.1.3

The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and submittals
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approved pursuant to paragraph 3.12.
3.2

SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

3.2.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely (subject to the terms and provisions of Article 4 hereof) responsible for and have
control over all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating
all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless Contract Documents give other specific instructions
concerning these matters.
The Contractor shall review any specified construction or installation procedure, including those
recommended by manufacturers, and shall advise the Owner if the specified procedure deviates from good
construction practice or if following the procedure will affect any warranties, and may propose any
alternative procedure which the Contractor will warrant.
3.2.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees,
subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the Work under a
contract or other arrangements with the Contractor. It is understood and agreed that the relationship of
Contractor to Owner shall be that of an independent contractor. Nothing contained herein or inferable here
from shall be deemed or construed to (1) make Contractor the agent, servant, or employee of the Owner, or
(2) create any partnership, joint venture, or other association between Owner and Contractor. Any direction
or instruction by Owner in respect of the Work shall relate to the results the Owner desires to obtain from
the Work, and shall in no way affect Contractor's independent contractor status as described herein.
3.2.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved from his obligations to perform the Work in accordance with
the Contract Documents either by the activities or duties of the Project Manager in his administration of the
Contract, or by inspections, tests or approvals required or performed under Paragraph 13.7 by persons other
than the Contractor.
3.2.4 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for locating all existing underground installations,
including Underground Utilities and their service connections, in advance of excavating or trenching, by
contacting the utility owners thereof and prospecting. Notwithstanding utility locate services that may be
provided in the field by utility owners, Contractor remains ultimately responsible to determine the actual
location of all Underground Utilities, facilities, structure, or installations. The Contractor shall use his own
information and shall not rely upon any information shown or not shown on the plans or on field locates
provided by the utility owner concerning existing Underground Utilities, facilities, structure, or
installations. Any delay, additional work, or extra cost to the Contractor caused by existing Underground
Utilities, facilities, structures or installations shall not constitute a claim for extra work, additional payment,
or damage.
3.2.5 The Contractor has the responsibility to ensure that all equipment and material suppliers and
subcontractors, their agents, and employees adhere to the Contract Documents, and that they order material
and equipment on time, taking into account the current market and delivery conditions, including conditions
related to COVID-19, and that they provide equipment and materials on time. The Contractor shall
coordinate its Work with that of all others on the Project, including deliveries, storage, installations, and
construction utilities. The Contractor shall be responsible for the space requirements, locations, and routing
of its equipment. In areas and locations where the proper and most effective space requirements, locations,
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and routing cannot be made as indicated, the Contractor shall meet with all others involved, before
installation, to plan the most effective and efficient methods of overall installation.
3.2.6 The Contractor shall establish and maintain bench marks and all other grades, lines, and levels
necessary for the Work, report errors or inconsistencies to the Owner before commencing work, and review
the placement of the structure(s) and permanent facilities on the site with the Owner after all lines are staked
out and before foundation work is started. Contractor shall provide access to the Work for the Owner, the
Project Manager, other persons designated by Owner, and governmental inspectors. Any encroachments,
as revealed by an improvement survey, made by Contractor or its subcontractors (of any tier) on adjacent
properties due to construction, except for encroachments arising from errors or omissions not reasonably
discoverable by Contractor in the Contract Documents, shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor
and Contractor shall correct such encroachments within thirty (30) days of the improvement survey (or as
soon thereafter as reasonably possible), at Contractor’s sole expense, either by the removal of the
encroachment (and subsequent reconstruction on the Project site) or agreement with the adjacent property
owner(s) (in form and substance satisfactory to Owner in its sole discretion) allowing the encroachments
to remain.
3.3

LABOR AND MATERIALS

3.3.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all
labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities,
transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the
Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.
3.3.1.1 Colorado labor shall be employed to perform the Work to the extent of not less than eighty (80%)
percent of each type or class of labor in several classifications of skilled and common labor employed on
such project or public works. "Colorado labor," as used in this Article, means any person who is a resident
of the State of Colorado, at the time of employment, without discrimination as to race, color, religion, creed,
national origin, sex, age, or handicap.
3.3.1.2 Preference is hereby given to materials, supplies, and provisions produced or manufactured in
Colorado, quality being equal to articles offered by competitors outside the State.
3.3.2 The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his employees and
shall not employ on the Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him.
3.3.3 Materials shall conform to manufacturer's standards in effect at the date of execution of the
Construction Contract and shall be installed in strict accordance with manufacturer's directions. The
Contractor shall, if required by the Owner, furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of any
materials. All packaged materials shall be shipped to the site in the original containers clearly labeled, and
delivery slips shall be submitted with bulk materials identifying thereon the source and warranting quality
and compliance with Contract Documents.
3.3.4 When the Contract Documents require the Work, or any part of same, to be above the standards
required by applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and other statutory provisions pertaining to the
Work, such Work shall be performed and completed by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract
Documents.
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3.4

TRAFFIC CONTROL

3.4.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for maintenance, control, and the safeguarding of traffic
affected by the Work as further outlined herein, and as may otherwise be provided in the Contract
Documents.
3.4.2 During construction, the Contractor shall provide for the safety of the workmen and for the safe
and expeditious movement of traffic and pedestrians through the Site by erecting and maintaining all
necessary signs, barricades, or other traffic safety devices. He shall also provide and maintain, in a safe
condition, temporary approaches or crossings at intersections with trails, roads, streets, businesses, parking
lots, residences, garages, and farms unless this requirement is waived by the Owner, through the Project
Manager. The Contractor shall also have a Certified Traffic Control Supervisor (“TCS”) responsible for
traffic control. The TCS shall be on Site at all times when traffic control is in place or as agreed by the
Owner through the Project Manager.
3.4.2.1 Before commencing with construction, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner (1) the name of
the certified TCS, (2) a detailed traffic control plan for approval, including no parking requirements, and
(3) an access maintenance plan. Details in the plans will include, but not be limited to: hours of Work;
placement of signs and barricades; use of traffic control devices such as cones, barriers, and barricades; use
of traffic control devices such as signal control, temporary striping, maintenance of detours, dust abatement,
and length of lane closure tapers. In general, the traffic control/access maintenance plan(s) shall cover all
the various phases of the Work.
3.4.2.2 The access maintenance plan shall be developed by the Contractor and coordinated with, and based
on the requirement of any affected property owners and tenants. Prior to commencing any Work that affects
access to a property, the access maintenance plan must be signed by the property owner and submitted to
the Owner. The access maintenance plan shall include documentation of this coordination, including
approval of the access maintenance plan by signature of each affected owner and tenant. Should the
Contractor be unable to obtain approval and signatures, documentation of the efforts made to obtain said
approval and signatures must be submitted. The Contractor shall maintain continuous access through the
Project for pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and disabled persons. All cost incidentals to the maintenance
of access shall not be paid separately but shall be included in the Contract Sum.
3.4.2.3 The Contractor shall implement and maintain the approved traffic control/access maintenance plan
throughout prosecution of the Work. The Contractor is solely responsible for claims, damages, losses, etc.,
arising or resulting from Contractor's failure to adhere to and maintain the traffic control plan as
approved. It is understood that the traffic control plan's primary purpose is to foster the safe travel of the
public while construction is in progress. It is not intended to specifically address construction traffic on
Site. The Contractor is solely responsible for safety measures on the Site.
3.4.2.4 The Owner, through the Project Manager, may provide Project signs to the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide and place appropriate supplementary information and erect project signs at
locations to be designated by the Project Manager. These advisory signs, if any, shall be installed at least
seven (7) consecutive days prior to beginning of construction. Any other traffic control signs/devices shall
be installed seventy-two (72) hours prior to starting construction. Cost for additional information and
erection of advisory signs are considered incidental to the Traffic Control bid item and costs for such shall

14

EXHIBIT B
be included in the Traffic Control bid item, if Traffic Control is a separately stated item in the Form of
Bid. All costs associated with traffic control shall be included in the Contract Sum. Traffic control devices
that are no longer necessary shall be removed from the Site within seventy-two (72) hours.
3.4.2.5 The Contractor will not be permitted to have construction equipment or materials in the lanes open
to traffic at any time unless permitted by Owner. If the Owner, through the Project Manager, waives the
above condition, the Contractor must provide a flag person. The Contractor shall remove and reset all
construction signs prior to construction. Any damaged signs shall be replaced in kind by the Contractor.
3.4.2.6 The Contractor is cautioned that all personal vehicle and construction equipment parking will be
prohibited where it conflicts with safety, access, or the flow of traffic.
3.4.3 The Contractor will furnish signs, barricades and temporary markings that may be necessary. The
barricades shall conform to the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (“MUTCD”) requirements.
3.4.4 Streets may be closed to through traffic only after the City has approved such closure and all requisite
permits for work in a public way have been obtained. Street closures shall be made in such a manner as to
provide for maximum public safety and public convenience. They shall be opened to through traffic at such
time as the Work has been completed, or as the City or appropriate governmental agency with jurisdiction over
such roadway may direct.
3.4.5 The City will make all necessary adjustments to traffic signals and traffic signal activators on City
rights-of-way at no cost to the Contractor. The Contractor, as required by Contractor’s construction schedule
and with approval of the Project Manager, will cover or remove existing signs or signals that interfere with, or
conflict with construction signing. Upon completion of the Project, the Contractor will reset all such signs.
3.4.6 Detours shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor unless otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents. Detours such as side street crossings, temporary bridges over freshly placed concrete, utilization
of one (1) or more lanes of the construction area for maintenance of traffic, and such related facilities for the
maintenance of traffic shall be the responsibility of the Contractor, the costs for which shall be included in the
appropriate unit price or lump sum portion of the Contract Sum, as applicable. Detour plans must be submitted
and approved in writing by the City through the Project Manager as part of the traffic control/access
maintenance plan.
3.4.7 Local traffic shall be provided access to private properties at all times, except during some urgent
stages of construction when it is impracticable to carry on the construction and maintain traffic simultaneously,
such as for the placing of asphalt concrete pavement, deep sewer excavations which prohibit safe travel of
vehicular traffic, or other similar circumstances.
3.4.8 Emergency traffic such as police, fire, and disaster units shall be provided reasonable access at all
times.
3.4.9

The Contractor shall take every precaution to protect pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

3.4.10 Where parking is a hazard to through traffic or to the construction Work, it shall be restricted either
entirely or during the time when it creates a hazard. Signs for this purpose will be initially furnished and placed
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by the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for and shall maintain the signs if they are used on any
street that is directly or indirectly involved in the construction Work.
3.4.11 The Contractor shall furnish at his own expense all flagmen who may be needed.
3.5

WARRANTY

3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner that all materials and equipment furnished under this
Contract will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents,
and that all Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract
Documents. All Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved
and authorized, may be considered defective. If required by the Owner, the Contractor shall furnish
satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.
3.5.2 Experienced manufacturer's representatives shall be used to supervise the installation of equipment
as may be required by the Owner. Any special tools or equipment which may be required for first class
work shall be provided by the Contractor.
3.5.3 The acceptance at any time of materials or equipment by or on behalf of the Owner shall not be a
bar to future rejection if they are subsequently found to be defective, inferior in quality or uniformity, to
the material or equipment specified, or are not as represented to the Owner.
3.5.4 In the absence of detailed specifications, all materials shall conform to the latest standards of the
American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) available at the time notice inviting Contractors to bid is
published unless otherwise indicated.
3.5.5 Any reference to standard specifications in any of the Contract Documents shall always imply the
latest edition of such standard specifications or specifications available at the time notice inviting
contractors to bid is published unless otherwise indicated.
3.5.6 Within one (1) year after the date of final acceptance of the Work or within such longer period of
time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall make all needed repairs arising out of defective workmanship or materials,
or both, which in the judgment of the Owner shall become necessary during such period. If within ten (10)
days after the mailing of a notice in writing to the Contractor or his agent, the Contractor shall neglect to
make, or undertake with due diligence to make the aforesaid repairs, the Owner is hereby authorized to
make such repairs at the Contractor's expense. In case of an emergency, the Contractor will be notified and
shall correct and make repairs within the necessary time constraints. Failure of the Contractor to respond
to the notification shall result in the Owner making the necessary repairs at the Contractor's expense. This
obligation shall survive termination of the Contract.
3.5.7 Should the Owner claim by written communication before the warranty period expires that certain
defects exist and that these require repair or replacement, the warranty period and applicable surety shall
be automatically extended for as long as these defects remain unremedied.
3.6

TAXES
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3.6.1 All sales of construction and building materials to contractors and subcontractors for use in the
building, erection, alteration or repair of structures, highways, roads, streets and other public works owned
and used by the Owner are exempt from State and other State-collected sales and use taxes and from Cherry
Hills Village sales and use taxes. However, such materials may be subject to sales and use taxes imposed
by other local taxing authorities.
3.6.2 Prior to City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed and start of Work, if requested by the City, the
Contractor shall deliver to the Project Manager two (2) copies of the completed and executed "Contractor
Application for Exemption Certificate" with the approval of the Department of Revenue, State of Colorado,
affixed (Department of Revenue Form No. 172). These certificates will serve as an indication to the Owner
that the Contractor has acquired the necessary exemption for State and other State-collected sales taxes.
The Contractor also agrees to make the same requirement, as contained above, of the material suppliers and
subcontractors on this project.
3.6.3 All books and records pertaining to the Project that will allow the accurate determination of any
tax due must be retained and be kept available for inspection by the City for three (3) years after the
completion of the Project.
3.6.4 All applicable taxes are to be paid by Contractor and are to be included in appropriate bid items;
except that, the Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any State or other sales or use taxes incurred as a
result of failure to obtain an exemption certificate prior to City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed.
3.7

PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES

3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall obtain any necessary
building permit and applicable inspections and shall secure and pay for all other permits and governmental
fees, licenses and inspections by other jurisdictions necessary for the proper execution and completion of
the Work which are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and which are legally required.
3.7.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and
lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work, including, but not limited to,
all governmental and quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, and decrees related to COVID-19.
3.7.3 It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that the Contract Documents are in
accordance with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations. If the Contractor observes or in
the exercise of due care should observe that any of the Contract Documents are at variance therewith in any
respect, he shall promptly notify the Project Manager in writing, and any suggested changes shall be made
to the Owner. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of all conflicts between the Drawings and
Specifications and any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or restrictions that come to the Contractor's
attention or should have come to his attention in the exercise of due care.
3.7.4 It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that all his Work is done in accordance
with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations, and the Contractor shall bear any costs related
to his failure to do so.
3.7.5 If the Contractor performs Work, including without limitations, the installation of any materials or
equipment that it knows, or reasonably should know, would be contrary to laws, statutes, ordinances,
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building codes, rules, and regulations, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility for such work and
shall bear all costs attributable to the correction thereof or related thereto, including all fines and penalties.
3.8

ALLOWANCES

3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents.
Items covered by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as the Owner
may direct, but the Contractor will not be required to employ persons against whom he makes a reasonable
objection.
3.8.2

3.9

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
.1

materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected promptly by the Owner to
avoid unreasonable delay in the Work;

.2

these allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor, less any applicable trade discount,
of the materials and equipment required by the allowance delivered at the site, and all
applicable taxes;

.3

the Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs,
overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the original allowance shall be
included in the Contract Sum and not in the allowance;

.4

whenever the cost is more than or less than the allowance, the Contract Sum shall be
adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize changes, if any,
in handling costs on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses.

SUPERINTENDENT

3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent Superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in
attendance at the Project site during the progress of the Work. The Superintendent shall represent the
Contractor and all communications given to the Superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the
Contractor. Important communications shall be confirmed in writing. Other communications shall be so
confirmed on written request in each case.
3.9.2 Contractor shall assign a person to be and remain the Superintendent to generally and directly
supervise and coordinate the performance of the Work. The naming of such person is and was a material
inducement to Owner to enter into the Contract. If such person is not the Superintendent or does not remain
the Superintendent for any reason whatsoever, the Owner reserves the right to review and approve or
disapprove said Superintendent's replacement, in Owner's sole discretion. If said replacement is
disapproved, the Contract may, at Owner's option, be terminated for cause.
3.9.3

Owner shall have the right, upon notice, to demand that the Superintendent or other key personnel
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retained by Contractor be replaced by Contractor. In the event of such demand, Contractor shall, within
seven (7) days after notification thereof, replace said individual(s) with an individual satisfactory to Owner,
in Owner's sole discretion. If said replacement is disapproved, the Contract, may, at Owner's option, be
terminated for cause.
3.10

CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

3.10.1 A preconstruction conference shall be scheduled at the time the Notice of Award is issued. The
Contractor, at the preconstruction conference, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's review and approval
a Contractor's construction schedule for the Work, in such form and detail as Owner may require and a
traffic control plan as required by paragraph 3.4. The schedule shall not exceed time limits current under
the Contract Documents, shall be revised as required herein and at appropriate intervals as required by the
conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the
Contract Documents, and shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. The
schedule shall indicate the proposed starting and completion dates for the various subdivisions of the Work
as well as the totality of the Work. The schedule shall be updated every thirty (30) days and submitted to
the Project Manager with Contractor's Applications for Payment. Each schedule shall contain a comparison
of actual progress with the estimated progress for such time stated in the original schedule. If any schedule
submitted sets forth a date for Substantial Completion for the Work or any phase of the Work beyond the
date(s) of Substantial Completion established in the Contract (as the same may be extended as provided in
the Contract Documents), then Contractor shall submit to the Owner for its review and approval, a narrative
description of the means and methods which Contractor intends to employ to expedite the progress of the
Work to ensure timely completion of the various phases of the Work as well as the totality of the Work. To
ensure such timely completion, Contractor shall take all necessary action including, without limitation,
increasing the number of personnel and labor on the Project and implementing overtime and double shifts.
In that event, Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Schedule.
3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare and keep current, for the Project Manager’s approval, a schedule of
submittals which is coordinated with the Contractor's construction schedule and allows the Project Manager
reasonable time to review submittals.
3.10.3 The Contractor shall conform to the most recent schedules.

3.11

DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

3.11.1 The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of all Drawings,
Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to
record all changes and selections (all changes and selections to be approved by the Owner in advance) made
during construction, and approved Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples and similar required
submittals. These shall be available to the Project Manager and shall be delivered to him for the Owner
upon completion of the Work.
3.11.2 At the Date of Substantial Completion and as a condition precedent to Final Payment, the
Contractor shall furnish the following documents (unless directed otherwise by Owner) to the Project
Manager for submittal to the Owner: record drawings showing the field changes and selections affecting
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the general construction, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and all other work, and indicating the Work as
actually installed. These shall consist of carefully drawn markings on a set of reproducible prints of the
Drawings. The Contractor shall maintain at the job site one (1) set of Drawings and indicate thereon each
field change as it occurs.
3.11.3 All documents and records required to be prepared or maintained by Contractor for eventual delivery
to the Owner shall be delivered in hard copy and in an electronic/digital format acceptable to the Owner.
3.12

SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specifically prepared for the Work
by the Contractor or any subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate
some portion of the Work.
3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures,
diagrams and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product or system for
some portion of the Work.
3.12.3 Samples are physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish
standards by which the Work will be judged.
3.12.4 The Contractor shall review, approve and submit to the Owner, with reasonable promptness and in
such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the work of the Owner or any separate contractor, all
Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents.
Submittals made by the Contractor that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned without
action.
3.12.5 The Contractor shall not perform any portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop
Drawings, product data, samples, or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been approved by
the Owner. Such Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals.
3.12.6 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the
Contractor represents that he has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, and field
construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and that he has checked and coordinated the information
contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.
3.12.7 The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for any deviation from the requirements of
the Contract Documents by the Owner’s or Project Manager’s approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples, or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Owner in writing of such
deviation at the time of submission and the Owner has given written approval to the specific deviation. The
Contractor shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Owner’s approval thereof.
3.12.8 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing, on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples, or similar submittals to revisions other than those required by the Owner on previous
submittals.
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3.12.9 When professional certification of performance criteria of materials, systems, or equipment is
required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall be entitled to rely in a reasonable
and professional fashion upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications. If any
or all such calculations or certifications are found to be inaccurate or incomplete, Contractor shall assume
full responsibility and bear all costs attributable or related thereto, including, without limitation, the expense
of Owner’s additional services associated with the verification of such calculations or certifications, and
the expense of Owner’s additional services made necessary by the failure of such calculations or
certifications to be accurate or complete.
3.12.10 Contractor shall furnish Owner with copies of all operator's instructions, service and parts manuals,
and all other literature received by Contractor from the manufacturer or supplier of equipment furnished
under the Contract. All operator's instructions, service and parts manuals, and all other such literature shall
be bound in permanent binders satisfactory to the Project Manager.
3.12.11 Copies of any manufacturer's guaranty or certificate as may be required by the Contract Documents
or normally included with the product, shall be submitted to the Owner through the Project Manager prior
to the acceptance of the Work by the Owner.
3.12.12 Throughout the progress of construction, the Contractor shall maintain a careful up-to-date record
of all changes on the plans and drawings during actual construction. Upon completion of Work, and prior
to acceptance by the Owner, the Contractor shall file with the Project Manager one (1) set of complete
drawings with all changes and Contractor's field construction notes neatly and legibly recorded thereon.
Such drawings shall indicate in part the exact routing, if changed from drawing location, of Underground
Utilities, condenser water lines, fuel oil tanks and lines, fire protection lines and any other major buried
utility lines, and routing of conduit runs which are buried or concealed in concrete slabs. Such information
may be used to prepare record drawings for the Owner.
3.12.13 All documents and records required to be prepared or maintained by Contractor for eventual
delivery to the Owner shall be maintained and delivered in hard copy and in an electronic/digital format
acceptable to the Owner.
3.13

USE OF SITE

3.13.1 The Contractor shall confine his construction operations to the immediate vicinity of the location
shown on the plans and shall use due care in placing construction tools, equipment, excavated materials,
materials and equipment for installation and supplies, so as to cause the least possible damage to property
and interference with traffic. The placing of such tools, equipment, and materials shall be subject to the
approval of the Project Manager. If it is necessary or desirable that the Contractor use land outside the
Owner's right-of-way or other appropriate permit or easement(s), the Contractor shall obtain consent from,
and shall execute a written agreement with, the owner of any such land, as well as tenants and/or occupants
of such property if required. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all associated costs, including
clean-up and restoration. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land
or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any adjacent land or areas, resulting from the performance
of the Work. Should any claim be made by any such owner, tenant or occupant because of the performance
of the Work, the Contractor shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve
the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law. The Contractor shall, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the Project Manager, and anyone directly
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or indirectly employed by any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses and damages arising out of
or resulting from any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner, occupant or tenant
against Owner, the Project Manager, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or
based upon Contractor’s performance of the Work.
3.13.2 The Contractor shall protect, shore, brace, support and maintain all Underground Utilities, drains,
and underground construction uncovered or otherwise affected by the construction work performed by him.
3.14

CUTTING AND PATCHING OF WORK

3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting or patching that may be required to
complete the Work or to make its several parts fit together properly. It is the intent of the Contract
Documents that all areas requiring cutting and patching shall be restored to a completely finished condition
acceptable to the Owner.
3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger any portion of the Work or the work of the Owner or
any separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such work, or by excavation. The
Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter the Work of the Owner or any separate contractor except with
the prior written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor. The Contractor shall not
unreasonably withhold from the Owner or any separate contractor his consent to cutting or otherwise
altering the Work.
3.15

CLEANING UP

3.15.1 The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation
of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of the Work, he shall remove all
his waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project, as well as all his tools, construction equipment,
machinery and surplus materials. The Contractor shall leave the site clean and ready for use or occupancy
by the Owner at Substantial Completion of the Work. The Contractor shall restore to original condition all
property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so
and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor.
3.16

COMMUNICATIONS

3.16.1 The Contractor shall forward all communications to the Owner through the Owner's Project
Manager, except as the Owner may otherwise direct in writing.
3.17

ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

3.17.1 The Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless the Owner, and each of Owner’s
officers, agents, servants and employees, including the Project Manager from liability of any nature or kind,
including cost and expense for, or on account of, any patented or unpatented invention, process, article, or
appliance manufactured or used in the performance of the Contract, including its use by the Owner, or the
Owner's officers, agents, servants, or employees, unless otherwise specifically stipulated in the Contract
Documents.
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3.17.2 If the Contractor uses any design, device or materials covered by letters patent or copyright, he
shall provide for such use by suitable agreement with the owner of such patented or copyrighted design,
device or material. It is mutually agreed and understood that, without exception, the Contract prices shall
include all royalties or costs arising from the use of such design, device or materials, in any way involved
in the Work. The Contractor or his Surety shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any and all
claims for infringement by reason of the use of such patented or copyrighted design, device or materials or
any trademark or copyright in connection with Work agreed to be performed under the Contract, and shall
indemnify the Owner for any cost, expense or damage which it may be obliged to pay by reason of such
infringement at any time during the prosecution of the Work or after completion of the Work.
3.17.3 The Contractor shall pay all royalty and license fees.
3.18

INDEMNIFICATION

3.18.1 The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the Project Manager, and their
officers, employees, consultants, agents and insurers, from and against all liability, claims, and demands,
on account of injury, loss, or damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury,
personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever,
which arise out of or are in any manner connected with the Contract, if such injury, loss, or damage is
caused in whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in part by, the act, omission, error,
professional error, mistake, negligence, or other fault of the Contractor, any Subcontractor of the
Contractor, or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of the Contractor or of any Subcontractor, or
which arise out of any workers' compensation claim of any employee of the Contractor or of any employee
of any Subcontractor. The Contractor agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for
and defend against, any such liability, claims or demands at the sole expense of the Contractor. The
Contractor also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and attorney
fees, whether or not any such liability, claims, or demands alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent.
3.18.2 In any and all claims against the Owner or Project Manager, or any of their respective consultants,
agents, officers, directors or employees by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such
employee) of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any supplier to the Contractor, any person or organization
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under paragraph 3.18.1 shall not be limited
in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for
the Contractor, or any such Subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under workers'
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.
3.18.3 The indemnity set forth in this paragraph 3.18 shall also cover the City’s defense costs, in the event
that the City, in its sole discretion elects to provide its own defense. The City retains the right to disapprove
counsel, if any, selected by Contractor to fulfill the forgoing defense indemnity obligation, which right of
disapproval shall not be unreasonably exercised. Insurance coverage requirements specified herein shall in
no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The
Contractor shall obtain at its own expense any additional insurance that it deems necessary for the City’s
protection in the performance of the Construction Contract.
3.18.4 All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by or given in
accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in this paragraph
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3.18, will survive final payment, completion and acceptance of the work and termination or completion of
the Agreement.
3.18.5 RESERVED
3.19
ATTORNEYS FEES
3.19.1 In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring an action against the other to enforce any
provision of the Contract Documents, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, the prevailing
party in such action shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees as determined by the Court.
3.20

RESERVED
ARTICLE 4
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

4.1

PROJECT MANAGER

4.1.1 Subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph 5.01 of the Construction Contract, the Project
Manager is empowered to act for Owner during the construction of the Work.
4.1.2 In case of termination of employment of the Project Manager, Owner may at any time employ or
retain any other person it may deem qualified to perform all or any part of the duties of the Project Manager
hereunder or to exercise any of its rights hereunder. Owner shall notify all parties in writing, setting forth
the scope of said replacement of Project Manager’s duties and responsibilities, prior to making this change.
4.2

PROJECT MANAGER’S ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

4.2.1 The Project Manager will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract
Documents and will be the Owner’s representative during construction and until final payment is due.
The Owner’s instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Project Manager. The
Project Manager will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the
Contract, unless otherwise modified by written instrument in accordance with other provisions of the
Contract.
4.2.2

RESERVED

4.2.3 The Project Manager will not have control or charge of safety precautions and programs or any
construction means or methods in connection with the Work.
4.2.4 The Project Manager shall at all times have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation and
progress.
4.2.5 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been
specially authorized by Owner, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate through the
Project Manager, provided, however, that Owner may instruct, correspond, or negotiate with Contractor
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directly. Communications by and with subcontractors and suppliers shall be through the Contractor.
Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Project Manager.
4.2.6 Based on the progress and quality of the Work, an evaluation of the Contractor’s Applications for
Payment, and all other information available, the Project Manager will determine the amounts owing to the
Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts as provided in paragraph 9.4.
4.2.7 The Project Manager will have the responsibility and authority to reject Work which does not
conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the Project Manager considers it necessary or advisable to
insure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require
special inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.7 whether or not such Work has
been fabricated, installed or completed.
4.2.8 The Project Manager will promptly review and approve or reject or take other appropriate action
upon Contractor’s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Such action shall be taken
with reasonable promptness so as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Contractor or
separate contractors, while allowing sufficient time in the Project Manager’s reasonable judgment to permit
adequate review. The Project Manager’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the
Contractor of any of Contractor’s obligations under the Contract Documents. The Project Manager’s
approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.
4.2.9 The Project Manager will prepare Change Orders in accordance with Article 7, and will have
authority to order Minor Changes in the Work as provided in paragraph 7.4.1. All Change Orders,
Construction Change Directives, and Orders for Minor Changes in the Work shall require the approval of
Owner in writing to be binding on Owner.
4.2.10 The Project Manager shall determine the date(s) of Substantial Completion and Final Completion,
shall issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion when and as required by the Contract Documents, will
receive, review, and maintain written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
assembled by the Contractor, and will issue a final Certificate for Payment upon compliance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents.
4.3

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

4.3.1 Claims must be made by written notice to the Project Manager. The responsibility to substantiate
claims shall rest with the party making the claim.
4.3.2

RESERVED

4.3.3 Time Limits on Claims. Claims by either party must be made within twenty-one (21) days after
occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim or within twenty-one (21) days after the claimant first
recognizes, or reasonably should have recognized, the condition giving rise to the claim, whichever is later.
An additional claim made after the initial claim has been implemented by change order will not be
considered unless submitted in a timely manner.
4.3.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a claim, including litigation, unless
otherwise directed by Owner in writing, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the
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Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. No
Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as may be
agreed to in writing by the Owner.
4.3.5 Waiver of Claims: Final Payment. The making and acceptance of Final Payment shall constitute a
waiver of claims by the Owner except those arising from:
.1

Liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;

.2

Failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents;

.3
.4

Terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or
Faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion.

4.3.6 Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If conditions are encountered at the site which are
(1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions which differ materially from those indicated in
the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, which differ materially
from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the
character provided for in the Contract Documents, then notice by the observing party shall be given to the
other party promptly before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than seven (7) days after first
observance of the conditions. Site conditions which an experienced and prudent contractor could have
anticipated by visiting the site, familiarizing himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to
be performed and correlating his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents shall not
be considered as claims for concealed or unknown conditions, nor shall the locations of Underground
Utilities which differ from locations provided by the utility companies. If the Owner determines that the
conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that
no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Owner shall so notify the Contractor in writing,
stating the reasons. Claims by the Contractor in opposition to such determination must be made within
twenty-one (21) days after the Owner has given notice of the decision. If the Owner and Contractor cannot
agree on an adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the adjustment shall be subject to further
proceeding pursuant to paragraph 4.4.
4.3.7 Claims for Additional Cost. If the Contractor wishes to make claim for an increase in the Contract
Sum, written notice as provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Said notice
shall itemize all claims and shall contain sufficient detail and substantiating data to permit evaluation of
same by Owner. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. Prior notice is not required for claims
relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Paragraph 10.3.
If the Contractor believes additional cost is involved for reasons including but not limited to (1) a
written interpretation from the Owner, (2) an order by the Owner to stop the Work where the Contractor
was not at fault, (3) a written Order for a Minor Change in the Work issued by the Project Manager, (4)
failure of payment by the Owner, (5) termination of the Contract by the Owner, (6) Owner's suspension of
the Work, or (7) other reasonable grounds, claim shall be filed in accordance with the procedure established
herein. Any change in the Contract Sum resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order or
Construction Change Directive. Such claims shall be subject to Paragraph 8.3.
Additional costs that Contractor may incur related to COVID-19 including, without limitation,
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labor, material, and equipment costs, insurance costs, costs related to compliance with construction industry
best practices and governmental or quasi-governmental orders, and costs related to the suspension of Work,
shall not be grounds for an increase in the Contract Sum.
4.3.8 Claims for additional time. If the Contractor wishes to make claim for an increase in the Contract
Time, written notice as provided herein shall be given. The Contractor's claim shall include an estimate of
cost and of probable effect of delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one
claim is necessary. Such claims shall be subject to Paragraph 8.3.
4.3.9 Injury or damage to person or property. Subject to the Parties' obligations and responsibilities
under the Contract Documents in general and Article 11 hereof in particular, if either party to the Contract
suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, of any of
the other party's employees or agents, or of others for whose acts such party is legally liable, written notice
of such injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time
not exceeding ten (10) days after first observance. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the
other party to investigate the matter. If a claim for additional cost or time related to this claim is to be
asserted, it shall be filed as provided in paragraphs 4.3.7 or 4.3.8.
4.4

RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

4.4.1 The Project Manager will review all claims by the Contractor and take one (1) or more of the
following preliminary actions within ten (10) days of receipt of a claim: (1) request additional supporting
data from the Contractor, (2) submit a schedule to the Contractor indicating when the Owner expects to
take action, (3) reject the claim in whole or in part, stating reasons for rejection, (4) recommend approval
of the claim by the Owner, or (5) suggest a compromise. The Owner may also, but is not obligated to,
notify the surety, if any, of the nature and amount of the claim.
4.4.2

If a claim has been resolved, the Project Manager will prepare or obtain appropriate documentation.

4.4.3 If a claim has not been resolved, the Contractor shall within ten (10) days after the Project
Manager’s preliminary response, take one (1) or more of the following actions: (1) submit additional
supporting data requested by the Project Manager, (2) modify the initial claim, or (3) notify the Project
Manager that the initial claim stands.
4.4.4 If a claim has not been resolved after consideration of the foregoing and of further evidence
presented by the parties or requested by the Project Manager, the Project Manager will notify the Contractor
in writing that the Project Manager’s decision will be made within ten (10) days, which decision shall be
considered advisory only and not binding in the event of litigation with respect to the claim. Upon
expiration of such time period, the Project Manager will render to the parties the Owner’s written decision
relative to the claim, including any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. If there is a
surety and there appears to be a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may, but is not obligated
to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.
ARTICLE 5
SUBCONTRACTORS
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5.1

AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF
THE WORK

5.1.1 Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents or the Bidding Documents, the Contractor,
as soon as practicable after the award of the Construction Contract, shall furnish to the Project Manager in
writing the names of the persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment
fabricated to a special design) proposed for each of the principal portions of the Work. The Project Manager
will promptly reply to the Contractor in writing stating whether or not the Owner has reasonable objection
to any such proposed person or entity.
5.1.2 The Contractor shall not contract with any such proposed person or entity to whom the Owner has
made reasonable and timely objection under the provisions of paragraph 5.2.1. The Contractor shall not be
required to contract with anyone to whom he has a reasonable objection.
5.1.3 If the Owner has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity, the Contractor shall
submit a substitute to whom the Owner has no reasonable objection, and the Contract Sum shall be increased
or decreased by the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and an appropriate change order shall
be issued; however, no increase in the Contract Sum shall be allowed for any such substitution unless the
Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required by paragraph 5.2.1.
5.1.4 The Contractor shall make no substitution for any subcontractor, person or entity previously
selected if the Owner makes reasonable objection to such substitution.
5.1.5
5.2

RESERVED
SUB-CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

5.2.1 By an appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor, to the extent
of the Work to be performed by the subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by the terms of the Contract
Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which the
Contractor, by the Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner. Each subcontract agreement shall
preserve and protect the rights of the Owner under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be
performed by the subcontractor so that the subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall
allow to the subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the Contractor-Subcontractor
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by these
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor to
enter into similar agreements with his sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each
proposed subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to
which the subcontractor will be bound by this paragraph 5.2, and, upon written request of the subcontractor,
identify to the subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract which may be at variance
with the Contract Documents. Each subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such documents available
to his sub-subcontractors.
5.3

CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS

5.3.1 Contractor hereby assigns to Owner (and Owner's assigns) all its interest in any subcontract
agreements and purchase orders now existing or hereinafter entered into by Contractor for performance of
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any part of the Work, which assignment will be effective upon acceptance by Owner in writing and only as
to those subcontract agreements and purchase orders that Owner designates in writing. It is agreed and
understood that Owner may accept said assignment at any time during the course of construction prior to
Final Completion. Upon such acceptance by Owner, (1) Contractor shall promptly furnish to Owner true
and correct copies of the designated subcontract agreements and purchase orders, and (2) Owner shall be
required to compensate the designated subcontractors or suppliers only for compensation accruing to such
parties for work done or materials delivered from and after the date on which Owner determines to accept
the subcontract agreements or purchase orders. All sums due and owing by Contractor to the designated
subcontractors or suppliers for Work performed or material supplied prior to Owner's acceptance of the
subcontract agreements or purchase orders shall constitute a debt between such parties and Contractor. It
is further agreed that all subcontract agreements and purchase orders shall provide that they are freely
assignable by Contractor to Owner and Owner's assigns under the terms and conditions stated hereinabove.
It is further agreed and understood that such assignment is part of the consideration to Owner for entering
into the Construction Contract with Contractor and may not be withdrawn prior to Final Completion.
Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Owner a written acknowledgment in form and substance
satisfactory to Owner from each of its subcontractors and suppliers of the contingent assignment described
herein no later than ten (10) days after the date of execution of each subcontract agreement and purchase
order with such parties.

ARTICLE 6
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER
OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
6.1

OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE
CONTRACTS

6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform work related to the Project with his own forces, and to
award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other work on the site under
these or similar conditions of the Construction Contract. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional
cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, he shall make such claim as provided elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.
6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the site,
the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each
separate Construction Contract.
6.1.3 The Owner will provide for the coordination of the work of his own forces and of each separate
contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate
with other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules when directed to
do so. The Contractor shall make any revisions to its construction schedule as requested by the Owner. If
the Contractor claims additional cost because of any such revisions, the Contractor shall make such claim
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as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The construction schedules shall then constitute the
schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner until subsequently revised.
6.2

MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors access to the site and all areas of
the Work as may be reasonably necessary for the performance of their work, reasonable opportunity for the
introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and for the execution of their work, and shall
connect and coordinate his Work with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.
6.2.2 If any part of the Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of the
Owner or any separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with the Work, promptly report
to the Project Manager any apparent discrepancies or defects in such other work that render it unsuitable
for proper execution and results of Contractor's Work or render it incompatible with Contractor's Work.
Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acceptance of the Owner's or separate contractor's
work as fit and proper to receive his Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable.
6.2.3 Subject to Paragraph 8.3 hereof, any costs caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by
the party responsible therefor.
6.2.4 Should the Contractor cause damage to the work or property of the Owner, or to other completed
or partially completed construction or property on the site or to property of any adjoining owner or other
party, the Contractor shall promptly remedy such damage as provided in paragraph 10.2.4.
6.2.5 Should the Contractor cause damage to the work or property of any separate contractor, or in the
event of any other claim, dispute, or matter in question between the Contractor and any separate contractor,
the Contractor shall promptly attempt to settle with such other contractor by agreement, or otherwise to
resolve the dispute. In any event, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Owner, its
officers, employees, and agents, to the full extent as agreed to under paragraph 3.18.
6.3

OWNER’S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

6.3.1 If a dispute arises between the Contractor, separate contractors, and the Owner as to their
responsibility under their respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from
waste materials and rubbish as described in paragraph 3.15, the Owner may clean up and allocate the cost
thereof among the contractors responsible therefor.
ARTICLE 7
CHANGES IN THE WORK
7.1

CHANGES

7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Construction Contract, and
without invalidating the Construction Contract, only by Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or
Order for a Minor Change in the Work, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.
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7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and the Contractor; a
Construction Change Directive may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor; an Order for a Minor Change
in the Work may be issued by the Project Manager alone.
7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents,
and the Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction
Change Directive, or Order for a Minor Change in the Work.
7.1.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if the
quantities originally contemplated are so changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change
Directive that application of such unit prices to the quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial
inequity to the Owner or the Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted; provided
however, that Owner may increase the number of units without change in the unit price if reasonable.
.1

The term “substantial inequity” shall be construed to apply only to the following
circumstances: (1) when the character of the Work as altered differs materially in kind or
nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or (2) when a
major item of work is increased in excess of one hundred and twenty five percent (125%)
or decreased below seventy five percent (75%) of the original contract quantity. A major
item is defined to be any item having an original contract value in excess of ten percent
(10%) of the original contract amount

.2

Any allowance for an increase in quantity shall apply only to that portion in excess of 125%
of original contract item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75%, to the actual amount
of work performed.

7.2

CHANGE ORDERS

7.2.1 A Change Order is a written order to the Contractor, signed by the Contractor and the Owner stating
their agreement upon all of the following:
.1

a change in the Work;

.2

the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and

.3

the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any.

The Contract Sum and the Contract Time may be changed only by Change Order.
7.2.2 Methods used in determining adjustments to the Contract Sum may include those listed in
paragraph 7.3.3.
7.3

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES

7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order directed to the Contractor and signed by the
Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract
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Sum or Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating
the Construction Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Construction Contract
consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted
accordingly.
7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a
Change Order.
7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the
adjustment shall be based on one of the following methods:
.1

by mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient
substantiating data to permit evaluation;

.2

by unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3

by cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable
fixed or percentage fee; or

.4

by the method provided in paragraph 7.3.6.

7.3.4 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the
change in the Work involved and advise Owner of the Contractor's agreement or disagreement with the
method, if any, provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in
the Contract Sum or Contract Time.
7.3.5 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the agreement of the
Contractor therewith, including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for
determining them. Such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.
7.3.6 If the Contractor does not respond promptly to the Construction Change Directive or disagrees with
the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, the method and the adjustment shall be determined by the
Owner on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the Work attributable to
the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, a percentage fee for overhead and profit
not to exceed five percent (5%) of such Work's actual cost for Contractor and ten percent (10%) of such
Work's actual cost to be apportioned between any and all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors. For Work
performed by Contractor's own forces, Contractor's mark-up shall be limited to actual cost plus a percentage
fee for overhead and profit not to exceed ten percent (10%). In such case, and also under Clause 7.3.3.3,
the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Project Manager may prescribe, an itemized
accounting of actual costs together with appropriate supporting data. For the purposes of this paragraph
7.3.6, actual costs shall be defined as and limited to the following:
.1

costs of labor, including Social Security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe
benefits required by agreement or custom, and workers' compensation insurance;

.2

costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including costs of transportation, whether
incorporated or consumed;
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.3

reasonable rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, obtained and
used specifically for such Work, whether rented from the Contractor or others; and

.4

costs of premiums for all bonds (if any), permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes directly
attributable to such Work. Actual cost does not include any item which could be deemed
to be a general conditions cost or overhead, such as but not limited to, the cost of Contractor
and Subcontractor supervisory personnel assigned to the Work, and field office and related
expenses.

7.3.7 Pending final determination of actual cost to the Owner, amounts not in dispute may be included
in applications for payment. The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a
deletion or change which results in a net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed
by the Project Manager. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if
any, with respect to that change.
7.3.8 If the Owner and Contractor do not agree with the adjustment in Contract Time or the method for
determining it, the adjustment or the method shall be determined in accordance with Paragraph 8.3 hereof.
7.3.9 When the adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time are determined as provided herein,
such determination shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded by preparation and execution of an
appropriate Change Order.
7.4

MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

7.4.1 The Project Manager will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving an
adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent
of the Contract Documents. Such changes shall be effected by written order, and shall be binding on the
Owner and the Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall carry out such
written orders promptly.
ARTICLE 8
TIME
8.1

DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK

8.1.1 The Date of Commencement of the Work shall not be postponed by the failure to act of the
Contractor or of persons or entities for whom the Contractor is responsible.
8.2
PROGRESS AND COMPLETION
8.2.1 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Construction Contract.
By executing the Construction Contract, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable
period for performing the Work.
8.2.2

The Contractor shall begin the Work on the Date of Commencement of the Work. The Contractor
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shall not, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, prematurely commence operations
on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be furnished by the
Contractor. The Date of Commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such
insurance.
8.2.3 The Contractor shall carry the Work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve
Substantial Completion within the Contract Time.
8.3

DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME

8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed, disrupted, or otherwise interfered with at any time, or from time to
time, in the performance of the Work, the rights and obligations of the parties with respect to such delay
shall be as set forth in this paragraph 8.3. Contractor's exclusive remedy for any delay, disruption, or
interference shall be as set forth in this paragraph 8.3.
8.3.1.1 Any delay within the control of the Contractor or within the control of any subcontractor, agent, or
supplier thereof (including, without limitation, delay within the joint control of the Contractor or one (1) or
more of his subcontractors, agents, or suppliers) shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor, and the
Contractor shall not be entitled to any extension of time or to any increase in the Contract Sum as the result
of any such delay.
8.3.1.2 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement, progress, or Substantial Completion
of the Work by fire, flood, other unusually severe weather, acts of God, or other unforeseeable occurrences
beyond the reasonable control of the Contractor (which shall not include cost increases related to COVID19), or by a government or quasi-government-imposed measure responding to an epidemic, pandemic, or
City of Cherry Hills Village-declared public health emergency (including measures responding to COVID19), then those performance dates specified in the Contract Documents that are affected by the delay shall
be extended by Change Order or Construction Change Directive, for such reasonable time as Owner, in its
reasonable good faith judgment, may determine, provided that Contractor complies with subparagraph
8.3.1.4 below. The extension of the affected performance dates shall be the Contractor’s sole and exclusive
remedy for any delay under this subparagraph 8.3.1.2 and shall not result in any increase in the Contract
Sum.
8.3.1.3 Upon the occurrence of any delay that will affect the Date of Substantial Completion not concurrent
with delays described under subparagraphs 8.3.1.1 and 8.3.1.2 above, which is proximately caused by acts
or omissions within the control of the Owner, his agents (other than Contractor), or employees, the Date of
Substantial Completion shall be extended by Change Order or Construction Change Directive on a day-forday basis and the Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment to the Contract Sum as reimbursement for
actual, proven costs reasonably and necessarily incurred as a direct consequence of such delay, provided
that Contractor complies with subparagraph 8.3.1.4 below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a delay under
this subparagraph 8.3.1.3 is proximately related to COVID-19, the extension of the Date of Substantial
Completion shall be Contractor’s sole and exclusive remedy, and Contractor shall not be entitled to any
adjustment to the Contract Sum as a result thereof.
8.3.1.4 Any claim for an extension of time under subparagraphs 8.3.1.2 or 8.3.1.3 above, and any claim
for an adjustment to the Contract Sum authorized by subparagraph 8.3.1.3 above, shall be made as follows:
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.1

The Contractor shall, within five (5) days after the onset of any delay, notify the Project
Manager in writing of the causes of delay, the facts relating thereto, the requested time
extension and, if the relief is available under subparagraph 8.3.1.3, the requested
adjustment to the Contract Sum. In the case of a continuing delay, only one (1) claim is
necessary, provided, that proof of any recoverable delay costs to support a requested
adjustment to the Contract Sum shall be submitted within fifteen (15) days after the end of
any period of delay.

.2

The Project Manager shall determine whether the cause for the claim for an extension of
time is beyond the control of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, agents, or
suppliers. Owner shall either approve or disapprove the requested extension and, if
available under subparagraph 8.3.1.3, any related request for an adjustment to the Contract
Sum.

.3

Should a time extension or adjustment to the Contract Sum be granted by the Owner, a
Change Order or Construction Change Directive, signed by the Owner, shall be issued
stating the new date(s) for, as applicable, commencement, performance, and or Substantial
Completion and any adjustment to the Contract Sum.

.4

Failure by Contractor to timely provide, in writing, a request for time extension or an
adjustment to the Contract Sum (including proof of costs related to the same), shall
constitute a waiver by Contractor of any time extension or Contract Sum adjustment which
Contractor may have otherwise been granted pursuant to this paragraph 8.3.

.5

Nothing herein shall prevent Contractor from requesting, and Owner granting, an extension
of time contingent upon payment by Contractor of an agreed amount of liquidated damages
in consideration of the time extension.

8.3.2 Contractor expressly acknowledges and confirms its obligation to minimize any delays as well as
the costs associated with any delay. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor shall, to the best of its
ability, re-assign personnel and equipment, commence or accelerate unaffected portions of the Work, and
otherwise employ all prudent measures available to minimize delay and associated delay costs. In no event
shall the Owner be liable for payment of delay costs which could have been avoided or mitigated by any
means reasonably available to the Contractor.
8.3.4 If the Owner or any of its employees, consultants, or agents, including the Project Manager, is
delayed at any time in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract by fire, flood, other
unusually severe weather, acts of God, other unforeseeable occurrences beyond the reasonable control of
the Owner or any of its employees, consultants, or agents, or by a government- or quasi-governmentimposed measure responding to an epidemic, pandemic, or City of Cherry Hills Village-declared public
health emergency (including measures responding to COVID-19), then the dates for performance of the
obligations affected by the delay shall be extended on a day-for-day basis; provided, however, that such
extension shall not entitle Contractor to any adjustment to the Contract Sum as a result thereof. The Owner
or the Project Manager will provide Contractor with verbal or written notice of the event causing delay of
performance within five (5) days after the onset of any delay.
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8.4

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Time is of the essence of the Contract. In the event that the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion
of the Work within the Contract Time or fails to meet any other time requirement set forth in the Contract, after
due allowance for any time extensions granted by Owner, the Contractor shall be liable to Owner for Liquidated
Damages, and not as a penalty, in the amount set forth in the table below. For each and every calendar day that
Work shall remain incomplete after the Contract Time as adjusted by duly executed Change Order or
Construction Change Directive, the sum per calendar day shown in the following table, unless otherwise
specified in the Bid, may be deducted from monies due to or to become due to the Contractor or Owner may
take action to collect such Liquidated Damages from the Contractor or its Surety. This sum is fixed and agreed
upon between the parties because the actual loss to Owner and to the public caused by delay in completion will
be extremely difficult to determine.
All punch list items (required by paragraph 9.8.2) must be completed within thirty (30) days of Substantial
Completion or Liquidated Damages as provided herein will be assessed.
Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the Work or any part of it after the Contract Time, or after the
date to which the Contract Time may have been extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of
Owner of any of its rights under the Contract.
Original Contract Amount
From More than $
0
150,000
250,000
500,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
10,000,000

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
To and Including $
150,000
250,000
500,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
10,000,000
--------------

Liquidated Damages per
Calendar Day ($)*
500.00
600.00
800.00
1,400.00
2,000.00
3,300.00
3,900.00
**

*The per day liquidated damages shall be the amount set forth in this table, or in the Standard Specifications
for Road and Bridge Construction as published by the Colorado Department of Transportation controlling as
of the date on which the Contract is mutually executed by the Contractor and Owner, whichever is higher.
**3,900.00 plus 300.00 per each additional 1,000,000 contract amount or part thereof over 10,000,000.

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank
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ARTICLE 9
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9.1

CONTRACT SUM

9.1.1 The Contractor will not be allowed any claims for anticipated profits, for loss of profits, or for any
damages or additional costs incurred because of a difference between the estimate of any item and the
amount of the item actually required, or for the elimination of any part of the Work. Funds for construction
of the Work herein contemplated are limited. The Owner reserves the right to eliminate or reduce the items
of the proposal or any of the Work as may be required to bring the cost of the Work within the limits of
available funds.
9.2

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

9.2.1 Before the first Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager a
schedule of values allocated to the various portions of the Work, which in the aggregate equals the total
Contract Sum, divided so as to facilitate payments to subcontractors, supported by such evidence of
correctness as the Project Manager may direct. This Schedule, when approved by the Project Manager,
shall be used to monitor the progress of the Work and as a basis for Certificates for Payment.
9.3

APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

9.3.1 In accordance with the permitted frequency of applications for payment established in the
Construction Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager an itemized Application for
Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values. Such application shall be
supported by such data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment as the Project Manager may require,
and reflecting retainage, if any, as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
9.3.1.1 Such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in the Work which have
been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives but not yet included in Change Orders.
9.3.1.2 Such applications may not include requests for payment of amounts the Contractor does not intend
to pay to a subcontractor or supplier because of a dispute or other reason.
9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments will be made on account of
materials or equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the site and, if
approved in advance by the Owner, payments may similarly be made for materials or equipment suitably
stored at some other location agreed upon in writing for subsequent incorporation in the Work. Payments
for materials or equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon submission by the Contractor
of bills of sale or such other procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such
materials or equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, including applicable insurance and
transportation to the site for those materials and equipment stored off the site.
9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all work, materials and equipment covered by an Application
for Payment will pass to the Owner either by incorporation in the construction or upon the receipt of
payment by the Contractor, whichever occurs first, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or
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encumbrances, hereinafter referred to in this Article 9 as "liens"; and that no work, materials or equipment
covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired by the Contractor, or by any other person
performing work at the site or furnishing materials and equipment for the Project, subject to an agreement
under which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed
by the Contractor or such other person.
9.3.4 When Application for Payment includes materials stored off the Project site or stored on the Project
site but not incorporated in the Work, for which no previous payment has been requested, a complete
description of such material shall be attached to the application. Suitable storage which is off the Project
site shall be a bonded warehouse or appropriate storage approved by Owner with the stored materials
properly tagged and identifiable for this Project and properly segregated from other materials. The Owner's
written approval shall be obtained before the use of offsite storage is made. Such approval may be withheld
in Owner's sole discretion.
9.4

CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT

9.4.1 The Project Manager will, within ten (10) days after the receipt of the Contractor’s Application for
Payment, either issue a Certificate for Payment to the Contractor, for such amount as the Project Manager
determines is properly due, or notify the Contractor in writing his reasons for withholding a certificate in
whole or in part as provided in paragraph 9.5.1.
9.4.2 No Certificate for Payment shall be issued unless it appears to the Project Manager that the Work
has progressed to the point indicated; that, to the best of the Project Manager’s knowledge, information and
belief, but without in any way waiving any of Owner’s rights or claims under the Contract Documents, the
quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents and that all certificates required under
the Contract Documents have been furnished in proper form. However, the issuance of a Certificate for
Payment will not be a representation that the Project Manager has made examination to ascertain how or
for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.
9.5

DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION

9.5.1 The Project Manager may decline to certify payment and may withhold his certificate in whole or
in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Owner, if in his opinion he is unable to make the
determinations as provided in paragraph 9.4.2. If the Project Manager is unable to make such
determinations as provided in paragraph 9.4.2 and to certify payment in the amount of the application, he
will notify the Contractor as provided in paragraph 9.4.1. If the Contractor and the Project Manager cannot
agree on a revised amount, the Project Manager will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount
for which he is able to make such determinations. The Project Manager may also decline to certify payment
or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or subsequent observations, he may nullify the whole or
any part of any Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may be necessary in his opinion
to protect the Owner from loss because of:
.1

defective Work not remedied,

.2

third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;

.3

failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to subcontractors or for labor,
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materials or equipment;
.4

reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the
Contract Sum;

.5

damage to the Owner or another contractor;

.6

reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, or that
the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the
anticipated delay;

.7

failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; or

.8

failure to maintain accurate and up-to-date as-built drawings.

9.5.2 When the above grounds are removed, Certificates for Payment shall be made by the Project
Manager for amounts withheld because of them.
9.6

PROGRESS PAYMENTS

9.6.1 After the Project Manager has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in
a timely manner not to exceed forty-five (45) days from the time the Project Manager issued the Certificate
for Payment. The Owner may refuse to make payment on any Certificate for Payment for any default of
the Construction Contract, including, but not limited to those defaults set forth in Clauses 9.5.1.1 through
9.5.1.8. The Owner shall not be deemed in default by reason of withholding payment while any of such
defaults remain uncured.
9.6.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each subcontractor, upon receipt of payment from the Owner,
out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account of such subcontractor's Work, the amount to which
said subcontractor is entitled, reflecting the percentage actually retained, if any, from payments to the
Contractor on account of such subcontractor's Work. The Contractor shall, by an appropriate agreement
with each subcontractor, require each subcontractor to make payments to his sub-subcontractors in similar
manner.
9.6.3 The Project Manager may, on request and at his discretion, furnish to any subcontractor, if
practicable, information regarding the percentages of completion or the amounts applied for by the
Contractor and the action taken thereon by the Project Manager on account of Work done by such
subcontractor.
9.6.4 The Owner shall not have any obligation to pay or to see the payment of any monies to any
subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
9.6.5 Payment to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in paragraphs 9.6.2, 9.6.3,
and 9.6.4.
9.6.6 No certificate for a progress payment, nor any progress payment, nor any partial or entire use or
occupancy of the Project by the Owner, shall constitute an acceptance of any Work not in accordance with
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the Contract Documents.
9.6.7

RETAINAGE

9.6.7.1 In addition to any amounts withheld from payment pursuant to any other provision in this
Construction Contract, Owner shall retain from progress payments, until payment is due under the terms
and conditions governing final payments, amounts as follows:

9.7

.1

Owner shall retain five percent (5%) of each progress payment to a maximum of five
percent (5%) of the Contract Sum.

.2

In no event shall the amount retained be reduced to less than five percent (5%) of the
Contract Sum until after final acceptance of the Project by the Owner.
FAILURE OF PAYMENT

9.7.1 If the Project Manager does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor,
within ten (10) days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not, for
reasons other than a default of the Construction Contract, including, but not limited to those defaults set
forth in Clauses 9.5.1.1 through 9.5.1.8, pay the Contractor within forty-five (45) days after the date
established in the Contract Documents any amount certified by the Project Manager, then the Contractor
may, upon seven (7) additional days' written notice to the Owner, stop the Work until payment of the amount
owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall
be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay and start-up, which
shall be effected by appropriate Change Order.
9.8

SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

9.8.1 The Work will not be considered suitable for Substantial Completion review until all project
systems included in the Work are operational as designed and scheduled, all designated or required
governmental inspections and certifications have been made and posted, designated instruction of Owner's
personnel in the operation of systems has been completed, and all final finishes within the Construction
Contract are in place. In general, the only remaining Work shall be minor in nature, so that the Owner
could occupy the building or utilize the improvements on that date and the completion of the Work by the
Contractor would not materially interfere or hamper the Owner's normal operations. As a further condition
of Substantial Completion acceptance, the Contractor shall certify that all remaining Work will be
completed within thirty (30) consecutive calendar days or as agreed upon by the Owner and Contractor in
writing following the Date of Substantial Completion.
9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a designated portion thereof which the Owner
agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Project
Manager a list of items to be completed or corrected. The Contractor shall proceed promptly to complete
and correct items on the list. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility
of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Upon receipt of the
Contractor’s list, the Project Manager will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or designated
portion thereof is Substantially Complete. If the Project Manager’s inspection discloses any item, whether
or not included on the Contractor’s list, which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
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Documents, the Contractor shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or
correct such items upon notification by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall then submit a request
for another inspection by the Project Manager to determine Substantial Completion. When the Work or
designated portion thereof is Substantially Complete, the Project Manager will prepare a Certificate of
Substantial Completion which shall establish the Date of Substantial Completion, shall state the
responsibilities of the Owner and the Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the
Work, and insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shall complete the items listed
therein, which time shall be no longer than thirty (30) days after the scheduled completion date. The
Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and the Contractor for their written
acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate.
9.8.3 Upon Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof and upon application by
the Contractor and certification by the Project Manager, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting
adjustment in retainage, if any, for such Work or portion thereof, as provided in the Contract Documents.
9.9

PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE

9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any
stage of construction regardless of whether the Contract Time has expired (hereinafter sometimes referred
to as “partial occupancy”). Such partial occupancy may commence whether or not the applicable portion
of the Work is Substantially Complete.
9.9.2 In the event of partial occupancy, the Contractor shall promptly secure endorsement from its
insurance carriers and consent from its sureties, if any.
9.9.3 In the event of partial occupancy before Substantial Completion as provided above, the Contractor
shall cooperate with the Owner in making available for the Owner’s use and benefit such building services
as heating, ventilating, cooling, water, lighting, telephone, elevators, and security for the portion or portions
to be occupied, and if the Work required to furnish such services is not entirely completed at the time the
Owner desires to occupy the aforesaid portion or portions, the Contractor shall make every reasonable effort
to complete such Work or make temporary provisions for such Work as soon as possible so that the
aforementioned building services may be put into operation and use. Similar provisions shall be made
where the improvements or structures are not buildings so that the Owner may use or occupy such portions
of the structure or improvement.
9.9.4 In the event of partial occupancy prior to Substantial Completion, mutually acceptable
arrangements shall be made between the Owner and Contractor in respect of the operation and cost of
necessary security, maintenance and utilities, including heating, ventilating, cooling, water, lighting,
telephone services, and elevators. The Owner shall assume proportionate and reasonable responsibility for
the cost of the above services, reduced by any savings to Contractor for such services realized by reason of
partial occupancy. Further, mutually acceptable arrangements shall be made between the Owner and
Contractor in respect of insurance and damage to the Work. Contractor's acceptance of arrangements
proposed by Owner in respect of such matters shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned.
Similar provisions shall be made where the improvements or structures are not buildings so that the Owner
may use or occupy such portions of the structure or improvement.
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9.9.5 In each instance, when the Owner elects to exercise its right of partial occupancy as described
herein, Owner will give Contractor advance written notice of its election to take the portion or portions
involved, and immediately prior to partial occupancy, Contractor, and the Project Manager shall jointly
inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used to determine and record the conditions of
the same.
9.9.6 It shall be understood, however, that partial occupancy shall not: (1) constitute Final Acceptance
of any Work, (2) relieve the Contractor for responsibility for loss or damage because of or arising out of
defects in, or malfunctioning of, any Work, material, or equipment, nor from any other unfulfilled
obligations or responsibilities under the Contract Documents, or (3) commence any warranty period under
the Contract Documents; provided that Contractor shall not be liable for ordinary wear and tear resulting
from such partial occupancy.
9.9.7 Subject to the terms and conditions provided herein, if the Contractor claims that delay or additional
cost is involved because of partial occupancy by the Owner, Contractor shall make such claim as provided
elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
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9.10

FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

9.10.1 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Project Manager will promptly make such inspection and,
when he finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Construction Contract fully
performed, he will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of his knowledge,
information and belief, and on the basis of his observations and inspections, the Work has been completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found
to be due the Contractor, and noted in said final Certificate, is due and payable. The Project Manager’s
final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that the conditions precedent to the
Contractor's being entitled to final payment as set forth in paragraph 9.10.2 have been fulfilled. Final
Payment is also subject to all City Charter and City Code requirements. Warranties required by the Contract
Documents shall commence on the date that the Project Manager issues a final Certificate of Payment to
the Owner.
9.10.2 Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained percentage shall become due until the
Contractor submits to the Project Manager:
9.10.2.1 Evidence of compliance with all requirements of the Contract Documents: notices, certificates,
affidavits, other requirements to complete obligations under the Contract Documents, including but not
limited to (a) instruction of Owner’s representatives in the operation of mechanical, electrical, plumbing
and other systems, (b) delivery of keys to Owner with keying schedules, sub-master and special keys, (c)
delivery to Owner of Contractor’s general warranty as described in Paragraph 3.5, and each written
warranty and assignment thereof prepared in duplicate, certificates of inspections, and bonds for Project
Manager’s review and delivery to Owner, (d) delivery to Project Manager of printed or typewritten
operating, servicing, maintenance and cleaning instructions for the Work; parts lists and special tools for
mechanical and electrical work;
9.10.2.2 If required by the Owner, (a) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and
other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the Owner or his property might in any way be
responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (b) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, and (c)
other data establishing payment or satisfaction of all such obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers
of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Construction Contract, to the extent
and in such form as may be designated by the Owner, and (d) a final waiver of liens in a form satisfactory
to Owner, covering all Work including that of all subcontractors, vendors, labor, materials and services,
executed by an authorized officer and duly notarized;
9.10.2.3 In addition to the foregoing, all other submissions required by other articles and paragraphs of the
specifications including final construction schedule shall be submitted to the Project Manager before
approval of Final Payment;
9.10.2.4 If any Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor
may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against any such lien. If any such
lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all monies
that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys'
fees.
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9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through
no fault of the Contractor or by the issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Project
Manager so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Project
Manager, and without terminating the Construction Contract, make payment of the balance due for that
portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed
or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if bonds have been
furnished, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work
fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Project Manager prior to
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final
payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.
9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Owner except those
arising from:
.1

unsettled liens,

.2

faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion,

.3

failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents,

.4

terms of any special warranties required by the Contract Documents, or

.5

replacement of material or equipment which is rejected if found, after the date of final
payment, to be defective, or inferior in quality or uniformity, to the material or equipment
specified, or is not as represented to the Project Manager and Owner.

9.10.5 The acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a subcontractor, or supplier shall constitute a
waiver of all claims by that payee.
9.10.6 Pursuant to § 24-91-103, C.R.S., if the Contract Sum exceeds One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,000.00), Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall only be made upon compliance with the
following publication requirement. The Owner shall publish a “notice of final payment” at least twice in an
Arapahoe County newspaper of general circulation prior to making final payment to the Contractor. This
notice of final payment advertises the date, time, and place when final payment will be made and is intended
to alert subcontractors so they can present any claims for unpaid amounts to the Owner. Notwithstanding
anything in the Contract Documents to the contrary, final payment shall not be made to Contractor until the
Owner has complied with § 38-26-107, C.R.S. and all claims, if any, have been resolved to the satisfaction
of the Owner.
ARTICLE 10
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10.1

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS

10.1.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety
precautions and programs in connection with the Work, including, but not limited to, implementing,
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managing, and enforcing construction industry best practices and protocols for maintaining worker and
jobsite safety at the Project related to COVID-19.
10.1.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, in the event the Contractor encounters on
the site material reasonably believed to be asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) which has not been
rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop work in the area affected and report the condition
to the Owner in writing. The Work in the affected area shall not thereafter be resumed except by written
agreement of the Owner and Contractor, if in fact the material is asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)
and has not been rendered harmless. The Work in the affected area shall be resumed in the absence of
asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or when it has been rendered harmless, upon written direction
of Owner.
10.1.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not be required pursuant
to Article 7 to perform without consent any Work relating to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB).
10.2

SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

10.2.1 The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all necessary
protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
.1

all persons involved in or affected by the Work;

.2

all the Work and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage
on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of his
subcontractors or sub-subcontractors; and

.3

other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including but not limited to trees, shrubs,
lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, ditches, fences, gates, private property, and
utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.

.4

The Contractor shall take all measures necessary to mitigate the impact of weather so that
the Project may continue on schedule. In no event shall the Owner be liable for extra costs
incurred on materials and any part of the Work due to the Contractor’s failing to take all
measures necessary to protect the Work from weather and the Contractor shall not be
entitled to such claims. Also, no extension of the Contract Time shall be allowed if the
Contractor is able to proceed with other Work related to the Project.

10.2.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property, or their
protection from damage, injury or loss, including but not limited to, the Occupational Safety and Health
Act (OSHA), as applicable, and all governmental and quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, and decrees
in response to COVID-19.
10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the Work, all
necessary safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards,
promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent utilities of the safeguards and
protections, and complying with the orders, resolutions, and decrees of all federal, state and local governmental
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agencies, instrumentalities and authorities having jurisdiction over the Project or Contractor, including, but not
limited to, those pertaining to COVID-19.

10.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or loss at its sole cost and expense (other than
damage or loss insured under Paragraph 11.3) to any property referred to in Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3
caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractor, any sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and for
which the Contractor is responsible under Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable
to the acts or omissions of the Owner or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone
for whose acts the Owner may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor.
Utility locate services provided in the field by the Owner shall not be deemed an act or omission that relieves
Contractor of its responsibility hereunder. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to
his obligations under Paragraph 3.5.
10.2.5 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.
This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Contractor in
writing to the Owner.
10.2.6 The Contractor shall not load or permit any part of the Work to be loaded so as to endanger its
safety, nor shall the Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures
that will endanger it.
10.3

EMERGENCIES

10.3.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at his
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any additional compensation or extension of time
claimed by the Contractor on account of emergency Work shall be determined as provided in Paragraph
4.3, Paragraph 8.3 and Article 7.
10.4

USE OF EXPLOSIVES, DRIVING OR REMOVAL OF PILES, WRECKING,
EXCAVATION WORK OR OTHER SIMILAR AND POTENTIALLY
DANGEROUS WORK

10.4.1 When the use of explosives, driving or removal of piles, wrecking, excavation work or other
similarly potentially dangerous work is necessary for the prosecution of the Work, the Contractor shall
exercise the utmost care so as not to endanger life or property and shall carry on such activities under the
supervision of properly qualified personnel, such potentially dangerous work shall not be undertaken unless
and until the Project Manager has authorized same.
10.4.2 Detonation of explosives by the Contract shall be by permit authorized by Owner. The following
information must be submitted to the Project Manager or to his or her designee thereof at least thirty (30)
days prior to the detonation of explosives:
.1

A graphic plan showing locations of proposed explosive use and improvements (including
structures, roadways, utilities, etc.) on the property, surrounding land uses, and
improvements on adjacent properties within a distance equal to 1000 feet plus the
maximum distance of vibration as specified in the report described below.
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.2

A geotechnical report prepared by Colorado-registered professional engineer describing
the geology of the area and the impacts of explosive use in the area, including wave
attenuation and travel distance and potential impacts on improvements in the area.

.3

An analysis of alternatives to explosives, including safety, time, and monetary comparisons
of the alternatives.
The Contractor shall ensure that audible signals warning persons of danger will be given
before detonation of explosives.

.4

As a condition of permitting the detonation of explosives as part of the Work, the Developer or Contractor
shall submit to the Project Manager or to his or her designee thereof a certificate of insurance for coverage
of detonation of explosives in the minimum following amounts: $2,000,000 for property damage, each
accident; and $2,000,000 for public liability, bodily injury, single limit or equivalent, each accident. Owner
shall be named as an additional insured on the insurance policy.
10.4.3 The Contractor shall be fully responsible for, and shall save and hold Owner harmless from, any
and all damages, claims, and for the defense of any actions against the Owner resulting from the prosecution
of such Work in connection with or arising out of the Contract Documents.
10.4.4 The Contractor shall notify each public utility company or other owner of property having
structures or improvements in proximity to the site of the Work, of his intent to perform potentially
dangerous work. Such notice shall be given sufficiently in advance to enable the companies or other owners
of property to take such steps as they may deem necessary to protect their property from injury. Such notice
shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for any damages, claims, or the defense of any actions
against the Owner resulting from the performance of such Work in connection with or arising out of the
Construction Contract.
10.4.5 All explosives shall be stored in a secure manner and all storage places shall be marked clearly
"EXPLOSIVES - KEEP OFF" and shall be in the care of competent watchmen at all times. The Contractor
shall also be required to obtain any permits which may be required by the South Metro Fire Rescue
Authority or other fire district having jurisdiction.
10.5

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

10.5.1 Known Underground Utilities and other underground structures are shown on the Drawings only
to the extent such information has been made available to or discovered by the Owner. It is expected that
there may be discrepancies and omissions in the location and quantities of actual Underground Utilities and
other underground structures and those shown. This information is shown for the convenience of the
Contractor, but is not guaranteed to be either correct or complete, and all responsibility for the accuracy
and completeness thereof is expressly disclaimed by Owner. The Contractor shall, ahead of excavation,
confirm the location of all Underground Utilities and other underground structures so that they will not be
accidentally damaged by the construction operation. Contractor shall be responsible for contacting all utility
owners concerning location of all above ground utilities and Underground Utilities before proceeding with
the Work. Notwithstanding utility locate services that may be provided in the field by utility owners,
Contractor shall verify actual location, and Contractor remains solely responsible for any claims or damage
to Underground Utilities or other facilities or structures caused by excavating. Contractor is responsible for,
at no additional cost to the owner, potholing all existing Underground Utilities to be crossed or that may
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otherwise affect their means and methods for constructing the Project prior to beginning any construction
on the Project.
ARTICLE 11
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
11.1

CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

The Contractor agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a policy or policies of insurance sufficient
to insure against all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Contractor pursuant
to the Contract Documents, including but not limited to Paragraphs 3.13, 3.17 and 3.18 hereof, in addition
to any other insurance requirements imposed by the Contract Documents or by law. The Contractor shall
not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed by reason of its failure to
procure or maintain insurance, or by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient
amounts, durations or types.
11.1.1 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and
maintain, at its own expense, valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance
throughout the entire term of its obligations to the Owner. A copy of the policy or signed certificate of
insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times. Evidence of qualified self-insurance status may be
substituted for the Workers’ Compensation Insurance requirements of this paragraph.
11.1.1.1 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give a minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice of
cancellation or intention of non-renewal to the Owner.
11.1.1.2 Limits of liability for Worker’s Compensation Insurance shall be in conformance with the statutory
requirements of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of the State of Colorado. Limits of Employers Liability
Insurance shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injuries, $1,000,000 per employee for bodily injury
by occupational disease, and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injuries by disease.
11.1.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own
expense, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance throughout the entire term of its obligations to the
Owner. A copy of the policy or a signed certificate of insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times.
11.1.2.1 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give all named parties a minimum of a thirty (30)
day notice of cancellation or intention to non-renew coverage or any material change or restriction of
coverage.
11.1.2.2 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence;
Bodily Injury and Property Damage combined, Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.
11.1.2.3 The following coverages shall be included in the policy:
.1

Premises, operations and elevators, including work let or sublet, to cover all claims for
bodily injury (including but not limited to death, disease or sickness) and damage or
destruction or loss of use of any tangible property.
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.2

Products and completed operations.

.3

Broad form blanket contractual liability with all exclusions deleted.

.4

Personal injury liability.

.5

Explosions, collapse, and underground hazards.

.6

Broad form property damage endorsement.

.7

Incidental malpractice.

.8

Independent contractors.

11.1.2.4 The products and completed operations coverage shall be maintained in effect for a period of six
(6) years after the date of final acceptance of the Work.
11.1.3 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its
own expense, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. A copy of a certificate of insurance shall
be on file with the Owner at all times. The policy shall contain a severability of interests’ provision.
11.1.3.1 The policy shall cover all owned or leased vehicles operated by the insured as well as coverage for
all non-owned or hired vehicles used by the insured in the course of his operations.
11.1.3.2 The policy shall be appropriately endorsed to give a minimum of thirty (30) days notice of
cancellation or intent to non-renew to Owner.
11.1.3.3 The limits of liability shall be a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) (combined single
limit).
11.1.4 Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own expense,
an Umbrella (excess) Liability policy throughout the entire term of its obligations to the Owner. A copy of
the policy or a signed certificate of insurance shall be on file with the Owner at all times.
11.1.4.1 Policy shall be in excess of all underlying insurance including employer’s liability, written on a
follow form basis.
11.1.4.2 Policy shall not contain any exclusions for hazards, or contractual hazards.
11.1.4.3 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).
11.1.5 Owner’s Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall carry and maintain, at its own expense, an
Owner's Liability policy in the name of the Owner.
11.1.5.1 Limits of liability shall be a minimum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.
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11.2

ADDITIONAL NAMED INSURED

11.2.1 The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the Contractor’s Automobile,
Commercial General, and Umbrella Liability coverages, and the Commercial General Liability additional
insured coverage shall include products and completed operations coverage. The Contractor’s Automobile,
Commercial General, and Umbrella Liability additional insured coverage shall be primary with respect to
claims made by the City.
11.3

BUILDER’S RISK/PROPERTY INSURANCE

11.3.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the entire Work at the site to
the full insurable value thereof. Such insurance shall be in a company or companies against which the
Owner has no reasonable objection.
This insurance shall include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, subcontractors and subsubcontractors in the Work as additional insureds, providing that such insurance is primary with respect to
claims made by the additional insureds, and be in the form of "all risk" insurance for physical loss or damage
with all exclusions deleted. If not covered under all risk insurance or otherwise provided in the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall effect and maintain similar property insurance on portions of the Work
stored off the site or in transit when such portions of the Work are to be included in a Request for Payment
under paragraph 9.3.2.
11.3.1.1 The form of policy for this coverage shall be "Completed Value". The coverage under this policy
shall include contemplated work and work in progress.
11.3.1.2 If by the terms of this insurance any mandatory deductibles are required, or if the Contractor
should elect, with the concurrence of the Owner, to increase the mandatory deductible amounts or purchase
this insurance with voluntary deductible amounts, the Contractor shall be responsible for payment of the
amount of all deductibles in the event of a paid claim. If separate contractors are added as insureds to be
covered by this policy, the separate contractor shall be responsible for payment of appropriate parts of any
deductibles in the event claims are paid on their part of the Project.
11.4

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

11.4.1 The Contractor shall file two (2) certified copies of all policies with the Project Manager before the
date of commencement of the Work. If the Owner is damaged by the failure of the Contractor to maintain
such insurance and to so notify the Owner, then the Contractor shall bear all reasonable costs properly
attributable thereto. The Owner reserves the right to request and receive a certified copy of any policy at
any time, and any and all endorsements to said policy.
11.4.2 All insurance policies and/or certificates of insurance required under the Contract Documents shall
be issued subject to the following stipulations by the Insurer:
.1

Underwriter shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against the Owner, it being the
intent of the parties that the insurance policy so effected shall protect both parties and be
primary coverage for any and all losses covered by the described insurance.
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.2

The clause entitled "Other Insurance Provisions" contained in any policy including the
Owner as an additional insured shall not apply to the Owner.

.3

The insurance companies issuing the policy or policies shall have no recourse against the
Owner for payment of any premiums due or for any assessments under any form of any
policy.

.4

Any and all deductibles contained in any insurance policy shall be assumed by and shall
be the sole liability of the Contractor.

11.4.3 Additional coverages or higher limits of liability may be required by the Owner should the scope
or nature of the work change during the course of the Construction Contract. All liability insurance and
builder’s risk/property insurance policies required by this Article shall specifically provide that all coverage
limits shall be exclusive of costs of defense, including attorneys’ fees.
11.4.4 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all subcontractors or suppliers obtain
and maintain in force for the term of this Construction Contract insurance policies sufficient to meet the
minimum coverages required under the Contract Documents.
11.4.5 Nothing contained in this Article 11 shall be construed as limiting the extent of the Contractor's
responsibility for payment of damages resulting from his operations under the Construction Contract.
Contractor agrees that he alone shall be completely responsible for procuring and maintaining full insurance
coverage to adequately insure against the risk attendant to the performance of this Construction Contract.
Any approvals of Contractor's insurance coverages by the Owner or the Project Manager shall not operate
to the contrary.
11.4.6 The risk of loss to any property to be provided by Contractor to Owner pursuant to the Contract
Documents shall be upon the Contractor until said property has been finally accepted by Owner.
11.4.7 Nothing in this Article 11 shall be deemed or construed as a waiver of any of the protections to
which Owner may be entitled under the Constitution of the State of Colorado or pursuant to the Colorado
Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., as amended.
11.4.8 The Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and all endorsements required under the
Contract Documents before commencing any Work. It shall be an affirmative obligation of Contractor
to provide written notice to the Owner within two (2) days of the cancellation of or substantive change
to any of the policies required herein and failure to do so shall constitute a breach of the Contract.
11.4.9 All insurance required under the Contract Documents shall be obtained from financially responsible
insurance companies with a current Best’s Insurance Guide Rating of A- and Class VII or better, licensed
in the State of Colorado, and approved by the Owner, and shall be maintained until the Contractor's Work
is accepted by the Owner. The Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance required under the
Contract Documents before commencing any Work. The Owner may, in writing, specifically indicate its
approval or disapproval of each separate policy provided pursuant to the Contract Documents.
11.4.10 All policies under the Contract Documents that are scheduled to expire prior to the time the
Contractor's Work is finally accepted by the Owner shall be renewed prior to the scheduled expiration date
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and evidence of such renewal shall be submitted to the Owner for approval.
11.4.11 If any of the policies required under the Contract Documents shall be or at any time become
unsatisfactory to the Owner as to form or substance, or if a company issuing any such policy shall be or at
any time become unsatisfactory to the Owner, Owner shall so advise Contractor who shall promptly obtain
a new policy, submit the same to the City for approval, and thereafter submit a certificate of insurance as
hereinabove provided.
11.4.12 All liability insurance and builder’s risk/property insurance policies required by this Article shall
be occurrence-based policies.
ARTICLE 12
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
12.1

UNCOVERING OF WORK

12.1.1 If any portion of the Work should be covered contrary to the request of the Project Manager or
Owner or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing
by the Project Manager, be uncovered for his observation and shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense
without change in the Contract Time or Contract Sum.
12.1.2 If any other portion of the Work has been covered which the Owner or Project Manager has not
specifically requested to observe prior to being covered, the Project Manager or Owner may request to see
such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the cost of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be charged to the
Owner. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such
costs unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor, in which event the Owner
shall be responsible for the payment of such costs.
12.2

CORRECTION OF WORK

12.2.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct all Work rejected by the Project Manager as incomplete,
defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether observed before or after Substantial
Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of
correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections and compensation for any
additional services made necessary thereby.
12.2.2 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Paragraph 3.5, if, within one (1) year after the
Date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or within one (1) year after
acceptance by the Owner of designated equipment or within such longer period of time as may be prescribed
by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the
Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously
given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. This period of one (1) year shall be extended
with respect to portions of Work first performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between
Substantial Completion and the actual performance of the Work. This obligation shall survive acceptance
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of the Work and termination of the Construction Contract. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after
discovery of the condition by the Owner.
12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site all portions of the Work which are defective or nonconforming and which have not been corrected or accepted by the Owner.
12.2.4 If the Contractor fails to correct defective or nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the
Owner may correct it in accordance with Paragraph 2.4.
12.2.5 If the Contractor does not proceed with the correction of such defective or non-conforming Work
within a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Project Manager, the Owner may remove it and
may store the materials or equipment at the expense of the Contractor. If the Contractor does not pay the
cost of such removal and storage within ten (10) days thereafter, the Owner may upon ten (10) additional
days' written notice sell such Work at auction or at private sale and shall account for the net proceeds
thereof, after deducting all the costs that should have been borne by the Contractor, including compensation
for any additional services made necessary thereby. If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which
the Contractor should have borne, the difference shall be charged to the Contractor and an appropriate
Change Order shall be issued. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to
cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.
12.2.6 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction, whether
completed or partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused, in whole or in part, by the
Contractor's correction or removal of Work which is defective or not in accordance with the requirements
of the Contract Documents.
12.2.7 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with
respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents, including
Paragraph 3.5 hereof, or under law or in equity. The establishment of the time period of one (1) year after
the Date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the
terms of any warranty required by the Contract Documents relates only to the specific obligation of the
Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which his obligation to comply
with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may
be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to his obligations other than specifically
to correct the Work.
12.3

ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE OR NON-CONFORMING WORK

12.3.1. If the Owner prefers to accept defective or nonconforming Work, he may do so instead of requiring
its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect a reduction in the Contract
Sum where appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has
been made.
ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
13.1

GOVERNING LAW
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13.1.1 The Construction Contract shall be governed by the law of the State of Colorado. Those provisions
of law applicable but discretionary because of the Owner’s status as a home-rule municipality shall be
binding at the Owner’s election.
13.2

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

13.2.1 The Owner and the Contractor each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of
such other party with respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract
Documents. Neither party to the Construction Contract shall assign, sublet, or transfer (by operation of law
or otherwise) any interest in the Construction Contract without the prior written consent of the other. The
Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of the Construction Contract or any monies due or to
become due thereunder without the prior written consent of the Owner and of the surety on the Contractor's
bond. Any assignment without such written consent shall be void. A copy of such consent of surety,
together with a copy of the assignment, shall be filed with the Project Manager. In case the Contractor
assigns all or part of any monies due or to become due under the Construction Contract, the instrument of
assignment shall contain a clause substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of the assignee in
and to any monies due or to become due to the Contractor shall be subject to prior claims and liens of all
persons, firms and corporations for services rendered; for the payment of all laborers and mechanics for
labor performed; for the payment of all materials and equipment used or furnished and for payment of all
materials and equipment used or rented in the performance of the Work called for in the Construction
Contract; and for the payment of any liens, claims, or amounts due the Federal, State or local governments
or any of their funds. This restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the
Contractor's right to payment to its surety or lender.
13.3

WRITTEN NOTICE

13.3.1 Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and may
be given, served, or made by depositing the same in the United States mail addressed to the party to be
notified, postpaid and registered or certified with return receipt requested, or by delivering the same in
person. Notice deposited in the mail in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be effective unless
otherwise stated in the Construction Contract from and after the fourth day next following the date deposited
in the mail, or when actually received, whichever is earlier. Notice given in any other manner shall be
effective only if and when received by the party to be notified. All notices to be given shall be sent to or
made at the last business address known to the party giving notice.
13.4

CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES

13.4.1 Should either party to the Construction Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property
because of any act or omission of the other party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose
acts he is legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after
the first observance of such injury or damage. All claims by Contractor against Owner that are within the
scope of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., shall be subject to, and
brought in accordance with, the provisions of said Act.
13.5

PERFORMANCE, PAYMENT, MAINTENANCE AND WARRANTY BOND
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13.5.1 The Contractor will be required, simultaneously with the execution of the Construction Contract,
to furnish a Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond, in an amount equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of the Contract Sum. Said bond shall be issued by a responsible surety approved by the
Owner and shall guarantee the faithful performance of the Construction Contract and the terms and
conditions herein contained and the maintenance of the proposed improvements in good repair according
to the terms contained in the Construction Contract. Accompanying the bond form shall be a "Power of
Attorney" authorizing the attorney in fact to bind the surety company and certified to include the date of
the bond. Such bond shall be on a form provided by the Owner.
13.5.2 The Contractor shall deliver said bond to the Project Manager no later than the date of execution
of the Construction Contract. If the Contractor fails or neglects to deliver the bond, as specified, he shall
be considered to have abandoned the Construction Contract and his bid security will be forfeited.
13.6

RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

13.6.1 The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. Such rights and remedies shall survive the acceptance of
the Work or any termination of the Contract Documents.
13.6.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Project Manager or Contractor shall constitute a waiver
of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Construction Contract, nor shall any such action or
failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be
specifically agreed in writing.
13.6.3 In all actions by the Owner to enforce its rights and remedies hereunder, whether at law or equity,
the Owner, in addition to all other remedies, shall be entitled to recovery of its reasonable attorneys fees
and costs.
13.6.4 The Contractor agrees that the economic loss rule as set forth in the Town of Alma v. Azco
Construction, Inc., 10 P.3d 1256 (Colo. 2000), shall not serve as a limitation on the Owner's right to pursue
tort remedies in addition to other remedies it may have against the Contractor. Such rights and remedies
shall survive the acceptance of the Work or any termination of the Contract Documents. Contractor further
specifically waives all the provisions of Chapter 8 of Article 20 of Title 13, Colorado Revised Statues,
regarding defects in the Work under the Construction Contract.
13.7

TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

13.7.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents or
by laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of public authorities having jurisdiction shall be made at
an appropriate time. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests,
inspections, and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with
the appropriate public authority. The Contractor shall give the Project Manager and the Owner timely
notice of its readiness so the Project Manager and the Owner may observe such inspection, testing or
approval. The Contractor shall bear all costs of such inspections, tests or approvals.
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13.7.2 If the Project Manager or public authority having jurisdiction determines that any Work requires
additional or special inspection, testing, or approval which paragraph 13.7.1 does not include, the Project
Manager may instruct the Contractor to order such additional or special inspection, testing or approval, and
the Contractor shall give notice as provided in paragraph 13.7.1. If such additional or special inspection or
testing reveals a failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, or if the
necessity of any such testing, inspection, or approval procedures arises out of the fault, neglect, or omission
of Contractor, the Contractor shall bear all costs of such testing, inspection, and approval procedures,
including compensation for any additional services made necessary by such failure; otherwise the Owner
shall bear such costs, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued.
13.7.3 Required certificates of inspection, testing or approval, unless otherwise required by Contract
Documents, shall be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered by him to the Project Manager.
13.7.4 If the Project Manager is to observe the inspections, tests or approvals required by the Contract
Documents, he will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.
13.7.5 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to
avoid delay in the Work.
13.8

LITIGATION AND WORK PROGRESS

13.8.1 Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Contractor shall carry on the Work and maintain its progress
during any litigation proceedings, and the Owner shall continue to make payments to the Contractor in
accordance with the Contract Documents.
13.9

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

13.9.1 In connection with the execution of this Construction Contract, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, age, sex,
handicap, or national origin, if otherwise qualified. Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, lay-off or
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including
apprenticeship.
13.10

COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENSE SUBSTANCE SCREENING

13.10.1 The Contractor shall provide written assurance to the City that each driver that provides services
requiring a commercial driver’s license pursuant to this Construction Contract participates in an alcohol
and controlled substances testing program that meets the requirements of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Regulations found at 49 C.F.R. Part 382.
ARTICLE 14
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
14.1

TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR
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14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Construction Contract if all of the Work is stopped for a
continuous period of sixty (60) days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a subcontractor, subsubcontractor, or their agents or employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work under
contract with the Contractor, for any of the following reasons:
.1

issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction, except as
provided below in this Section 14.1.1;

.2

an act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, making material
unavailable;

.3

because the Project Manager has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified
the Contractor of the reason for withholding certification as provided in paragraph 9.4.1,
or because the Owner has not made payment on a Certificate for Payment (without cause)
within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

.4

if repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions by the Owner as described in paragraph
14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than one hundred percent (100%) of the total number
of days scheduled for completion, or one hundred twenty (120) days in any three hundred
sixty-five (365) day period, whichever is less.

In addition, if all of the Work is stopped for a continuous period of ninety (90) days due to any governmental
or quasi-governmental orders, resolutions, or decrees related to COVID-19, and the cause of such Work
stoppage is not any act or fault of the Contractor or a subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work under contract with the Contractor, then
Contractor may terminate the Construction Contract.
14.1.2 If one of the above reasons exists, the Contractor may, upon fourteen (14) days' advance written
notice to the Owner, terminate the Construction Contract, unless this reason is cured prior to the expiration
of the notice period. Contractor may recover from the Owner payment for Work properly executed in
accordance with Contract Documents (the basis for such payment shall be as provided in the Construction
Contract) and payment for costs directly related to work thereafter performed by Contractor in terminating
such work, including reasonable demobilization and cancellation charges. The Owner shall not be
responsible for damages for loss of anticipated profits on work not performed on account of any termination
described in paragraphs 14.1.1 and 14.1.2.
14.2

TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE

14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Construction Contract if the Contractor:
.1
.2
.3

refuses or fails to supply, in a timely manner, enough properly skilled workers or proper
materials or equipment;
fails to make payment to subcontractors or suppliers for materials, equipment, or labor in
accordance with the respective agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors
or suppliers;
disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of the City or other governmental
entity having jurisdiction;
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.4
.5

.6

disregards the instructions of Owner when such instructions are based on the requirements
of the Contract Documents;
is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of
Contractor's creditors, or a trustee or receiver is appointed for Contractor or for any of its
property, or files a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under
bankruptcy or similar law; or
otherwise does not fully comply with the Contract Documents.

14.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or
remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and Contractor's surety, if any, seven (7) days' written
notice, (except in cases of emergency as reasonably determined by Owner), terminate the services of the
Contractor and may:
.1

take possession of the site and project and of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned, rented, or leased by the Contractor;
and

.2

finish the Work by whatever method the Owner may deem expedient.

14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Construction Contract for one (1) of the reasons stated in paragraph
14.2.1, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.
14.2.4 To the extent the costs of completing the Work, including compensation for additional professional
services and expenses, exceed those costs which would have been payable to Contractor to complete the
Work except for Contractor's default, Contractor will pay the difference to Owner, and this obligation for
payment shall survive termination of the Construction Contract.
14.2.5 In addition to Owner's right to remove Contractor from any part of the Work pursuant to the
Contract Documents, Owner may, at any time, at will and without cause:
.1
terminate the Construction Contract for convenience prior to commencement of the Work,
provided that Owner shall not exercise this right unreasonably;
.2
terminate the Construction Contract if, after the Work has commenced, the Work is delayed
for a continuous period of seventy-five (75) days due to any governmental or quasi-governmental
orders, resolutions, or decrees related to COVID-19; or
.3
terminate any part of the Work or any subcontract or all remaining Work for any reason
whatsoever by giving written notice to Contractor specifying the part of the Work or subcontract
to be terminated and the effective date of termination. Contractor shall continue to prosecute the
part of the Work not terminated, if any. For the remainder of the Work, the Contract Documents
shall remain in full force and effect.
14.2.6 In the event of termination pursuant to paragraph 14.2.5.1, Owner shall pay Contractor an amount
equivalent to Contractor’s reasonable cost of demobilization and cancellation charges as the sole amount
due to Contractor in connection with the Construction Contract. In the event of termination pursuant to
paragraph 14.2.5.2, Owner shall pay as the sole amount due to Contractor in connection with the
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Construction Contract the sums due for Work properly executed in accordance with Contact Documents to
date, including allowable profit and overhead (except retainage sums shall not be paid prior to one hundred
twenty (120) days following the date of termination). In the event of termination pursuant to paragraph
14.2.5.3, Owner shall pay as the sole amount due to Contractor in connection with the Construction Contract
the following: (i) sums due for Work properly executed in accordance with Contact Documents to date,
including allowable profit and overhead (except retainage sums shall not be paid prior to one hundred
twenty (120) days following the date of termination); (ii) reasonable cost of demobilization and cancellation
charges; and (iii) as additional and special consideration for this provision, a profit for underperformed
work equal to one-half percent (0.5%) of the cost of the Work actually performed to date.
14.2.7 Upon a determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that the termination of Contractor
pursuant to paragraph 14.2.1 was wrongful, such termination will be deemed converted to a termination for
convenience pursuant to paragraph 14.2.5 and Contractor's remedy for wrongful termination shall be
limited to the recovery of the payments permitted for termination for convenience as set forth in paragraph
14.2.6.
14.3

SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE

14.3.1 In addition to Owner's right to suspend, delay, or interrupt Contractor from any part of the Work
pursuant to the Contract Documents, Owner may, at any time, at will and without cause, suspend, delay, or
interrupt all or any part of the Work or any subcontract for all or any part of the work for any reason
whatsoever for such period of time as the Owner may determine by giving written notice to Contractor
specifying the part of the Work or subcontract to be suspended, delayed, or interrupted and the effective
date of such suspension, delay, or interruption. Contractor shall continue to prosecute the part of the Work
not suspended, delayed, or interrupted and shall properly protect and secure the part of the Work so
suspended, delayed, or interrupted. If any part of the Work or subcontract is so suspended, delayed, or
interrupted, Contractor shall be entitled to payment of reasonable standby fees (or at Owner's option,
payment for demobilization and subsequent remobilization) and of costs directly associated with protecting
and securing the affected Work; provided, however, that payment by Owner of any such fees and costs
shall not be required for any suspension, delay, or interruption in Contractor’s performance of the Work
resulting from an order, resolution, or other decree by the City Council or City Manager of Cherry Hills
Village that is issued in response to COVID-19. Further, no payment shall be made by Owner, however,
to the extent that such Work or subcontract is, was, or could have been suspended, delayed, or interrupted
under the Contract Documents or an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the
Construction Contract. In case of such suspension, delay, or interruption, Owner will issue a Construction
Change Directive or authorize a Change Order making any required adjustment to the Date of Substantial
Completion or the Contract Sum. For the remainder of the Work, the Contract Documents shall remain in
full force and effect.
14.3.2 The rights and remedies of Owner under this Paragraph 14.3 shall be non-exclusive, and shall be
in addition to all the other remedies available to Owner at law or in equity.
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Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank

EXHIBIT F:

SPECIFICATIONS

The Specifications for this Project shall be the following:
I. REFERENCE STANDARDS
PART 1 - SUMMARY
1.1

SUMMARY:

1.1.1

WORK INCLUDED:
A.

This Section contains a summary of industry-accepted and recognized standards
published by trade associations, government, and institutional organizations which
are referred to in the various sections of these specifications or elsewhere in the
Contract Documents.

B.

Standards listed herein are included in the Contract Documents by this reference,
and become a part of the Contract Documents to the same extent as though
included in their entirety unless specific limitations are noted in the individual
Specifications Sections.

C.

Listings of reference standards include name and address of the organization
publishing the standard, plus the full name and designator of each of the standards
referenced herein.

D.

If a publication date or edition number is listed with the reference standard, that
publication date or edition number shall apply; otherwise, the publication date of
edition number in effect at the Contract Date shall apply.

E.

Inclusion of reference standards herein does not make the Engineer or Public
Works Director an agent of the publishing agency, nor does it obligate the Engineer
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or Public Works Director to perform inspections required by or enforce rules or
regulations contained in the reference standards.
1.2

REFERENCES:

1.2.1

RELATED DOCUMENTS:
General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and
applicable provisions of other Division 1 sections apply to this section.

1.2.2

PRECEDENCE OF REQUIREMENTS: In the event of a conflict between the
requirements of a published reference standard and the specific requirements of the
general conditions, supplementary conditions, or other Contract Documents, or between
one reference standard and another reference standard, the more stringent requirements
shall take precedence.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS
(Not Used)
PART 3 - EXECUTION
3.1.1

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY AND
OFFICIALS (AASHTO)
444 North Capital Street NW, Suite 225, Washington, DC 2001
M103 M105 M111 M183 T166 -

3.1.2

TRANSPORTATION

Mild to medium strength carbon-steel castings for general application
Gray iron castings
Zinc (Hot-Galvanized) coatings on products fabricated from rolled,
pressed, and forged steel shapes, plates, bar, and strip
Structural steel
Bulk specific gravity of compacted bituminous mixtures

AMERICAN CONCRETE INSTITUTE (ACI)
P.O. Box 19150, Redford Station, Detroit, MI 48219
(313) 372-9800
ACI 211.1 -

Standard practice for selecting proportions for normal, heavyweight, and
mass concrete
ACI 211.2 - Standard practice for selecting proportions for structural lightweight
concrete
ACI 301 Specifications for structural concrete for buildings
ACI 304 Recommended practice for measuring, mixing, transporting, and placing
concrete
ACI 304.2R - Placing concrete by pumping methods
ACI 305R Hot weather concreting
ACI 306R Cold weather concreting
ACI 315 Details and detailing of concrete reinforcement
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ACI 318 ACI 347 ACI SP-66 3.1.9

Building codes requirements for reinforced concrete
Note: Reference to ACI 318 may be limited by more stringent requirements
of local building code
Recommended practice for concrete formwork
ACI detailing manual (synopsis)

AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR TESTING AND MATERIALS (ASTM)
1916 Race Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103
(215) 299-5585
ASTM A27 ASTM A36 ASTM A48 ASTM A53 ASTM A82 -

Specification for steel castings, carbon, for general application
Standard specification for structural steel
Specification for gray iron castings
Specification for pipe, steel, black and hot-dipped, zinc-coated, welded and
seamless
Specifications for steel wire, plain, for concrete reinforcement.

ASTM A120 - Specification for pipe, steel, black and hot-dipped zinc-coated (galvanized)
welded and seamless, for ordinary uses
ASTM A123 - Specification for zinc (hot dipped-galvanized) coatings on iron and steel
products
ASTM A185 - Specifications for steel welded wire, fabric, plain, for concrete
reinforcement
ASTM A283 - Specification for low and intermediate tensile strength carbon steel
plates, shapes, and bars
ASTM A307 - Specification for carbon steel externally threaded standard fasteners
ASTM A325- Specification for high-strength bolts for structural steel joints
ASTM A366 - Specification for steel, carbon, cold-rolled sheet, commercial quality
ASTM A416 - Specification for uncoated seven-wire stress-relieved steel strand for
pre-stressed concrete
ASTM A421 - Specification for uncoated stress-relieved wire for pre-stressed concrete
ASTM A446 - Specification for steel sheet, zinc-coated (galvanized) by the hot-dip
process, structural (physical) quality
ASTM A490 - Specification for heat-treated, steel structural bolts, 150 ksi (1035 mpa)
tensile strength
ASTM A500 - Specification for cold-formed welded and seamless carbon steel structural
tubing in rounds and shapes
ASTM A501 - Specification for hot-formed welded and seamless carbon steel structural
tubing
ASTM A525 - Specification for general requirements for steel sheet, zinc-coated
(galvanized) by the hot-dip process
ASTM A526 - Specification for sheet steel, zinc-coated (galvanized) by the hot-dip
process, commercial quality
ASTM A536 - Specification for ductile iron castings
ASTM A568 - Specification for general requirements for steel, carbon and
high-strength low-alloy hot-rolled sheet and cold-rolled sheet
ASTM A570 - Specification for hot-rolled carbon steel sheet and strip, structural quality
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ASTM A572 - Specification for high-strength low-alloy columbium-vanadium steels of
structural quality
ASTM A588 - Specification for high-strength low-alloy structural steel with 50 ksi (345
Mpa) minimum yield point to 4 inches thick
ASTM A611 - Specification for steel, cold-rolled sheet, carbon, structural
ASTM A615 - Specification for deformed and plain billet-steel bars for concrete
reinforcement
ASTM A663 - Specification for steel bars, carbon, merchant quality, mechanical
properties
ASTM A775 - Specification for epoxy-coated reinforcing steel bars
ASTM B32 - Specification for solder metal
ASTM B88 - Specification for seamless copper water tube
ASTM B209 - Specification for aluminum and aluminum-alloy sheet and plate
ASTM B221 - Specification for aluminum-alloy extruded bars, rods, wire, shapes, and
tubes
ASTM C31 - Methods of making and curing concrete test specimens in the field
ASTM C33 - Specification for concrete aggregates
ASTM C36 - Specification for gypsum wall board
ASTM C39 - Test method for compressive strength of cylindrical concrete specimens
ASTM C42 - Method of obtaining and testing drilled cores and sawed beams of
concrete
ASTM C67 - Method of testing brick and structural clay tile
ASTM C76 - Specification for reinforced concrete culvert, storm drain, and sewer pipe
ASTM C79 - Test method for gypsum sheathing board
ASTM C94 - Specification for ready mixed concrete
ASTM C109 - Test method for compressive strength of hydraulic cement mortars
(using 2-inch or 50 mm cube specimens)
ASTM C110 - Methods for physical testing of quicklime, hydrated lime, and limestone
ASTM C136 - Method for sieve analysis of fine and coarse aggregates
ASTM C138 - Test method for unit weight, yield, and air content (gravimetric) of
concrete
ASTM C140 - Method of sampling and testing concrete masonry units
ASTM C143 - Test method for slump or Portland cement concrete
ASTM C144 - Specification for aggregate for masonry mortar
ASTM C150 - Specification for Portland cement
ASTM C171 - Specification for sheet materials for curing concrete
ASTM C172 - Method of sampling fresh concrete
ASTM C173 - Test method for air content of freshly mixed concrete by the volumetric
method
ASTM C207 - Specification for hydrated lime for masonry purposes
ASTM C231 - Test method for ----- content of freshly mixed concrete by the pressure
method
ASTM C260 - Specification for air entraining admixtures for concrete
ASTM C270 - Specification for mortar for unit masonry
ASTM C309 - Specification for liquid membrane-forming compounds for curing
concrete
ASTM C330 - Specification for lightweight aggregated for structural concrete
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ASTM C425 ASTM C476 ASTM C478 ASTM C494 ASTM C506 ASTM C507 ASTM C578 ASTM C612 ASTM C630 ASTM C641 ASTM C645 ASTM C665 ASTM C672 ASTM C700 -

Specification for compression joints for vitrified clay pipe and fittings
Specification for grout for masonry
Specification for precast reinforced concrete manhole sections
Specification for chemical admixtures for concrete
Specification for reinforced concrete arch culvert, storm drain, and
sewer pipe
Specification for reinforced concrete elliptical culvert, storm drain, or
sewer pipe
Specification for preformed, cellular polystyrene thermal insulation
Specification for mineral fiber block and board thermal insulation
Specification of water-resistant gypsum backing board
Test method for staining materials in lightweight concrete aggregates
Specification for non-load (axial) bearing steel studs, runners (track), and
furring channels for screw application of gypsum board
Specification for mineral fiber blanket thermal insulation for light frame
construction and manufactured housing
Test method for scaling resistance of concrete surfaces exposed to
deicing chemicals
Specification for vitrified clay pipe, extra strength, standard strength,
and perforated

ASTM C726 - Specification for mineral fiber and mineral fiber, rigid cellular,
polyurethane composite roof insulation board
ASTM C803 - Test method for penetration resistance of hardened concrete
ASTM C805 - Test method for rebound number of hardened concrete
ASTM C828- Recommended practice for low-pressure air test of vitrified clay pipe
lines
ASTM C834 - Specification for latex sealing compounds
ASTM C920 - Specification for elastomeric joint sealants
ASTM C936 - Specification for solid concrete interlocking paving units
ASTM D41 - Specification for asphalt primer used in roofing and waterproofing
ASTM D312 - Specification for asphalt used in roofing
ASTM D422 - Test method for particle size analysis of soils
ASTM D448 - Specification for standard sizes of coarse aggregate for highway
construction
ASTM D698 - Test method for moisture density relations of soils and soil-aggregate
mixtures using 5.5-lb. rammer and 12 inch drop
ASTM D1188-Test method for bulk specific gravity and density of compacted
bituminous mixtures using paraffin-coated specimens
ASTM D1227- Specification for emulsified asphalt used as a protective coating for
built-up roofing
ASTM D1556 -Test method for density of soil in place by the sand-cone method
ASTM D1557- Method for moisture density relations of soils and soil-aggregate
mixtures using 10-lb. rammer and 18 inch drop
ASTM D1559- Test method for resistance to plastic flow of bituminous mixtures using
marshal apparatus
ASTM D1667- Specification for flexible cellular materials - vinyl chloride polymers and
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copolymers (closed-cell vinyl)
ASTM D1751- Specification for preformed expansion joint fillers for concrete paving
and structural construction (non-extruding and resilient bituminous types)
ASTM D1752 -Specification for preformed sponge rubber and cork expansion joint
fillers for concrete paving and structural construction
ASTM D1784 -Specification for rigid poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) compounds and
chlorinated poly (vinyl chloride) (CPVC) compounds
ASTM D1785 -Specification for poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) pipe, schedules 40, 80 and
120
ASTM D2000 -Classification for rubber products in automotive applications
ASTM D2167 -Test method for density of soil in place by the rubber-balloon method
ASTM D2172- Test method for quantitative extraction of bitumen from bituminous
paving mixtures
ASTM D2178- Specification for asphalt glass (felt) used in roofing and waterproofing
ASTM D2216- Method for laboratory determination of water (moisture) content of
soil, rock, and soil-aggregate mixtures
ASTM D2241- Specification for poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) plastic pipe (SDR-PR)
ASTM D2287- Specification for nonrigid vinyl chloride polymer and copolymer molding
and extrusion compounds
ASTM D2487- Test method for classification of soils for engineering purposes
ASTM D2564- Specification for solvent cements for poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) plastic
pipe and fittings
ASTM D2729- Specification for poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) sewer pipe and fittings
ASTM D2855- Recommended practice for making solvent cemented joints with poly
(vinyl chloride) (PVC) pipe and fittings
ASTM D2898- Accelerated weathering of fire-retardant-treated wood for fire testing
ASTM D2922- Test method for density of soil and soil-aggregate in place by nuclear
method
ASTM D2950- Test method for density of bituminous concrete in place by nuclear
method
ASTM D3017- Test method for moisture content of soil and soil-aggregate in place
by nuclear methods (shallow depth)
ASTM D3034- Specification for type PSM poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) sewer pipe and
fittings
ASTM D3909- Specification for asphalt roll roofing (glass mat) surfaced with mineral
granules
ASTM D4253- Test method for maximum index density of soils using a vibratory table
ASTM D4254- Test methods for minimum index density of soils and calculation of
relative density
ASTM D4318- Test method for liquid limit, plastic limit, plasticity index of soils
ASTM D4397- Specification for polyethylene sheeting for construction, industrial, and
agricultural applications
ASTM E84 - Test method for surface burning characteristics of building materials
ASTM E96 - Test methods for water vapor transmission of materials
ASTM E136 - Test method for behavior of materials in a vertical tube furnace at 750oC
ASTM E283 - Test method for rate of air leakage through exterior windows, curtain
walls, and doors
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ASTM E329 - Recommended practice for inspection and testing agencies for concrete,
steel, and bituminous materials as used in construction
ASTM E331- Test method for water penetration of exterior windows, curtain walls,
and doors by uniform static air pressure difference
ASTM E605 - Test method for thickness and density of sprayed fire-resistive material
applied to structural members
ASTM E759 - Test method for effect of deflection of sprayed fire-resistive material
applied to structural members
ASTM E760 - Test method for effect of impact on bonding of sprayed fire-resistive
material applied to structural members
ASTM E761 - Test method for compressive strength of sprayed fee-resistive material
applied to structural members
ASTM E859 - Test method for air erosion of sprayed fire-resistive material applied to
structural members
ASTM F567 - Practice for installation of chain link fence
ASTM F679 - Specification for poly (vinyl chloride) (PVC) large diameter plastic gravity
sewer pipe and fittings
3.1.3

AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION (AWWA):
6666 W. Quincy Ave., Denver, CO 80235
(303)794-7711
Specifications and Test Methods Specifically Referenced Herein.

3.1.4

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CDOT)
4201 E. Arkansas Avenue, Denver, CO 80222
(303)757-9011
Standard Specification for Road and Bridge Construction, 1991 Edition. (Brown Book)

3.1.5

PORTLAND CEMENT ASSOCIATION (PCA)
5420 Old Orchard Road, Skokie, IL 60077
(312)966-6200
Design and Control of Concrete Admixtures.

3.1.6

DENVER WATER DEPARTMENT
1600 West 12th Avenue, Denver, CO 80254
(303)628-6000
Engineering Standards

3.1.7 Arapahoe County Roadway Design and Construction Standards
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II. SPECIFICATIONS:
CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, DRIVEWAYS AND CROSSPANS
1200.1 SCOPE
Concrete work shall consist of air entrained Portland Cement concrete constructed on a
prepared subgrade in accordance with these Specifications. The completed work shall
conform to the thicknesses outlined in the contract documents. The completed work shall
conform to the lines and grades established by the ENGINEER at the job site.
1200.2 QUALITY STANDARDS
The latest published revision of the Quality Standards in effect at the time of bid shall apply.
AASHTO M 33:

Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete (Bituminous
Type)

AASHTO M 153:

Preformed Sponge Rubber and Cork Expansion Joint Fillers
for Concrete Paving and Structural Construction

AASHTO M 213:

Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete Paving and
Structural Construction

AASHTO T 23:

Making and Curing Concrete Compressive and Flexural
Strength Test Specimens in the Field

ASTM D 994:

Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete (Bituminous
Type)

ASTM D 1751:

Preformed Expansion Joint Fillers for Concrete Paving and
Structural Construction

ASTM D 1752:

Preformed Sponge Rubber and Cork Expansion Joint Fillers
for Concrete Paving and structural Construction

1200.3 SUBMITTALS
The CONTRACTOR shall submit batch tickets for each load of concrete if requested by the
City at any time during the project. Tickets shall show all materials and additives used in
each batch.
1200.4 MATERIALS
Concrete shall conform to the following requirements:
Min. 28 day Field Compressive Strength
Min. Cementitious Materials
Max. Water/Cement Ratio

4000 Psi
610 lbs./cu. yd.
0.48 lbs H2O/lbs cement
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Air Content % Range
Maximum Slump
Max. Fine Aggregate % of total Aggregate
1200.4.1

5-8
4"
50%

Portland Cement Concrete

This material shall consist of a mixture of coarse and fine aggregates, Portland
cement, water and other materials or admixtures as required. Portland cement shall
comply with the Colorado Department of Highways requirements. The type of
cement shall be Type II or Type II Modified unless sulfate conditions dictate
otherwise. Table 2.2.3 in Chapter 2.2 of ACI 201 indicates recommendations for
sulfate resistance.
1200.4.2

Concrete Aggregates

The grading and composition requirements for coarse and fine aggregates for
concrete shall conform to the following tables.
COARSE AGGREGATES FOR PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
Sieve Size or
Test Procedure
1 1/2”
1"
3/4"
1/2"
3/8”
#4
#8
% Wear
Clay Lumps * Friable Particles, %
Coal & Lignites, %
Sodium Sulfate Soundness %

Percent Passing or
Test Requirement
No. 57
No. 67
100
--95-100 100
--90-100
25-60
----20-55
0-10
0-10
0-5
0-5
45, Max.
2.0, Max.
0.5, Max.
12, Max.

FINE AGGREGATES FOR PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
Sieve Size or
Test Procedure
3/8"
#4
#16
#50
#100
#200

Percent Passing or
Test Requirement
100
95-100
45-80
10-30
2-10
3, Max.
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Friable Particles, %
Coal & Lignite, %
Deleterious Material (AASHTO11),%
Sand Equivalent (AASHTO T176),%
Fineness Modules
Sodium Sulfate Soundness, %
1200.4.3

1.0, Max.
1.0, Max.
3, Max.
80, Min.
2.50-3.50
20.0, Max.

Coarse Aggregate for Concrete

Coarse aggregates shall meet Colorado Department of Highways Section 703.02
requirements and gradation as to conform to the requirements of AASHTO M 80,
except that the percentage of wear shall not exceed 45 when tested in accordance
with AASHTO T 96. Coarse aggregate shall conform to the grading in above table.
1200.4.4

Fine Aggregate for Concrete

Fine aggregates shall meet Colorado Department of Highways Section 703.01
requirements and gradation as shown above. Fine aggregate for concrete shall
conform to the requirements of AASHTO M 6. The amount of deleterious substances
removable by elutriation shall not exceed 3 percent by dry weight of fine aggregate
when tested in accordance with AASHTO T 11, unless otherwise specified. The
minimum Sand Equivalent, as tested in accordance with AASHTO T 176 shall be 80,
unless otherwise specified. The Fineness Modules shall not be less than 2.50 or
greater than 3.50, unless otherwise approved.
1200.4.5

Fly Ash

Fly Ash shall comply with Colorado Department of Highways Section 701.02. The
maximum allowable replacement of cement by fly ash shall not exceed 20% by
weight.
Water shall meet the requirements of Colorado Department of Highways Section
712.01.
1200.4.6

Concrete Curing Materials and Admixtures

420.4.6.1

Curing Materials

Curing Materials shall conform to the following requirements as specified:
Burlap Cloth made from Jute or Kenaf AASHTO M 182
Liquid Membrane-Forming Compounds for Curing Concrete AASHTO M
148
Sheet Materials for Curing Concrete AASHTO M 171
Straw shall not be used for curing unless approved by the ENGINEER.
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420.4.6.2

Air-Entraining Admixtures

Air-entraining admixtures shall conform to the requirements of AASHTO M
154.
Admixtures which have been frozen will be rejected.
Air entraining and chemical admixtures shall meet the requirements of
Colorado Department of Highways Sections 711.02 and 711.03. No chloride
containing additives shall be permitted.
1200.4.7

Chemical Admixtures

Chemical admixtures for concrete shall conform to the requirements of AASHTO M
194.
Admixtures which have been frozen will be rejected.
1200.5 EXECUTION OF WORK
1200.5.1

Subgrade Preparation

The subgrade shall be excavated or filled to the required grades and lines. All soft,
yielding, or otherwise unsuitable material shall be removed and replaced with suitable
material with the Project Manager approval. Filled sections shall be compacted and
compaction shall extend a minimum of six inches outside the form lines.
The moisture content of the subgrade shall be brought within +/- 2% of optimum
moisture content and compacted to 95% of standard proctor density for subgrade
materials classified as A-4 thru A-7 or 95% of modified proctor density for materials
classified as A-1 thru A-3.
The City of Cherry Hills Village requires the use of Class # 6 Roadbase as subgrade material in all work areas, when new material is required. The contractor
will be responsible for supplying all of the required material. Compaction of the
sub-grade must be performed with jumping-jack type compactor, use of plate
compactors will not be accepted by the City.
1200.5.2

Concrete Placement

Concrete transported in truck mixers or truck agitators shall be delivered to the site
of the Work and completely discharged within a period of ninety (90) minutes after
the cement comes in contact with the mixing water or with the combined aggregates
containing free moisture in excess of 2% by weight.
The concrete shall be placed either by an approved slip form/extrusion machine, by
the formed method, or by a combination of these methods. The subgrade shall be
conditioned to provide a uniformly moist surface when concrete is placed.
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1200.5.2.1

Machine Placement

The slip form/extrusion machine shall be so designed as place, spread,
consolidate, screed, and finish the concrete in one complete pass in such a
manner that a minimum of hand finishing will be necessary to provide a dense
and homogenous concrete section. The machine shall shape, vibrate, and/or
extrude the concrete for the full width and depth of the concrete section being
placed. It shall be operated with as nearly a continuous forward movement
as possible. All operations of mixing, delivery, and spreading concrete shall
be so coordinated as to provide uniform progress, with stopping and starting
of the machine held to a minimum.
1200.5.2.2

Formed Method

The vertical face of previously sawed and adjacent asphalt pavement may
NOT be used as a forming surface. CONTRACTOR shall use forms on front
and back of all curb and gutter, sidewalks and crosspans.
The forms shall be of metal or other suitable material that is straight and free
from warp, having sufficient strength to resist the pressure of the concrete
without displacement and sufficient tightness to prevent the leakage of
mortar. Flexible or rigid forms of proper curvature may be used for curves
having a radius of 100 feet or less. Division plates shall be metal. Where
directed by the Project Manager the Contractor shall use a thin metal or wood
back form to preserve landscaping, sprinklers, etc... Form must be straight
and rigid and must be approved by the Project Manager prior to use on
project.
The front and back forms shall extend for the full depth of the concrete. All of
the forms shall be braced and staked so that they remain in both horizontal
and vertical alignment until their removal. They shall be cleaned and coated
with an approved form-release agent before concrete is placed against them.
The concrete shall be deposited into the forms without segregation and then
it shall be tamped and spaded. Low roll or mountable curbs may be formed
without the use of a face form by using a straight edge and template to form
the curb face. When used, face forms shall be removed as soon as possible
to permit finishing. Front and back forms shall be removed without damage
to the concrete after it has set.
Should the removal of adjacent asphalt pavement be required beyond that
shown in the asphalt patch detail to properly correct failed concrete sections,
the Contractor shall remove and replace said asphalt pavement to such an
extent as to provide a smooth repair. The Project Manager shall be notified
prior to commencing any additional asphalt removal.
The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager documentation to certify
the asphalt material used meets these specifications. All requirements of the
Standard Specifications for asphalt pavement construction and pavement
material quality and production shall apply.
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1200.5.3

Finishing

The plastic concrete shall be finished smooth by means of a float and then it shall be
given final surface texture using a light broom or burlap drag. Concrete that is
adjacent to forms and formed joints shall be edged with a suitable edging tool to be
approved by the City
1200.5.4
(a)

Jointing
Contraction Joints:
Transverse weakened-plane contraction joints shall be constructed at right
angles to the curb line at intervals not exceeding 10 feet. Joint depth shall
average at least one-fourth of the cross section of the concrete.
Contraction joints may be sawed, hand-formed, or made by 1/8 inch thick
division plates in the form work. Sawing shall be done early after the concrete
has set to prevent the formation of uncontrolled cracking. The joints may be
hand-formed either by (1) using a narrow or triangular jointing tool or a thin
metal blade to impress a plane of weakness into the plastic concrete, or (2)
inserting 1/8 inch thick steel strips into the plastic concrete temporarily. Steel
strips shall be withdrawn before final finishing of the concrete. Where division
plates are used to make contraction joints, the plates shall be removed after
the concrete has set and while the forms are still in place.

(b)

Expansion Joints:
Expansion joints shall be constructed at right angles to the curb line at
immovable structures and at points of curvature for short radius curves. Filler
material for expansion joints shall conform to requirements of one or more of
the Quality Standards defined in Section 403.2 and shall be furnished in a
single 1/2 inch thick piece for the full depth and width of the joint.
Expansion joints in a slip formed curb or curb-and-gutter shall be constructed
with an appropriate hand tool by raking or sawing through partially set
concrete for the full depth and width of the section. The cut shall be only wide
enough to permit a snug fit for the joint filler. After the filler is placed, open
areas adjacent to the filler shall be filled with concrete and then troweled and
edged. The Contractor may choose to place the filler and pour the concrete
around it.
Alternately, an expansion joint may be installed by removing a short section
of freshly extruded curb-and-gutter immediately, installing temporary holding
forms, placing the expansion joint filler, and replacing and reconsolidating the
concrete that was removed. Contaminated concrete shall be discarded.
Construction joints may be either butt or expansion-type joints. Curbs or
combined curbs and gutters constructed adjacent to existing concrete shall
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have the same type of joints as in the existing concrete, with similar spacing,
however, contraction joint spacing shall not exceed 10 feet.
All Driveways and walks must have expansion joints installed during
installation.
1200.5.5

Protection

The Contractors shall always have materials available to protect the surface of the
plastic concrete against rain. These materials shall consist of waterproof paper or
plastic sheeting. For slip form construction, materials such as wood planks or forms
to protect the edges shall also be required. Concrete damaged by rain may be
required to be removed and replaced at the Contractors expense.
Concrete being placed in cold weather during which the temperature may be
expected to drop below 35 degrees F., shall be suitably protected to keep the
concrete from freezing until it is at least 10 days old. Concrete injured by frost action
may be required to be removed and replaced at the Contractor’s expense.
The Contractor will be responsible for correcting any vandalism or defacement
(graffiti) that occurs on the concrete prior to the substantial completion walk through.
1200.5.6

Curing

Concrete shall be cured for at least 7 days after placement to protect against loss of
moisture, rapid temperature change, and mechanical injury prior to any overlay or
reconstruction work. Moist burlap, waterproof paper, white polyethylene sheeting,
white liquid membrane compound, or a combination thereof may be used as the
curing material. Membrane curing shall not be permitted in frost-affected areas when
the concrete will be exposed to deicing chemicals within 30 days after completion of
the curing period.
1200.6 TOLERANCE
Forms shall not deviate from true line by more than 1/4" at any point.
Mixed concrete shall be not less than 50oF. nor more than 90oF. at the time of placing it in
forms unless otherwise directed.
If air temp. is 35oF., or less at the time of placing, the Project Manager will require water
and/or aggregate heated to not less than 70oF. or more than 150oF.
Finished joints shall not deviate more than 1/4" in the horizontal alignment from a straight
line.
The following tolerances shall be adhered to for curb, gutter and walk, crosspans, radii, etc.
Any localized humps and or depressions greater than 1/4" will require removal and
replacement of the work in question.
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No ponding or water greater than 1/8” shall be allowed.
Combination curb, gutter and walk and/or vertical curb and gutter flowline depth shall not vary
from adopted standards by more than +1/2", measured vertically from the top of curb to the
gutter invert.
Pedestrian walks shall have a minimum of 2.0% and a maximum of 2.5% slope toward the
roadway.
Contraction and construction joints shall be placed at the standard spacing of 10 feet in curb,
gutter, sidewalks, crosspans, trickle channel, etc. A minimum spacing of 5 feet will be
allowed for repairs.
Heave or settlement of sidewalk, relative to separate curb pour, greater than 1/4" shall be
cause for corrective action. This provision shall not apply to transverse sidewalk joints.
At the time of final acceptance inspection, the repair of all cracks will be completed.
1.

Cracks that are less than 1/4" wide, exhibit no horizontal or vertical shifting, and do
not meet the conditions in 2), 3) and 4) below may, at the discretion of the OWNER,
be sealed by routing approximately 3/4" to 1" deep by 1/4" wide and filling with
Sikaflex 1-A or equivalent.

2.

Any crack that extends through a joint shall require removal and replacement of the
entire cracked area.

3.

Any longitudinal cracked section of concrete will require complete removal and
replacement of that section between joints.

4.

Repair action for hairline cracks as determined in 1) above may be waived at the
discretion of the OWNER. For the purpose of this section, a hairline crack is one that
is reasonably immeasurable and without separation as determined by the
ENGINEER.

1200.7 QUALITY CONTROL
Concrete testing and testing laboratory services required shall conform to the following
unless otherwise defined in the Special Provisions or as determined by the ENGINEER.
Procedures

Project Acceptance

Section

Type of Test

420

GRADATION

Frequency

Sampling

Testing

CP 30

CP 31

SIDEWALKS
(CONCRETE)

Sidewalks:1/1000 s. y.
or fraction thereof for
each size aggregate of
concrete placed.

CURBING

Curbing:1/2000 lin ft or
fraction thereof for each

CP 30

CP 31
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(CONCRETE)

size aggregate of concrete
placed.

MOISTURE
CONTENT
(FINE AGGREGATE)

1 per day and as often
as needed for quality
control.

CP 30

CP 60

MOISTURE
CONTENT
(COARSE
AGGREGATE)

1 per day min. where
moisture content is greater
than +0.5%
from SSD condition.

CP 30

CP 60

SLUMP

The slump, air content and
unit weight tests shall be
carried out on the first
truck of concrete for the
daily placement and thereafter in conformance with
the following table:

T 141

T 119

AIR CONTENT

1 set of tests for every
1000 sq yds or fraction
thereof of concrete placed.

T 141
T 199

T 152

YIELD AND
CEMENT

4 tests for every 2000
lin. ft. or fraction thereof
or nomograph of curb and
gutter placed.

T 141

T 121

COMPRESSIVE
STRENGTH

Sidewalks: 1 set (4) of
cylinders per 1000 sq yds
or fraction thereof or
concrete placed per day.
Curbing: 1 set (4) of
cylinders per 2000 lin
ft or fraction thereof
of concrete placed per day.

T 141

T 22
T 23

Point of Acceptance: Gradation - Stockpile, belt, or bin
Air Content - Mixer Discharge
Prior to backfilling and after forms are removed, honeycombed, defective or damaged areas
of concrete shall be repaired. Repairs shall be made within 7 days after the forms are
removed.
1200.8 CLEAN UP
The surface of the concrete shall be thoroughly cleaned upon completion of the work and
prior to the substantial completion walk through, and the site left in a neat and orderly
condition.
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1200.9 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT
Concrete curbs or combined curbs and gutters of the types shown on the Drawings or in the
standard details shall be measured along gutter flow line through inlets, catch basins, etc.,
by the linear foot to the nearest foot for each type, complete in place.
Concrete sidewalk and entrances of the types shown on the Drawings or in the standard
details shall be measured corner to corner and computed to the nearest horizontal surface
square foot. Modifications to driveway entrances shall not be measured or paid for
separately, but shall be measured and paid for under the concrete curbs, gutters and
sidewalks Contract Unit Price.
Concrete aprons, curb ramps and cross pans shall be measured to the nearest foot and shall
be paid for at the Contract Unit Price for each item in the bid schedule.
Concrete driveways shall be measured to the nearest square yard.
1200.10

BASIS OF PAYMENT

Payment shall be made at the Contract Unit Price. The Bid Price shall be considered to
include all materials, labor, equipment, minor landscaping restoration, and incidentals
required to properly remove and to construct the concrete curbs, sidewalks, or combined
curbs and gutters, aprons, cross pans, and curb ramps in accordance with the Project
Drawings and Specifications and shall be full compensation for the item complete in place.
Payment is made for actual linear feet of the project upon completion.
APPENDIX “A”:
1.

STANDARD NOTES:

ALL ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO ARAPAHOE COUNTY
ROADWAY DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, COLORADO DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE
CONSTRUCTION, AND STANDARD PLANS M & S STANDARDS, MGPEC.
STANDARDS MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES ARE TO BE
USED FOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION DETAILS/SPECIFICATIONS FOR ITEMS
NOT SPECIFICALLY ADDRESSED IN THE PROJECT MANUAL, OR THE ARAPAHOE
COUNTY ROADWAY DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.
*All above referenced standards mean the latest versions of the documents

2.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND REPLACE ALL CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER, SIDEWALKS, AND CROSSPANS AS MARKED BY THE PROJECT MANAGER
WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE PROJECT.

3.

ALL MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE SUBJECT TO INSPECTION BY THE
CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – OR ITS AGENT.
THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ACCEPT OR REJECT ANY SUCH MATERIALS
AND WORKMANSHIP THAT DOES NOT CONFORM TO ITS STANDARDS AND
SPECIFICATIONS.
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4.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE ONE (1) SIGNED COPY OF THE PLANS
(APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – ENGINEERING DIVISION)
AND ONE (1) COPY OF THE ROADWAY DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
AT THE JOB SITE AT ALL TIMES. ALSO, CDOT - M-STANDARDS (2000 EDITION),
CDOT STANDARD 2005 SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION
(BLUE BOOK), THE PROJECT MANUAL AND A SEPARATE COPY OF THE M.U.T.C.D.,
PART II. Not applicable for this project.

5.

A PLAN FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE SUBMITTED
TO THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE FOR APPROVAL WITH THE PERMIT
APPLICATION. A STREET CUT OR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
PERMIT WILL NOT BE ISSUED WITHOUT AN APPROVED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN
FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DURING CONSTRUCTION. FAILURE TO GET THIS
APPROVAL WILL RESULT IN DELAY IN THE NOTICE TO PROCEED.

6.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ALL APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND
OBTAIN, AT HIS EXPENSE, ALL NECESSARY PERMITS BEFORE CONSTRUCTION
BEGINS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING ANY
EXISTING UTILITIES, WHICH MAY CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED
CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE PLANS AND
SPECIFICATIONS FOR RELOCATION RESPONSIBILITIES. ALL EXISTING UTILITIES
SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE BY THE CONTRACTOR. ALL DAMAGED
UTILITIES SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR OR THE AFFECTED UTILITY
COMPANY AT THE CONTRACTOR’S EXPENSE. THE AFFECTED UTILITY COMPANY
SHALL DETERMINE WHETHER THE CONTRACTOR OR UTILITY COMPANY WILL
MAKE THE REQUIRED REPAIRS.

7.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR FIELD LOCATING AND
VERIFYING ALL UTILITY INFORMATION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE
UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER OF COLORADO AT 811 0r 1-800-922-1987 AT LEAST
TWO BUSINESS DAYS, NOT INCLUDING THE DAY OF INITIAL CONTACT, PRIOR TO
EXCAVATION.

8.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING ALL PROPERTY
OUTSIDE THE PROJECT LIMITS, WHETHER PRIVATE OR PUBLIC. ALL DAMAGE
SHALL BE REPAIRED AT NO EXPENSE TO THE OWNER. LAND CORNERS, LAND
CORNER TIES, BENCH MARKS OR OTHER SURVEY CONTROL MONUMENTS SHALL
BE PRESERVED OR REFERENCED PRIOR TO THEIR DESTRUCTION AND RESET
AS SPECIFIED. IF ANY MONUMENTS OTHER THAN THOSE SPECIFIED ARE
ENCOUNTERED, CONTACT THE ENGINEER AT LEAST TEN (10) DAYS PRIOR TO
SCHEDULED DESTRUCTION.

9.

THE CONTRACTOR MUST PERFORM ALL WORK IN EXISTING RIGHTS-OF-WAY. IF
WORK NEEDS TO BE DONE OUTSIDE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND/OR EXISTING
EASEMENTS THE CONTRACTOR MUST OBTAIN ADDITIONAL TEMPORARY
EASEMENTS.
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10.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO REPLACE ALL DAMAGED EXISTING SURFACE
IMPROVEMENTS (I.E.: IRRIGATION, LANDSCAPE, SIDEWALKS, CURB & GUTTER,
STREET PAVING, ETC.) CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION.

11.

ALL SAFETY PROVISIONS, LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS APPLY IN
ORDER OF JURISDICTIONAL CONTROL. CONTRACTOR IS ADVISED TO BECOME
AWARE OF CONTROLLING PROVISIONS.

12.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE WARNING SIGNS AS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE
ADEQUATE WARNING OF HAZARDS TO THE WORKMEN AND THE PUBLIC. SIGNS
SHALL BE REMOVED PROMPTLY WHEN THE HAZARDS NO LONGER EXIST. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE GUARDRAILS, FENCES, OR OTHER BARRICADES
AND WARNING LIGHTS, WHICH SHALL BE PLACED AT ALL EXCAVATIONS WHICH
ARE ADJACENT TO PATHS, WALKWAYS, SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, AND OTHER
PEDESTRIAN OR VEHICLE THOROUGHFARES. ADEQUATE BARRIERS FOR
PHYSICAL PROTECTION SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL EXCAVATIONS. NO
TRENCHES SHALL BE LEFT OPEN OVERNIGHT.
Note: The City of Cherry Hills Village requires the use of fiber additive, no steel or wire mesh
will be allowed. The City is specifying a 4000 psi concrete be used for this project. Contractor
will submit to the City a mix design that will be approved before the project begins. Contact
Ryan Berninzoni at 303-783-2741 for more information.
Note: The City of Cherry Hills Village requires the use of Class # 6 road base as sub-grade
material in all work areas, when new material is required. The contractor will be responsible
for supplying all of the required material. Compaction of the sub-grade must be performed
with jumping-jack type compactor, use of plate compactors will not be accepted by the City.
Note: The City of Cherry Hills Village reserves the right to hire an independent testing firm to
test the concrete and the sub-grade compaction and moisture, the contractor agrees to
adhere to the findings of the selected testing firm and fix and replace any substandard
material or work at the contractors cost.
Note: Cherry Hills Village will not provide washouts for any trucks or equipment. The
contractor must provide a water tight container approved by the City for all equipment
washouts. The washout containers must be inspected daily and rotated out when full. The
City will stop work if there is not an adequate washout container present during any concrete
laying operations. The contractor may not washout in excavated work areas or any other
areas within Cherry Hills Village.
Note: Contractor must have a port-a-pot onsite prior to beginning work. No Port-a-Pot - No
Work
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III. TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS
PART 1 - GENERAL
1.1

SUMMARY:

1.1.1

WORK INCLUDED:
Provide temporary utilities and miscellaneous temporary facilities required during
construction, including installation, maintenance, and removal upon completion of the work.

1.2

REFERENCES:

1.2.1

RELATED DOCUMENTS:
Contract Document # 00500, and applicable provisions of other Division 1 sections apply to
this section.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS
2.1

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES:

2.1.1

STORAGE STRUCTURES:
If necessary provides enclosed, weather-tight storage facilities for materials and equipment,
which require protection from the elements.

2.1.2

SANITARY FACILITIES:
Provide temporary toilet facilities for duration of work, for use by any and all employees
engaged in the work. Comply with requirements of applicable codes, regulations, laws, and
ordinances. No work can begin until approved toilet facilities are on site. No
exceptions.

2.1.3 TRAFFIC BARRICADES/SIGNS:
A. Provide barricades, and signs as may be specified elsewhere within certain sections of
the specifications, and as may be required by local code or authority and as required to
maintain safety of workplace.
B. Maintain barricades, bulkheads, and other protective facilities in good condition
throughout the term of the work. Remove at completion of the work and replace or repair
all work damaged thereby. Repair or replace on a daily basis safety facilities or devices
damaged or removed during the course of the work.
C. No other signs or advertising will be permitted on the job site.
2.3

OTHER TEMPORARY SERVICES:

2.3.1 CLEANING:
A. Provide daily sweeping and cleanup of dust, debris, litter, trash containers, and other items
required to maintain a clean, orderly, and accessible site. Hauling of debris is required daily
as a minimum.

80

EXHIBIT B
B. Provide sweeping or cleaning of adjacent streets and walkways as required to prevent
accumulation of mud, dust, or soil thereon from construction traffic and personnel.
PART 3 - EXECUTION
3.1

MAINTENANCE OF TEMPORARY FACILITIES:

3.1.1

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES:
Maintain temporary offices, storage facilities, sanitary facilities, fire protection facilities,
trailers, fences, barricades, and other structures in a neat, orderly appearance for the
duration of the work. All sanitary facilities must be routinely scheduled for
maintenance during entire duration of project.

3.1.2

REMOVAL OF TEMPORARY FACILITIES:
Remove temporary facilities and structures from the site as soon as practicable or when
no longer required by the Contractor or subcontractors. Restore areas occupied by
temporary facilities to like new condition, or to match surrounding areas.

PART 4 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
4.1

SUMMARY

4.1.1

No payment will be made directly for temporary facilities and controls but will be
considered as subsidiary obligation of the Contractor under the bid item requiring this
work.

End of Document

81

Exhibit C

FORM OF BID

III.

Essential Contractors

Bidder:

City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2022-002
This Bid is dated

May 19

2022

,

The City of Cherry Hills Village, State of Colorado.

To:

BASE BID

Item #

Description

Estimated Quantity

1

Sunrise Drive (curbs/drainage)

1800 Linear feet

Unit

Unit Cost
$44.00

Cost Extended
$79,200

2
3
4
5
6
7
Total Base Bid

$79,200

Summary of Work: Sunrise Drive

1800 feet X 4 feet wide curb/gutter at 6-inch depth, with residential
be bid all inclusive. Bid includes saw cutting 18 inches of asphalt
fiber additive.
and
disposal of asphalt and concrete, sub-base installation
and
outside of the concrete, removal
repair and all
landscape
control,
traffic
,
mobilization
concrete,
compaction, installation of new
City and not included in the bid.
incidentals. Asphalt patch back will be performed by the
Remove

and

replace approximately

Price per linear foot is to

fiber added at the batch plant. All areas for concrete
the Project Manager. ALL IRRIGATION and
removal and replacement will be pre-marked by
wifi be the responsibility of the Contractor
egregious landscape damage, including adjoining sidewalks,
of the City. All utility locates will be
for repair. All minor landscape repairs wifi be the responsibility
Detours and Flaggers at these
Closures,
Road
the responsibility of the Contractor. All Traffic Control,
recommended.
strongly
is
Tour
Pre-Bid
locations will be the responsibility of the Contractor. A

All

concrete replaced must have residential

The City of Cherry Hills Village

reserves

the right to delete

portions or quantities of

this Bid / Project

at

any time.

The

above quantities are estimates only.

It

is

the

construction project sites at their discretion prior to
Monday

through

scheduled

48

Thursday

hours

in

for

a

advance.

Pre-Bid
Contact

the proposed
be available
bidding. A City
ts must be
Appointmen
tour per appointment.
1 for
303-783-274
Manager, Ryan Berninzoni,

Contractor’s responsibility to view

project
Project

representative can

appointments.

The City

does not recognize

Mobilization,

Re-mobilization, or Dc-mobilization as a separate line item.

14

or hauling as a separate
The City does not recognize Tear Out I Demo of concrete, asphalt, sub-grade
line item.
The City does not recognize Traffic Control as a separate line item.
hauling and all
The Contractor will need to build into the Contract: costs for mobilizations, demolitions,
traffic control into Unit Costs.
on all sites before
The Contractor shall have a City-approved, watertight, concrete washout container
any work can begin.
The Contractor shall have a Port-a-Pot I Toilet on site before any work can begin.
container, and
The Contractor shall only stage equipment, construction materials, concrete washout
port-a-pot to perform the project in City-approved and pre-marked areas.
paint by the Project
All concrete to be removed and replaced wifi be pre-marked in white spray
Manager.
The City will perform all asphalt patch-back operations and minor landscape repairs.
or walkway repairs
The Contractor will be responsible for any major landscape or private driveway
concrete.
and
asphalt
pre-marked
of
replacement
or
damaged during demolition (removal)
repair.
All damaged irrigation I sprinkler systems will be the responsibility of the Contractor for
All utility locates will be the responsibility of the Contractor.
sub-grade
Alt compaction must be done with a jumping jack/vibratory rammer, for maximum
compaction, No Plate Compactors.
to supply. Will
All road base needed for sub-grade preparation is the responsibility of the Contractor
not be paid as a separate item.
the Project
A Pre-Bid Tour is Strongly Recommended. A Pre-Bid Tour can be scheduled by contacting
age.com
herrvhillsvill
Manager, Ryan Berninzoni at 303-783-2741 or email at rberninzoni(c
start within
All work to be performed between the months of May 2022 and November 2022. Work must
120-days of Notice of Award.

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank
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___________

___________

IV.

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER
(Complete and submit attached to your bid)

Colorado

STATE OF
COUNTY OF

)
)

Araphoe

)

Jahn Carlos Castillo
owner

(1) He is the

,

being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

of Essential Contractors
the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid (the “Bid”);

(2) He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinent
circumstances respecting such Bid;
(3) Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid;
or
(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partner, owners agents, representatives, employees

parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly
with
or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection
in
bidding
from
refrain
to
or
submitted
been
has
Bid
the Construction Contract for which the attached
by
sought
indirectly,
or
directly
manner,
any
has
in
connection with such Construction Contract, or
agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead,
profit or cost element of the bid price or the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through the collusion,
Village or
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cherry Hills
persons interested in the proposed Construction Contract; and
collusion,
(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any

es,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representativ
owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.
Signed:

Printed Name
Subscribed and sworn to before me this
Uc’- Ccio

cc-j-

(Affiant)

of
(Bidder)

laws

of the

day of

,

2Oz, by

p as Q,re.’c
(title)
,

cJ (-c-s

pursuant to the

iC?

State

organized

a Cot
(corporation or partnership)
,

of

0

.

Notai9Public
My Commission Expires

RAY SAMUEL ULBANO
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF CLORAOO
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 1O,18/2O22
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V.

BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION (Complete and submit attached to your bid)

To:

City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado (hereinafter called “CITY”).

From:

(hereinafter “Bidder”),
doing business
_______
of_________
State
the
of
laws
the
under
organized and existing
individual).
(an
as (a corporation), (a partnership),

Essential Contractors

The Bidder, in compliance with the City’s Invitation for Bids and Instructions to Bidders, hereby proposes
to perform all work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents within the time set forth therein, and
at the prices stated on the included Bid Form as totaled herein (the “Bid”).
By submission of this Bidder’s Certification, Bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint venture each party
thereto certifies as to his own organization, that the Bid has been arrived at independently, without
consultation, communication, or agreement as to any matters relating to this Bid with any other Bidder or
with any competitor.
The undersigned, having thoroughly inspected the existing conditions in the Project area affecting the cost
of the Work and having thoroughly examined all of the Contract Documents, together with all other forms,
attachments, and information required or otherwise submitted with this Bid, hereby offers to furnish all
supervision, technical personnel, labor, materials, machinery, tools, equipment and services including
utility and transportation services and to perform and complete all work required for:
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2022-002
Project Descrmtion
Remove and replace approximately 1800 feet X 4 feet wide curb/gutter at 6 inch depth, with residential
fiber additive. Price per linear foot is to be bid all inclusive. Bid includes saw cutting 18 inches of
asphalt outside of the concrete, removal and disposal of asphalt and concrete, sub-base installation and
compaction, installation of new concrete, mobilization, traffic control, landscape repair and all
incidentals. Asphalt patch back will be performed by the City and not included in the bid.
All work to be performed between the months of May 2022 and November 2022. Work must start within
120-days of Notice of Award.
Pre-Bid Tours are Strongly Recommended.

It is understood by the Bidder that should the cost of the Bid exceed budgeted funds, the City reserves the
right to reject any or all bids, or portions of work bid, or to use any of the methods stated in the Instructions
to Bidders to obtain the most advantageous bid price. Bidders must bid all items, additive schedules,
alternatives, and supplementary unit price schedule as contained in the Form of Bid.
The Bid is based on subcontracting certain major portions of the work to subcontractors as listed below:
Item No.

License Number

Subcontractor

(Add additional names on separate sheet, if necessary.)
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_________________________

In addition, by submission of this Bid and this Bidder’s Certification, Bidder certifies as follows:
1. Bidder understands that the City reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities
in the bidding.
2. The Bidder agrees that this Bid shall be good and will not be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90)
calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. If written notice of the acceptance of this
Bid is mailed or otherwise delivered to the undersigned within this period, or at any time thereafter before
this Bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver a Construction Contract in the
prescribed form and furnish the required surety bond within ten (10) days after the Construction Contract
is presented to him for signature.
3. As required by the Instructions to Bidders, attached hereto is the Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime
Bidder, submitted as proof that the undersigned has not colluded with any person in respect to this Bid or
any other bid or the submitting of bids for the Construction Contract for which this Bid is submitted.
4. The Bidder is submitting, or will submit upon request, such additional proof as the City may require that
he can qualif’ in accordance with these Contract Documents with this Bid.
5. To the extent required by C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(1), by submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that at the
time of Bid submission it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien and that Bidder will
participate in either the E-verify program administered by the United States Department of Homeland
Security and the Social Security Administration, or the employment verification program administered by
the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment in order to verify the employment eligibility of all
employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the Construction Contract.
6. Bidder agrees to execute the Construction Contract, including its General Conditions, in the form
presented in the Bid Packet.
The undersigned Bidder hereby agrees to be ready and to appear at the office of the City’s Contract
Administrator to execute the Construction Contract in conformity with his Bid and also to have ready and
to furnish at that time the attached Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond each in an
amount not less than the full amount of the attached Bid Form.
a corporation of the State of
is hereby offered as surety on said bond. If such surety is not approved by
the City, another and satisfactory surety company shall be furnished.
The

(Ici

}S./

,

Enclosed herewith is Bid Security, as defined in the attached Instructions to Bidders, in the amount of
ts1 7
which Bid Security the undersigned Bidder agrees is to be paid to and become the property
of the City, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, to compensate the City for actual costs, delay and
the difference between this Bid and the next lowest acceptable bid, should this Bid be accepted and the
Construction Contract awarded this Bidder and should he fail to enter into the Construction Contract in the
form prescribed or fail to furnish the required Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
within ten (10) days as stipulated.
-.

,
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______________________

_______
___________
___________
___________
___________

The undersigned Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:
Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by
Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by
Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by
Addendum No.________ Date________ Initial by

Bidder______
Bidder
Bidder
Bidder

The undersigned Bidder certifies that he and each of his subcontractors possess an adequate supply of
workers qualified and equipment satisfactory to perform the Work specified in the Contract Documents;
that there is no existing or impending dispute between it and any labor organization; and that it is prepared
to comply fully with the provisions contained in the Contract Documents.
This Bid is submitted upon the declaration that neither I (we) nor, to the best of my (our) knowledge, none
of the members of my (our) firm or company have either otherwise taken any action in restraint of free
competitive bidding i connection with this Bid.
this 42rt’day of

Dated at
Signature of Bidder:
If an Individual:
doing business as

If a Partnership:
by

.

General Partner.

If a Corporation:
a

Corporation

by

President.

Attest:

Secretary
[Corporate Seal]
Business Address of Bidder

2’y 7

City, State, Zip Code
Telephone Number of Biddei(
Email of Bidder

E7 2—’’ “

—

C
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,
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

Item: 10a

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

PAUL WORKMAN, PLANNING MANAGER AND FLOODPLAIN
ADMINISTRATOR

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 14, SERIES 2022, A RESOLUTION APPROVING A
FLOODPLAIN VARIANCE FOR A NEW ACCESSORY STRUCTURE AT 7
RANDOM ROAD (PUBLIC HEARING)
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

ISSUE:
Should the City Council vote to approve Resolution 14, Series 2022 (Exhibit A), a resolution
approving a floodplain variance for a new accessory structure at 7 Random Road?
APPLICANT(S):
Fredrik Klaveness
PROPERTY OWNER(S):
Fredrik Klaveness
SUBJECT PROPERTY:
7 Random Road - Figure 1
SURROUNDING ZONING & LAND USE:
The subject property is currently zoned R-1; 2.5-Acre Residential District.
Surrounding zoning and uses:
North

R-1; Single-family detached homes

East

R-1; Single-family detached homes

South

R-1; Single-family detached homes

West

R-1; Single-family detached homes
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VICINITY MAP:

Figure 1 – Vicinity Map

FLOODPLAIN TERMINOLOGY:
To give meaning to the terms used throughout this document, staff is providing the information
below.

Figure 2 – Floodplain Drawing
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Base Flood – A flood having a 1% chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.
Base Flood Elevation (BFE) – The elevation of surface water resulting from a flood that has a
1% chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any given year.
Floodplain – Any land area susceptible to being inundated by floodwaters from any source.
Floodway – A “Regulatory Floodway” means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the
adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without
cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height.
Thalweg – The lowest point of the waterway.
REQUEST:
From the applicant’s narrative (Exhibit B):
“The floodplain variance application is for the replacement of an existing garage
that is located partially in the floodway of Blackmer/Quincy Gulch. A substantial
portion of the 2.3 acre property is in the floodway, including the location of the
main residence, built in 1979, which includes an attached garage.
The finished floor of the house is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) but the
attached garage is below the BFE and is too small and too low to accommodate
today’s vehicles. The detached, 600 sq. ft. garage on the property was built in the
1950’s, is in disrepair, the roof height is insufficient to fit modern SUVs, and it does
not meet the needs of the applicant or current building standards, nor does it
comply with the current floodplain regulations.
The applicant would like to demolish the existing detached garage and replace it
with a larger (25’ x 44’ or 1,100 square feet), structurally more modern building.
The proposed replacement building will be a pre-fabricated, engineered all-steel
structure anchored to a cast-in-place concrete foundation. Although the proposed
building is in an area with ineffective flow in case of a flood, the garage will have
nine 16’’ x 8’’ Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) approved and
International Code Council (ICC-ES) certified flood vents installed in the walls to
bring the proposed building in compliance with current floodplain regulations for
structures in the floodways. The flood vents are certified for a 1,250 sq. ft. building.
The applicant currently has 5 vehicles, a small tractor, a trailer, and an RV
(author’s note: the RV has been sold since this was written by the applicant and
reviewed by staff. It is no longer on the property) parked at the property, and it is
his desire to be able to park most of these vehicles in the new garage. The garage
will not be used for any storage of chemicals, fuels and so forth, and there will be
no interior walls, absorbing insulation, electrical installations or plumbing of any
kind.”
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Figure 3 is an illustration as to where the existing structure is generally located (the green box)
and where the new structure is generally proposed (the orange box).

Figure 3 – Site Plan
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Figure 4 (north is the right side of this drawing) shows the approximate proposed location of the
new structure (the reddish box), the boundaries of the floodplain (the dark blue lines), the
boundaries of the floodway (the orange lines), and the thalweg (the light blue line in the center of
the lot).

Figure 4 – Site Plan with Floodplain and Floodway

From the applicant’s narrative:
“The proposed garage is essentially a replacement of the existing garage, but
located further from the flowline of the creek, and is larger. It will be pulled back
closer to the north property perimeter compared to the existing garage while
respecting the 25 ft setback requirement. This means the south facing wall will be
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approximately 10 ft further away from the edge of Blackmer/Quincy Gulch
compared to the existing garage (40 ft distance compared to today’s 30 ft).
Most of the property is within the floodway, and the entirety is within the
floodplain. All alternative placements for the proposed garage have been
considered, but the setback limitations, streetscapes, and aesthetics on the property
combined with the location of the floodway preclude placement within 25 feet from
the sides or back property perimeter, and 75 feet from the front. This limits the
location of the structure.
The only other locations for a replacement garage that is outside the floodway is in
the northeast corner between the main house and Random Road. None of these are
viable alternatives, simply because they would both require substantial earthwork,
including the construction of a gravel or paved road, cutting of existing trees, and
more importantly, because they would be highly intrusive and have a more and
negative impact on the property and its neighbors. It will also be impossible to meet
the 25 ft and 75 ft setback requirements while building outside the floodway. There
is a good reason why the garage was constructed at its current location back in the
1950’s.”
From the AWARE Engineering analysis (Exhibit C):
“The replacement garage is proposed in an ineffective flow area that is created due
to the elevated topography immediately downstream of 7 Random Road. Ineffective
flow occurs when floodwaters enter an area and are stored, and do not re-enter the
channel as active flow. Because they do not re-converge with active flowing water
during the flood event, they do not contribute to any characteristic of flow during
the flood event, including a rise in water surface elevation. Water in this area
remains ‘stored’ until the active flow in the channel decreases to an elevation that
will allow the ineffective flow area to drain out. This being the case, the results of
the hydraulic modeling should reflect a no-rise effect in the 100-year floodplain
elevation comparison and pre- and post-garage scenarios; and it does, showing a
0.00-foot rise in the 100-year water surface elevation.”
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ARTICLE V. – FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND FLOOD DAMAGE
PREVENTION ANALYSIS:
1Section

16-5-210. – General standards for flood hazard reduction. The following
provisions are required for all new construction and substantial improvements in all
special flood hazard areas:
1. All new construction or substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and
adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure
resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.
Staff Analysis:
The proposed location of the structure is in an ineffective flow area, which acts as water
storage. Therefore, there is no “flow” in these areas. However, the applicant has provided
foundation drawings stamped by a professional engineer (Exhibit D), structural drawings
stamped by a professional engineer (Exhibit E), and a letter stamped by a professional
engineer (Exhibit F) that indicate that “…the building will have low flood damage potential
with respect to the structure and its contents.” This criterion has been met.
2. All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and
practices that minimize flood damage.
Staff Analysis:
The applicant has provided foundation drawings stamped by a professional engineer,
structural drawings stamped by a profession engineer, and a letter stamped by a professional
engineer that indicate that “…the building will have low flood damage potential with respect
to the structure and its contents.” This criterion has been met.
3. All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials
resistant to flood damage.
Staff Analysis:
The applicant has provided foundation drawings stamped by a professional engineer,
structural drawings stamped by a profession engineer, and a letter stamped by a professional
engineer that indicate that “…the building will have low flood damage potential with respect
to the structure and its contents.” This criterion has been met.
4. All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed with electrical,
heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service

Kimley-Horn, the City’s engineering consultant, has reviewed the entirety of the application for compliance with
technical requirements. They have provided a letter of conformance that the application meets the technical
requirements.
1
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facilities that are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding.
Staff Analysis:
Not applicable. None of these elements are proposed as a part of the building. Additionally,
staff is proposing a condition of approval that neither the current nor future owner will be
allowed to add any of these improvements to the new structure without prior written approval
from the City, with the applicant proving that these requirements have been met.
5. All manufactured homes shall be installed using methods and practices that minimize
flood damage. For the purposes of this requirement, manufactured homes must be
elevated and anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement. Methods of
anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to
ground anchors. This requirement is in additional to other applicable State and City
anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces.
Not applicable. The proposed construction is not for a manufactured home.
6. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system.
Not applicable. No new or replacement water supply systems are proposed.
7. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system and discharge from the systems
into flood waters.
Not applicable. No new or replacement sanitary sewage systems are proposed.
8. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to them or
contamination from them during flooding.
Not applicable. No on-site disposal systems are proposed.
Section 16-5-220. – Specific standards for flood hazard reduction.
(c) Nonresidential Construction.
1. With the exception of critical facilities 2, outlined in Section 16-5-280, Standards for
Critical Facilities, new construction and substantial improvements of any
commercial or other nonresidential structure shall either have the lowest floor
A Critical Facility is a structure or related infrastructure, but not the land on which it is situated, as specified in
Rule 6 of the Rules of Regulations for Regulatory Floodplains in Colorado, that if flooded may result in significant
hazards to public health and safety or interrupt essential services and operations for the community at any time
before, during and after a flood. Sec. 16-5-280(a), CHV Municipal Code.

2
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(including basement), electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning
equipment and other service facilities (including ductwork), elevated to one (1) foot
above the base flood elevation or, together with attendant utility and sanitary
facilities, be designed so that at one (1) foot above the base flood elevation the
structure is watertight with wall substantially impermeable to the passage of water
with structure components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy.
2. A registered Colorado Professional Engineer or architect shall develop and/or
review structural design, specifications, and plans for the construction, and shall
certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice as outlined in this subsection. Such certification shall be
maintained by the Floodplain Administrator, as provided in Section 16-7-50,
Floodplain Administrator.
Applicant Analysis (see Exhibit G for the applicant’s responses to the approval criteria):
The least modification to the existing floodway has been proposed for this new structure. The
location and finished floor elevation of the proposed structure were chosen for several
reasons. Adding fill to raise the proposed building to one foot above the BFE (Base Flood
Elevation) would require additional fill to be brought into the site, additional disturbance of
the floodway and floodplain, and a decrease in flood storage. Therefore, it has been
determined that the best design is for the floor of the structure to be below the BFE at
elevation 5409, which is 1.4 feet below the BFE of 5410.4.
The proposed structure is an engineered pre-fabricated steel building anchored to a poured in
place concrete foundation, capable of withstanding the effects of the depth and the flowrate
of the expected major flood. To alleviate hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and buoyancy,
although the location is in an area of ineffective flow, nine (9) flood vents or openings in the
walls of the structure, each measuring 16’’ x 8’’, will be installed during construction
(Exhibit H). The bottom of the flood vents will be at grade, i.e. they will be installed at the
floor level of the garage as required by section (d) below (Exhibit I). The structural design,
specifications and plans have been prepared by the manufacturer, and are stamped and signed
by their engineer. The building will be erected by a professional building who will install the
nine FEMA approved and ICC-ES certified flood vents.
See:
https://shop.freedomfloodvent.com/freedom-flood-vent-16x8-black-flood-vent-ffv-1608-b/
Staff Analysis:
The elevation of the proposed structure causes the least amount of disturbance in the
floodway and/or the floodplain, resulting in the least amount of impact to the floodway
and/or the floodplain. The applicant has provided documentation, stamped by a professional
engineer, that the proposed building meets the structural requirements of the Code.
Additionally, the applicant’s proposal is compliant with the sections of Code provided
below. Furthermore, there is no electrical, heating, plumbing, air conditioning, etc.
equipment proposed for this building. These criteria have been met.
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(d) Enclosures. New construction and substantial improvements, with fully enclosed areas
below the lowest floor that are usable solely for parking vehicles, building access, or storage
in an area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding shall be designed to
automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry
and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a
registered Colorado Professional Engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following
minimum criteria:
1. A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one (1) square
inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided.
2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade.
3. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other covering devices
provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.
Applicant Analysis:
The proposed structure will be 25 feet by 44 feet, for a total of 1100 square feet. There will
be a 12 foot wide roll-up garage door facing south, as well as a side entry door measuring
30’’ by 70’’ and 6 windows measuring 40’’ x 30’’ on the east (4) and north (2) facing
facades. The doors and windows are described here for information only. They are not
needed for compliance with the flood opening areas. Consistent with the above criteria, nine
flood vent openings totaling 1152 square inches, or 8 square feet, will be installed in the
walls of the structure. The structural integrity of the building will not be negatively affected
by the flood vents, as confirmed by the engineer at Great Western Buildings.
Staff Analysis:
The proposed building is 1,100 square feet (25 feet x 44 feet). The applicant is proposing to
install nine (9) 16 inch x 8 inch (1,152 square inches) of certified flood vents. The proposed
vents have a screen and are proposed at-grade. These criteria have been met.
Section 16-5-240. – Floodways.
(b) Encroachments Prohibited; Exceptions.
1. Encroachments are prohibited, including fill, new construction, substantial
improvements and other development within the adopted regulatory floodway
unless it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses
performed by a licensed Colorado Professional Engineer and in accordance with
standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment would not result in
any increase (requires a No-Rise Certification) in flood levels within the community
during the occurrence of the base flood discharge.
Staff Analysis:
The applicant has provided an analysis by Water Engineering Solutions, LLC (Exhibit
J), stamped by a professional engineer and certified floodplain manager, that states that
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there is no rise in the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). Additionally, the applicant has
provided a “No Rise Certificate” stamped by a professional engineer (Exhibit K). The
City’s engineering consultant, Kimley-Horn, has reviewed the information provided by
the applicant and agrees that the proposal would not increase the BFE (Exhibit L). This
criterion has been met.
2. If subsection (b)(1), above is satisfied, all new construction and substantial
improvements shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of
this Article 5.
See staff analysis previously provided in this memorandum.
3. Under the provisions of 44 CFR Chapter 1, Section 65.12, of the National Flood
Insurance Regulations, the City may permit encroachments within the adopted
regulatory floodway that would result in in an increase in base flood elevations,
provided that the City first applies for a CLOMR and floodway revision through
FEMA.
Not applicable. There is no increase in the BFE if the structure is built as proposed.
ARTICLE VII. DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS ANALYSIS:
Section 16-7-530. Floodplain Variances
(c) Quantum of Proof.
(1) Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to be
erected on a lot of one-half (1/2) acre or less in area, contiguous to and surrounded by
lots with existing buildings or structures constructed below the base flood level,
provided that the record shows compliance with the approval standards set out in (and
referenced by) this Section.
(2) As the lot area increases beyond one-half (1/2) acre, the technical justification
required for issuing a floodplain variance increases.
Staff Analysis:
This section of Code is primarily provided to illustrate two points. First, the Code
contemplates that there are circumstances where development in the floodplain may be
appropriate. Second, the site is well over one-half (1/2) acre in size and the applicant has
demonstrated technical justification for issuing a floodplain variance.
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(f) Approval Standards (Generally). A floodplain variance may be granted for purposes
other than Functionally Dependent Uses (author’s note: functionally dependent uses are not
applicable for this application 3) only upon a finding by the City Council that:
(1) The relevant factors in Section 16-7-360, Floodplain Development Permit,
subsection (e)(2) (including standards referenced therein) have been weighed and
favor the grant of the floodplain variance.
Applicant Analysis:
See the response under Section 16-7-360 below.
Staff Analysis:
See staff analysis for Section 16-7-360 below.
(2) The floodplain variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to
afford relief.
Applicant Analysis:
The application for replacing the old, too low and small and outdated garage is along the
principle of minimum necessary. The majority of the property is in the floodway, and
there are not any alternative locations that remove the proposed structure from the
floodway and at the same time respect the setbacks. The only alternative to the proposed
location that is outside the floodway would be directly south of the main house, near the
large willow tree and between Random Road and the main house. But this location would
violate the 75 feet setback requirement. Another possibility would be the northeast corner
of the property, near the entrance to no. 9 Random Road. The setback restrictions would
pose a challenge, which would mean that the garage would have to be very close to
Blackmer Gulch and hence in the floodway. Both these locations, if they had indeed been
real and feasible alternatives, would require substantial earthwork, gravel, etc. to allow
for vehicles to access the garage. Two large trees will have to be cut, and an internal
access road will have to be constructed. Consequently, none of these locations would
meet the criteria of minimum necessary. The proposed garage, on the other hand, is in the
same location as the existing garage, the location has no hydraulic impacts to the
floodway or the floodplain, and the location meets the minimum necessary criteria.
Staff Analysis:
The proposed building, in the proposed location and at the proposed elevation, creates the
minimum disturbance necessary to achieve the goals of the applicant, considering the
flood hazard. Placing the building in an alternative location would require entirely new
disturbance to the floodway and/or the floodplain. Additionally, it would require new
access to be constructed that would further disturb the floodway and/or the floodplain.
Placing the building at the proposed elevation also reduces disturbance in the
floodway/floodplain since it is generally at the existing grade. Furthermore, the applicant
Functionally dependent use means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or carried
out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the
loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities, but does not include longterm storage or related manufacturing facilities. Sec. 16-9-130, CHV Municipal Code.

3
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will provide vents as required by Code to mitigate risk from flood events. This criterion
has been met.
(3) The floodplain variance is only issued upon:
a. Showing good and sufficient cause;
Applicant Analysis:
The existing detached garage is in disrepair and does not meet the current needs or
building standards, nor does it comply with the current floodplain regulations. The old
garage is also too small and has an insufficient ceiling height to fit the owner’s vehicles.
The applicant is requesting this variance to build a replacement structure that meets
current building and floodplain standards for construction.
Most of the property is within the floodway, and the entire property is within the
floodplain. In reviewing alternative placements, it was determined that the setbacks on
the property, together with impacts to the floodplain indicate that the proposed placement
is the best location to minimize impacts to the neighborhood and the floodplain. This is
apparent in the site plan that shows the required setbacks.
Staff Analysis:
The existing attached garage and detached garage are small in terms of door height and
volume (see Figures 5 and 6). This creates legitimate logistical challenges for the
applicant and deprives them of the ability to park modern vehicles in existing structures,
the same ability that other similarly situated property owners have. Because the entirety
of the property is encumbered by the floodplain, any construction on the property must
obtain a floodplain variance and the current proposal creates the minimum disturbance to
the floodplain and/or floodway to achieve the goals of the applicant. Additionally, the
proposed structure is required to meet current floodplain and building code requirements,
which leads to a safer building than the existing detached structure that was built decades
ago. This criterion has been met.
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Figure 5 – Attached Garage

Figure 6 – Existing Detached Garage

b. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional
hardship to the applicant; and
Applicant Analysis:
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The entire existing home is within the floodway. The finished floor of the house is above
the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) but the attached garage is below the BFE and is too
small and too low to accommodate today’s vehicles. The applicant intends to construct
the proposed detached garage to be of sufficient size to house the applicant’s vehicles,
thus removing them from sight of the neighborhood, and provide a safer and more
aesthetically pleasing storage of his vehicles, shielded from the forces of nature,
including snow and hail.
Exceptional hardship is a term that may be perceived in different ways, but if removing
snow and scrapping ice from vehicles in the mornings can be determined as excessive
hardship, the criteria is met. Additionally, during periods of typical seasonal hailstorms
the applicant’s vehicles are exposed to potential damage as there are no buildings that can
provide protection from the elements. Furthermore, without the variance being granted
the vehicles, RV, and tractor will have to remain outside and be more prone to theft.
More importantly, however, is the fact that in Cherry Hills Village it is not only normal,
but expected that every home has a one-, two- or ideally a three-car garage. Denying the
applicant, the opportunity to construct a garage, as a replacement of an outdated existing
garage in the same location, by failure to grant the variance would constitute a
considerable hardship. In effect it will mean that this property, as compared to other
properties in the neighborhood, will be incumbered in a way other properties are not.
Consequently, it is indisputable that the value of the property will be negatively affected
if there is no option but to continue to park vehicles outside.
Staff Analysis:
Staff recognizes that this is a subjective criterion where reasonable arguments can be
made on both sides. It is staff’s opinion that failing to grant this floodplain variance
would result in an exceptional hardship because the entirety of the property is
encumbered by the floodway and/or floodplain leaving the applicant without a viable
location to construct a new detached structure without pursuing a floodplain variance.
The proposed building complies with all of the technical requirements for building in the
floodway and/or floodplain and proposes the least impact to the floodway and/or
floodplain to achieve the applicant’s goals. Understanding these circumstances, the denial
of this request would deprive the applicant of the ability to construct a detached structure,
an ability other similarly situated property owners have. This criterion has been met.
c. A determination that the granting of the variance will not result in increased
flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public
expense, the creation of nuisances, fraud on or victimization of the public, or
conflict with other City laws or ordinances.
Applicant Analysis:
The floodplain has been modeled in accordance with Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) requirements. The software that is currently the regulatory software
with which to perform floodplain modeling is the US Army Corps of Engineers
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Hydraulic Engineering Center River Analysis System (HEC-RAS). Both existing and
proposed conditions were modeled and results indicate that the proposed structure causes
NO RISE in the flood levels during the base flood discharge. This modeling is explained
in further detail in the attached document prepared by AWARE Engineering.
By replacing the decaying existing structure with a new engineered structure built to
current building and floodplain standards, the community and the neighborhood will
benefit as all the vehicles, the tractor and RV that are currently parked outside will be
concealed and out of sight. This is a private, unoccupied structure and poses no threat to
the public safety. The proposed structure will decrease the likelihood of impacts to the
floodplain, and therefore will not cause any discernable public expense or nuisances.
Staff Analysis:
The applicant has provided a “No Rise” certification that the BFE will not increase as a
result of this project. Additionally, by providing the documents that have been stamped
by a professional engineer, the applicant has given adequate assurance that this is no
additional threat to public safety, public expense, the creation of a nuisance, or fraud or
victimization to the public. The replacement of a decades-old structure that was not built
to current floodplain and building code requirements will enhance resistance to flood
impacts and reduce the risk to the public. Furthermore, staff has preliminarily reviewed
the structure for compliance with accessory structure requirements, including the bulk
plane requirements, and believes the structure will be able to meet other City laws and
ordinances. This criterion has been met.
(4) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the
building or structure will be permitted to be built with the lowest floor elevation
below the Base Flood Elevation, and that the cost of flood insurance will be
commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the reduced lowest floor
elevation.
Staff Analysis:
The applicant is aware of this information. If the application is approved, or approved
with conditions, staff will provide the applicant a letter to this effect.
Section 16-7-360(c) Referenced Standards.
(1) The bank stabilization design and/or description of dredging procedures (as
applicable) shall follow all applicable regulations of the Arapahoe County
Stormwater Management Manual (ACSMM) and Urban Drainage and Flood
Control District (UDFCD) criteria, and, with regard to dredging of ponds and lakes,
the state dam safety requirements, as each of them may be amended from time to
time.
Not applicable. No bank stabilization or dredging is proposed.
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(2) Hydraulics shall meet the following standards, as determined by the City Engineer:
a. For bank stabilization, floodplain hydraulics shall be analyzed in accordance
with Section 12.2.6 of the ACSMM, and the analysis shall demonstrate that
the bank stabilization will not alter the floodplain boundary or increase base
flood elevations.
b. For dredging of ponds and lakes, the analysis shall demonstrate that the
dredging will not alter the floodplain boundary or increase base flood
elevations.
Not applicable. No bank stabilization or dredging is proposed.
Section 16-7-360(e) Approval Standards.
(1) Approval or denial of a Floodplain Development Permit by the Floodplain
Administrator shall be based on the applicant’s demonstration of compliance with
the standards set out in the referenced standards identified in subsection (c), above,
and confirmation that the analysis is subsection (c)(2), above, is technically
competent.
Staff Analysis:
See staff’s analysis for these criteria above.
(2) The Floodplain Administrator may also consider all of the provisions of Article V,
Floodplain Management and Flood Damage Prevention, and the following relevant
factors:
a. The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage.
Applicant Analysis:
The existing structures on the property are already in the floodway/floodplain and were
when the property was purchased. Replacement of the existing garage will improve the
safety and bring the structure into compliance with current floodplain regulations. The
existing detached garage is in disrepair and does not meet the current needs or building
standards, nor does it comply with the current floodplain regulations. The applicant is
requesting this variance to build a replacement structure that meets current building and
floodplain standards for construction. A detailed hydraulic study of both existing and
proposed conditions indicate that the proposed structure cause NO RISE in the flood
levels during the base flood discharge. There will be no discernable change in the
hydraulic behavior of the floodplain due to the proposed construction, thus no increase in
erosion or other flood damage. This modeling is explained in further detail in the attached
document prepared by AWARE Engineering.
Staff Analysis:
By providing the documents that have been stamped by a professional engineer, the
applicant has given adequate assurance that there is no additional threat to life and
property as a result of this project. Furthermore, the removal of the existing building and
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the construction of the new building likely creates a safer condition as the new building
will meet current floodplain and building code requirements. This criterion has been met.
b. The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage
and the effect of such damage on the individual owner.
Applicant Analysis:
The proposed structure is intended for storage of vehicles, has no electricity or other
utilities, and will be constructed of flood-proof materials, in accordance with current
floodplain regulations. The proposed replacement building will be a prefabricated,
engineered steel structure anchored to a cast in place concrete foundation. There will be
no drywall, insulation, or any other materials used in the construction that would be
damaged or cause damage by water. Flood vent openings in the walls will be constructed
to bring the proposed building in compliance with current floodplain regulations for
structures in the floodways (see response to Section 16-5-220 above).
The proposed structure will only be used to park vehicles. No hazardous chemicals will
be stored in the structure. The depth of flooding will be less than 1.5 feet, which is an
allowable depth of water in parking lots and on streets during flooding, without causing
damage to vehicles. There will not be any materials, chemicals, tools, or other items
stored within the structure that will be subjected to flood depths.
Staff Analysis:
By providing the documents that have been stamped by a professional engineer, the
applicant has given adequate assurance that there is minimal chance that the proposed
structure and its contents are susceptible to flood damage. Additionally, based on the
information provided in (c) below, should water enter the structure, it would be for a
short period of time and at a low velocity. This criterion has been met.
c. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of
others.
Applicant Analysis:
The only contents of the structure will be vehicles. The structure will be built at the edge
of the floodway. Within the HEC-RAS model, velocity vectors were analyzed, and the
associated velocity at the edge of the floodplain at the cross sections nearest the garage
are less than 3.0 fps. The tractive forces associated with 3.0 fps are not sufficient to move
even coarse sand or loose gravel, and thus it stands to reason that the vehicles stored
within the garage, or the garage itself are not in danger of being swept anywhere. There
will not be any contents stored below the BFE that are subject to being swept out or onto
other lands. It is worth noting that the hydrostatic pressure at the greatest depth during a
hundred-year flooding event will be less than 1 pound per square inch (psi), substantially
below any pressure that will cause damage to the proposed building and its contents.
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Following is the output table of the velocities from the HEC-RAS model.

In hydraulic terms, according to Table 7.3, in Ven Te Chow’s Open Channel Hydraulics,
the maximum permissible velocity is the greatest velocity that does not cause erosion of a
channel body.
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The velocity immediately upstream of the proposed garage is less than 3.0 feet per
second (fps). The following is a chart of maximum allowable velocities, as reported by
the US Department of Agriculture in Chapter 8 of Part 654 Stream Restoration Design
National Engineering Handbook, as studied by the US Army Corps of Engineers.

Staff Analysis:
Based on the information provided by the applicant, which has been reviewed and agreed
to by Kimley-Horn, the proposed velocities are so low that there is little to no chance of
materials being swept onto other lands to the injury of others. This criterion has been met.
d. The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated
development.
Applicant Analysis:
The proposed structure will replace an outdated building with a new structure, more
compatible with the current development standards in the neighborhood. The proposed
garage and its intended use will improve the rural feel and look of the subject property,
while respecting the need for low-density building development. Removing vehicles and
trailers from being parked out in the open will improve the aesthetics from Random Road
and replacing a deteriorated concrete brick building with an aesthetically pleasing, simple
discreetly colored garage will definitely elevate the property’s aesthetic impact overall.
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Staff Analysis:
The proposal is for a detached accessory structure that appears to meet all other
requirements of the City. The property is used for single-family residential purposes. The
proposed use of an accessory structure in support a single-family detached home is
consistent with existing and anticipated development in this area of the City. This
criterion has been met.
e. The safety of access to the subject property in times of flood for ordinary and
emergency vehicles.
Applicant Analysis:
The proposed structure is a detached garage only to be used for storing vehicles.
Emergency access is unchanged from the current location. The depth of flooding will
remain unchanged and is sufficiently shallow to allow emergency vehicles and personnel
full access at all times. The floor elevation of the proposed structure will be at grade level
(5409), which is 1 ft higher than the base of the existing structure and will therefore pose
less of a danger due to lesser potential flooding depth.
The results of a study of the fording depth of vehicles, in an article in the International
Journal of Disaster Risk Reduction, dated April 2016, titled Safety criteria for the
trafficability of inundated roads in urban floodings, are illustrated below:
The fording or wading depth is defined as the maximum water depth, which can be forded
by a vehicle without supplementary equipment and is often given in technical
specifications provided by manufacturers, in comparison with passenger cars, emergency
or off-road vehicles are capable of fording waters of higher depths, especially if they
have a higher exhaust or a snorkel.
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The maximum depth of flooding at the garage will be less than 1.5 feet, well below the
fordable depth of passenger as well as emergency vehicles.
Staff Analysis:
Based on the information provided by the applicant, which has been reviewed and agreed
to by Kimley-Horn, the proposed building will not impact accessibility. This criterion has
been met.
f. The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood
conditions, including maintenance and repair of streets and bridges, and
public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems.
Applicant Analysis:
This is a private, unoccupied structure. The proposed construction does not alter access,
flood depths, or any related public interests in the property. No changes before, during, or
after any flooding events will require governmental services. There are no proposed
streets, bridges, utilities, public or private that are within the project boundary, and
therefore there will be no impact to governmental costs associated with maintenance or
repairs of public facilities. The applicant will participate in the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP).
Staff Analysis:
There will be no increased cost for providing governmental services during and after
flooding. Based on the information provided by the applicant that has been stamped by a
professional engineer, the building is not prone to flood damage nor are the contents of
the building likely to be impacted by flooding. Furthermore, there aren’t any utilities in
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this area that would be impacted by flooding and the applicant is not proposing any new
utilities that would serve this building. This criterion has been met.
g. The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport
of the flood waters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at
the subject property.
Applicant Analysis:
In hydraulic terms, the maximum permissible velocity is the greatest velocity that will not
cause erosion of a channel body. The velocity immediately upstream of the proposed
garage is less than 3.0 feet per section (fps). According to “Table 7-3: Maximum
Permissible Velocities” in Ven Te Chow’s Open Channel Hydraulics, (considered the
best authoritative source of hydraulic theory internationally for over 50 years,) the
tractive force associated with the velocity of 3.0 fps would not be great enough to move
coarse, loose gravel and cobbles from a channel body. Thus, it stands to reason that the
same velocity also would not be great enough to move the proposed structure.
The expected depth of water during the 100-year event is less than 1.5 feet. The velocity
during the peak of the 100-year flood at the location of the proposed garage is a nominal
2.7 fps. The following table from the Mile High Flood Control District criteria manual
indicates recommended maximum velocities and depths, and the proposed location is
well below these maximums.

Additionally, the model evaluation indicates that the area proposed for the garage, albeit
designated floodway, is actually an area of ineffective flow, which is an area of the cross
section that is not conveying flow downstream. Therefore, any structure built in this area
will not affect 100-year peak flow elevations. It is essentially considered a storage area,
much like a pond.
The duration is expected to be less than one hour. The streambed is currently well
vegetated with turf grass, so there is no exposed sediment in the streambed. No sediment
transport is expected. This is an ephemeral stream, being dry most of the year, is not a
high velocity channel, and therefore no wave action is expected.
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Staff Analysis:
Based on the information provided by the applicant, which has been reviewed and agreed
to by Kimley-Horn, the items listed in this section will not be significantly impacted by
the proposal. This criterion has been met.
h. The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable.
Applicant Analysis:
N/A – the property is not a waterfront location. Blackmer/Quincy Gulch runs through the
property, but this is a drainage gulch, and does not have running water in it year around.
Staff Analysis:
N/A. the property is not a waterfront location.
i. The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion
damage for the proposed use, buildings, structure, or improvement; and
Applicant Analysis:
The proposed structure is essentially a replacement of the existing structure, but slightly
further from the flowline of the creek, and larger. Most of the property is within the
floodway, and the entire property is within the floodplain. In reviewing alternative
placements, it was determined that the setbacks on the property of 25 feet for the sides
and 30 feet from the back (taking the building height and bulk plane restrictions into
account), and 75 feet form the front, together with impacts to the floodplain indicate that
the proposed placement is the only logical location to minimize impacts to the
neighborhood and the floodplain. This is more evident on the revised site plan to which
the required setbacks have been added. Please refer to Sec. 16-7-530. – Floodplain
variances, (f)2. Above. The only alternatives to the proposed location that is outside of
the floodway would be south of the main house, or in the northeast corner of the property.
Both locations would compromise the 25 feet and 75 feet setback requirements. And they
would require substantial earthwork, tree cutting, gravel, etc. to allow vehicles to access
the garage. Additionally, the model evaluation indicates that the area proposed for the
garage, albeit designated a floodway, is actually an area of ineffective flow, which is an
area of the cross section that is not conveying flow downstream. Therefore, any structure
building in this area will not affect 100-year peak flow elevations. It is essentially
considered a storage area, much like a pond. All things considered, the proposed location
is the only one that makes sense from both a minimum impact and hydrology perspective.
Staff Analysis:
As stated previously, the entirety of the property is encumbered by the floodway and/or
floodplain leaving the applicant without a viable location to construct a new detached
structure without pursuing a floodplain variance. The proposed building is compliant with
all of the technical requirements for building in the floodway and/or floodplain and
proposes the least impact to the floodplain and/or floodway to achieve the applicant’s
goals. This criterion has been met.
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j. The relationship of the proposed use to the Master Plan as it pertains to the
subject property.
Applicant Analysis:
The nine listed strategies to achieve the goal of maintaining the existing land use and
development pattern in Cherry Hills Village Master Plan (page 4) are listed below. Please
see short comments below each strategy as it pertains to this application.
Goal: Maintain the existing land use and development pattern.
Strategies:
1. Discourage rezoning property that would increase residential density or intensity from
what is allowed through the Village’s current zoning regulations or identified in the
future land use/development map.
Not applicable.
2. Maintain the Village’s floodplain management regulations and revise as necessary.
No effect.
3. Discourage new structures and improvements to existing structures within the
floodplain unless such improvements are in compliance with the Village’s floodplain
regulations as well as any regulations of the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), the State of Colorado and The Urban Drainage and Flood Control District.
In compliance.
4. Continue utilization of the most recent version of the Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM) designating floodplains in Cherry Hills Village.
Yes.
5. Encourage property owners to rezone floodplain areas on their property to Open
Space (O-1).
Not applicable.
6. Discourage expanding commercial land uses in the Village. However, if the need
arises to diversity Village funding sources, expansion of commercial or mixed-use
land uses should be considered.
Not applicable.
7. Encourage the use of natural materials to address drainage and erosion issues or other
impacts to development.
Not applicable.
8. Encourage institutional properties to maintain the primary mission and function of
their use. Should an institutional property be sold or ownership changes, the property
should maintain the existing use or shall be subject to the uses and standards of the
underlying zoning district.
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Not applicable.
9. Evaluate the need for development standards which better address the transition from
one adjacent zoning category or development pattern to another.
Not applicable.
Staff Analysis:
The current Master Plan’s Vision is as follows:
“The Village - a safe, low-density, residential community.
It is the desire of the citizens of Cherry Hills Village to maintain the established
character of the community through the implementation of the Village’s planning goals
and strategies, regulations and decisions.
This vision for Cherry Hills Village is defined by:
• semi-rural character, views and open feel of the Village; while
• strategically addressing issues and pursuing Village policy in a fiscally sound
manner.”
The proposal in this application is consistent with this vision. It is in keeping with a safe,
low density, residential community. It also moves the detached building further to the
corner of the property increasing views and the open feel of the property.
Furthermore, as the applicant noted, the Master Plan includes a goal of, “Discourage new
structures and improvements to existing structures within a floodplain boundary unless
(emphasis added) such improvements are in compliance with the Village’s floodplain
regulations as well as any regulations of the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), the State of Colorado and the Urban Drainage and Flood Control District”. The
Master Plan emphasizes safety standards for new structures within a floodplain and does
not prohibit new structures. As outlined in this report, the proposal is compliant with the
City’s other floodplain variance criteria as well as criteria mandated by the Mile High
Flood District (formerly Urban Drainage and Flood Control District) and FEMA. This
criterion has been met.
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION HEARING:
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on May 10, 2022, to discuss this
application (Exhibit M). The Commission stated on several occasions that the approval of a
floodplain variance is rare as the City takes development in the floodway and/or floodplain very
seriously. The Commission wanted to ensure that “extraordinary measures” were taken to
determine that no other alternatives were available to the applicant.
During this hearing the Commission asked questions related to how the City reviews the
application to ensure that there is no increased costs to the City, whether or not the proposed
location is the minimum disturbance to the floodway and/or floodplain, and how floodplain lines
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are changed. Reasoning that because the subject property is entirely encumbered by the
floodplain and a large portion of the site is within the floodway the proposal was for the least
amount of disturbance to the floodway/floodplain, there is not an alternative location to construct
the accessory structure outside the floodway and/or floodplain, the Commission voted
unanimously to recommend that City Council approve the floodplain variance, subject to
conditions.
PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT:
Public Notice:
Notice requirements for public hearings are outlined in Section 16-7-255. A minimum of 15
days prior to the hearing date, a) mailed notice of the hearing was sent to all property owners
within 1,500 feet by first class U.S. mail; b) one public notice sign was posted on the property
facing Random Road; and c) notice of the hearing was published in the June 2, 2022, edition of
The Villager. Notice was also posted on the City’s notice board and City website. All notice
requirements have been met.
Public Comment(s):
At the time this memo was drafted, staff had received three (3) letters of support for this
application (Exhibit N).
RECOMMENDED MOTION:
“I move to approve Resolution 14, Series 2022, a resolution to approve a floodplain variance for
a new accessory structure at 7 Random Road, subject to the following conditions:
1. Prior to the final inspection for the proposed building the applicant shall provide the City
with “as built” drawings, including an “Elevation Certificate”, to ensure that construction of
the garage was consistent with the approved plans.
2. The applicant and subsequent owners of the subject property may not install any electrical,
heating, ventilation, plumbing, or air conditioning equipment, interior walls or insulation, or
other service facilities without prior written approval of the City and proof from the applicant
that they have been designed and located so as to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding.
3. There shall be no storage of chemicals, including but not limited to; oil, gas, fertilizer, and
anti-freeze, or other hazardous materials, at or below two (2) feet from the proposed concrete
slab of the garage.”
ALTERNATIVE MOTIONS:
“I move to approve Resolution 14, Series 2022, a resolution to approve a floodplain variance for
a new accessory structure at 7 Random Road.”
“I move to deny Resolution 14, 2022, a resolution to approve a floodplain variance for a new
accessory structure at 7 Random Road based upon the finding that the following approval criteria
have not been met.
-List the reasons and facts supporting a finding that the approval criteria have not been met.”
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“I move to continue Resolution 14, Series 2022, a resolution to approve a floodplain variance for
a new accessory structure at 7 Random Road until the <Council to specify the date> City Council
meeting.”

ATTACHMENTS:
Exhibit A: Resolution 14, Series 2022
Exhibit B: Project Narrative
Exhibit C: AWARE Floodplain Evaluation
Exhibit D: Stamped Foundation Plans
Exhibit E: Stamped Structural Plans
Exhibit F: Stamped Engineering Letter
Exhibit G: Applicant’s Approval Criteria Analysis
Exhibit H: Freedom Flood Vent Information
Exhibit I: Flood Vent Locations
Exhibit J: Water Engineering Solutions Report
Exhibit K: No Rise Certification
Exhibit L: Kimley-Horn Letter of Compliance
Exhibit M: Draft May 10, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
Exhibit N: Letters of Support
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Exhibit A
RESOLUTION NO. 14
SERIES 2022

INTRODUCED BY:
SECONDED BY:
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
APPROVING A FLOODPLAIN VARIANCE
PERTAINING TO PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 7 RANDOM ROAD

WHEREAS, Anton Fredrik Klaveness (the “Applicant”) is the record property owner of a
certain parcel of land being approximately 2.32 acres in size, located at 7 Random Road, and
more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein; and
WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted an application for a Floodplain Variance dated
February 25, 2021 (“Application”); and
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission (“P&Z”) held a duly noticed public
hearing on May 10, 2022, to consider the Application and following the conclusion of the public
hearing voted to recommend approval of the Application to City Council subject to three
conditions, based on the evidence and testimony presented at such hearing; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code (“Code”), the City
provided notice of a City Council hearing to be held on June 21, 2022; and
WHEREAS, on June 21, 2022, the City Council thereafter held such duly-noticed public
hearing on the Application, at which time evidence and testimony were presented to the City
Council; and
WHEREAS, the City Council determines that testimony and other evidence in the record
supports findings that the Floodplain Variance meets the criteria outlined in Section 16-5-210,
Section 16-5-220(c), and (d), Section 16-5-240(b), Section 16-7-530(c) and (f), Section 16-7360(c), and Section 16-7-360(e) of the Code, as more fully discussed in the staff memorandum
prepared for the June 21, 2022, public hearing and all other applicable provisions of the Code
and does so find.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE:
Section 1.
Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated
herein by reference and are adopted as findings of the City Council.
Section 2.
Floodplain Variance Approved. The Floodplain Variance sought by the
Application is hereby approved, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 3 below.
Section 3.
Conditions Imposed. The Floodplain Variance herein approved is subject to
the following conditions:
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1. Prior to the final inspection for the proposed building the applicant shall provide the
City with “as built” drawings, including an “Elevation Certificate”, to ensure that
construction of the garage was consistent with the approved plans.
2. The applicant and subsequent owners of the subject property may not install any
electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, or air conditioning equipment, interior walls
or insulation, or other service facilities without prior written approval of the City and
proof from the applicant that they have been designed and located so as to prevent
water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of
flooding.
3. There shall be no storage of chemicals, including but not limited to; oil, gas, fertilizer,
and anti-freeze, or other hazardous materials at or below two (2) feet from the
proposed concrete slab of the garage.
Section 4.
adoption.

Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its

Section 5.
Repealer. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with this resolution are
hereby repealed, provided that such repealer shall not repeal the repealer clauses of such
resolution or revive any resolution.
Section 6.
Severability. If any provision of this resolution is found by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining provisions of this resolution will remain valid, it
being the intent of the City that the provisions of this resolution are severable.
Introduced, passed and adopted at a
regular meeting of City Council this __ day
of _______, 2022, by a vote of _ yes and _ no.
(SEAL)

__________________________________
Russell O. Stewart, Mayor

ATTEST:

Laura Gillespie, City Clerk

Page 2 of 3
Resolution 14, Series 2022

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
_

Kathie B. Guckenberger, City Attorney

Exhibit A
Legal Description
Plot 7 Polichio Subdivision
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Exhibit B
A FREDRIK KLAVENESS

PROJECT NARRATIVE
Floodplain Variance and Building Permit Application for the Replacement of a Detached Garage at
7 Random Road, Polichio Subdivision, Cherry Hills Village
DESCRIPTION
The floodplain variance application is for the replacement of an existing garage that is located
partially in the floodway of Blackmer/Quincy Gulch. A substantial portion of the 2.3 acre property is
in the floodway, including the location of the main residence, built in 1979, which includes an
attached garage.
The finished floor of the house is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) but the attached garage is
below the BFE and is too small and too low to accommodate today’s vehicles. The detached, 600
sq.ft. garage on the property was built in the 1950’s, is in disrepair, the roof height is insufficient to
fit modern SUVs, and it does not meet the needs of the applicant or current building standards, nor
does it comply with the current floodplain regulations.
The applicant would like to demolish the existing detached garage and replace it with a larger (25’ x
44’ or 1,100 square feet), structurally more modern building. The proposed replacement building will
be a pre-fabricated, engineered all-steel structure anchored to a cast-in-place concrete foundation.
Although the proposed building is in an area with ineffective flow in case of a flood, the garage will
have a total of nine (9) 16” x 8” Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) approved and
International Code Council (ICC-ES) certified flood vents installed in the walls to bring the proposed
building in compliance with current floodplain regulations for structures in floodways. The flood
vents are certified for a 2,250 sq.ft. building as per current FEMA regulations, and for a 1,152 sq.ft.
building as per the CHV Municipal Code 16-5-220.
The applicant currently has 5 vehicles and a tractor parked at the property, and it is his desire to be
able to park most of these vehicles in the new garage, both to be protected from elements and from
theft. The garage will not be used for any storage of chemicals, fuels and so forth, and there will be no
interior walls, absorbing insulation, electrical installations or plumbing of any kind.
LOCATION
The proposed garage is essentially a replacement of the existing garage, but located further from the
flowline of the creek, and is larger. It will be pulled back closer to the north property perimeter
compared to the existing garage while respecting the 25 ft setback requirement and the bulk plane
restrictions. This means the south facing wall will be approximately 10 ft further away from the edge
of Blackmer/Quincy Gulch compared to the existing garage (40 ft distance compared to today’s 30 ft).
Most of the property is within the floodway, and the entire property is within the floodplain. All
alternative placements for the proposed garage have been considered, but the setback limitations,
streetscapes, and aesthetics on the property combined with the location of the floodway preclude
placement within 25 feet from the sides or back property perimeter, and 75 feet from the front. This
limits the location of the structure.
The only other locations for a replacement garage that is outside the floodway is in the northeast
corner or between the main house and Random Road. None of these are viable alternatives, simply
because they would both require substantial earthwork, including the construction of a gravel or paved
road, cutting of existing trees, and more importantly, because they would be highly intrusive and have
a major and negative impact on the property and its neighbours. It will also be impossible to meet the
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25 ft and 75 ft setback requirements while building outside the floodway. There is a good reason why
the garage was constructed at its current location back in the 1950’s.
ELEVATION
Adding fill to raise the proposed building to one foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) would
require additional fill to be brought into the site, increased disturbance of the floodway and
floodplain, and a decrease in flood storage capacity. Therefore, it has been determined that the best
design and the least impact to the floodway and floodplain is for the floor of the structure to be below
the BFE at elevation 5409, which is 1.4 feet below the BFE of 5410.4.
STORAGE
The applicant is aware of the floodplain regulations and the restrictions for storing chemicals in the
floodplain. Liquids in vehicles are sealed within the engine of the vehicle. A major flood event will
result in 1.4 feet of water standing above the garage floor. This is not sufficiently deep to float the
vehicles, nor to submerge the engine and the associated liquids within the engine. The applicant will
not store any chemicals within the structure. Any tools or other items stored in the structure will be
on shelves well above the BFE.
ANALYSIS
The floodplain has been modeled in accordance with FEMA requirements. The software that is
currently the regulatory software with which to perform floodplain modeling is the US Army Corps of
Engineers Hydrologic Engineering Center River Analysis System (HEC-RAS). Both existing and proposed
conditions were modeled by Advanced Water Resource Engineering, LLC (AWARE) and the results
indicate that the proposed structure will cause NO RISE in the flood levels during the base flood
discharge.
According to AWARE, the depth of water during the one hundred year event at the garage correlates
to a hydrostatic pressure of less than 1 psi at the greatest depth of water. The wall material, the wall
fastening system, and the structural wall-foundation connections can withstand pressure in the
magnitude of thousands of psi prior to failure.
The projected potential flow of 2.7 fps is the velocity on the portion of the overbank where active flow
occurs during the 100-year event. The garage is being placed in the ineffective flow area. There really
is no “flowing water” because this area is a storage area caused by backwater. Water fills the area and
remains there until the depth of water in the channel is low enough for the water to drain out. Even if
the material of the building or the fastening system of its walls had a lower permissible velocity than
the actual flow velocity, it would not matter because water in the ineffective flow area does not
contribute to actual active flow.
The entire south-facing perimeter of the property along Random Road is part of the Cherry Hills Village
main trail network, with residents and others frequently walking by. To maintain a “rural pastoral feel”
and nice appearance should be prioritized, and removing a number of parked vehicles the applicant
currently have to park outside (and exposed to the natural elements) into a simple, solid, barn-style
garage set back from the road will improve the overall aesthetics of the property. Finally, there will be
no negative effect on the neighbourhood from the proposal.
The applicant has verbally discussed his plans to replace the old garage with a new, upgraded and
larger one with all neighbours adjacent to his property. Both Holland (no 5), Matherly (no 10),
Carpenter (no 9), Hallé (no 11) and Scott (no 12) are positive to these plans, and in fact welcome it.
There will be no negative effect on the neighbourhood from the proposal.
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CONCLUSIONS
There will be no rise in the flood elevation, and no additional fill or disturbance within the floodplain to provide access. The analysis indicates that the proposed location and floor elevation
are the best solution to minimize impacts on the floodway and the floodplain.
The applicant is of the opinion that since the hydrology in the floodway and floodplain will not be
negatively affected by the proposed replacement construction of a new garage the application
should be approved. The applicant has spent substantial time and resources and received the
professional advice by floodplains development experts, hydrologists and engineers to come up
with a proposal that is the least intrusive and the most logical for this property. It will elevate the
appearance of the property, remove parked vehicles from being outside, and replace an old
concrete brick building that is less than 25 ft from the west-facing property perimeter. Finally, the
proposed new garage will increase the distance between the building and Blackmer/Quincy Gulch
and will be built according to code and FEMA guidelines.

Fredrik Klaveness
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Exhibit C

15 January
October 2022
2021
16
Fredrik Klaveness
7 Random Road
Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
RE: Evaluation of the Anticipated Effects of a Garage Structure Proposed within the Blackmer Gulch 100Year Floodplain at 7 Random Road in the City of Cherry Hills Village, Arapahoe County, Colorado
Dear Mr. Klaveness:
Advanced WAter Resources Engineering, LLC (AWARE) is pleased to offer you this brief letter report on
the anticipated effects a proposed replacement garage will have on the 100-year water surface
elevation of Lower Blackmer Gulch at your residence, 7 Random Road, in Cherry Hills Village. Our
findings are summarized in Table 1 (below). The proposed replacement garage will not cause any rise in
the 100-year water surface elevation of Lower Blackmer Gulch.
APPROACH. AWARE used HEC-RAS, the industry-wide-accepted hydraulics model for predicting and
mapping floodplains, to evaluate the effects of the proposed garage. HEC-RAS is an acronym for
Hydrologic Engineering Center's River Analysis System. It is a United States Army Corps of Engineers
software program that allows the user to perform one-dimensional steady flow, one and two-dimensional
unsteady flow calculations, sediment transport/mobile bed computations, and water temperature/
water quality modeling, and it is and has been the Federal Emergency Management Administration’s
(FEMA’s) preferred floodplain mapping software for decades. The new 25-foot wide by 44-foot long
garage is proposed to replace an existing 19-foot wide by 31-foot long structure, which currently resides
within the 100-year floodplain in approximately the same location as that of the proposed garage. See
Figure 1.
FIGURE 1: SUBJECT SITE

PROPOSED GARAGE
EXISTING GARAGE

Source: FEMA National Flood Hazard Layer Tool. Black polygons represent cross sections FEMA has chosen
specifically to denote 100-year water surface elevations. The black polygons are not relevant to the
subject evaluation. All contents of figure should be considered approximate.
Eliot Wong, PE
Principal Engineer
ewong@aware-engineering.com

Advanced WAter Resources Engineering (AWARE, LLC)
900 Forest St 80220
303.908.0619

To demonstrate that the proposed garage will not cause any rise in th e 100-year water surface
elevation. AWARE conducted a relative* model comparison of pre- and post-replacement garage
floodplain elevations. To do this, we used the hydraulic model which supports the last master
plan for Little Dry Creek and tributaries and merely added the proposed garage into the model.
(Our understanding is that the hydraulic model was provided by Mile High Flood District.) By
not changing any other input parameters in the base, existing conditions model, if the
comparison showed any differences in floodplain elevations, we could be certain that those
changes would be a result of the proposed garage. Upon running the models, we compared the
resulting p r o p o s e d 100-year flood elevations with the 100-year flood elevations from the existing
condition model.
It is worthy to note that, because the existing condition HEC-RAS model was created by another entity
and provided to AWARE, it was prudent for us to review it for accuracy and technical correctness. Based
on a site visit conducted on April 19, 2021, and extensive modeling experience, AWARE updated a few
existing conditions parameters primarily related to the compacted earthen crossing and 30-inch
corrugated metal pipe (CMP) just downstream of the proposed location of the garage. The size of the
culvert and elevation of the road crossing were updated, as well as entering ineffective flow areas that
were not inlcuded in the model provided to us. Updating floodplain models due to changes that have
occurred within a subject basin or to infrastructure adjacent to the subject waterway is not uncommon.
It is a practice that should be exercised whenever conducting a floodplain study whereby a measurable
amount of time has passed since the creation of the effective model. FEMA requires that all effective
models be updated to reflect existing conditions when submitting a map revision request. Changes made
to the effective model do not necessarily mean that the floodplian is incorrectly represented, although it
may indicate an update is warranted. In the case of the short reach specific to this evaluation, the revisions
and additions (described above) to the model likely do not affect the effective 100-year floodplain to
the extent that would justify a map change request. The 100-year peak flow is large enough in
magnitude in Blackmer Gulch that the changes to the model ultimately result in nominal differences to
the floodplain. The evaluation model is enclosed with this letter. Within the model are two geometry
files: Existing and Proposed.

RESULTS. Table 1 shows the results of the 100-year flood elevation comparison between existing and
proposed conditions. The cross sections listed in the table can be referenced on the attached Site
Plan.

*The hydraulic model used to perform an analysis between existing conditions (EC) and proposed conditions [i.e., post-garage conditions] (PC) at the subject
site is the hydraulic model which supports the Master Plan of the entire Little Dry Creek Watershed in Arapahoe County performed in 2004. Our understanding
is that this model was provided by the Mile High Flood District at the onset of the 7 Random Road project. (It was not provided to AWARE directly from MHFD.)
Regardless, the purpose of the hydraulic modeling is to show the relative difference between existing and proposed conditions. More specifically, its purpose is
to determine whether the additional extent of the proposed replacement garage into the floodplain would cause a rise in the 100-year water surface elevation.
Whether the models being compared represented as-constructed improvements perfectly or whether they represented the condition of the site 10-20 years
ago would not influence the results. This is intentional in order to determine the effect(s) of the garage, exclusively, on the 100-year floodplain. Thus, the only
difference between the existing and proposed models is the new garage. All other parameters and model inputs remain the same in both the EC and PC
models.
Nonetheless, AWARE did perform an onsite reconnaissance to confirm elevations, measurements, and topographic features for incorporation into the model
to accurately reflect existing conditions. The 30-inch CMP culvert in the submitted model is a direct result of the onsite survey we conducted. The model
submitted with this application now represents the most current and accurate condition relative to 7 Random Road.
Eliot Wong, PE
Principal Engineer
ewong@aware-engineering.com

Advanced WAter Resources Engineering (AWARE, LLC) 900
Forest St 80220
303.908.0619

FINDING. The replacement garage is proposed in an ineffective flow area that is created due to the
elevated topography immediately downstream of 7 Random Road. Ineffective flow occurs when
floodwaters enter an area and are stored, and do not re-enter the channel as active flow. Because they
do not re-converge with active flowing water during the flood event, they do not contribute to any
characteristic of flow during the flood event, including a rise in water surface elevation. Water in this
area remains “stored” until the active flow in the channel decreases to an elevation that will allow the
ineffective flow area to drain out. This being the case, the results of the hydraulic modeling should
reflect a no-rise effect in the 100-year floodplain elevation comparison of pre- and post-garage
scenarios; and it does, showing a 0.00-foot rise in the 100-year water surface elevation.

We appreciate the opportunity to have assisted with your project. AWARE can provide you with a No-Rise
Certification for the proposed garage should it be requested by Cherry Hills Village. Please do not hesitate
to contact us if you have any questions or if you need anything further.

Respectfully,

Eliot J. Wong, PE
Principal Engineer

Eliot Wong, PE
Principal Engineer
ewong@aware-engineering.com

10-17-2021

Advanced WAter Resources Engineering (AWARE, LLC) 900
Forest St 80220
303.908.0619
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Exhibit G

04. RESPONSES TO SPECIFIC INFORMATION
FLOODPLAIN VARIANCE APPLICATION

REQUIRED

IN

THE

Provided by Deborah A. Fisher, P.E., CFM, CPESC
Sec. 16-5-220. - Specific standards for flood hazard reduction.
(c) Nonresidential Construction.

(1) With the exception of critical facilities, outlined in Section 16-5-280, Standards for Critical
Facilities, new construction and substantial improvements of any commercial or other nonresidential structure shall either have the lowest floor (including basement), electrical, heating,
ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities (including
ductwork), elevated to one (1) foot above the base flood elevation or, together with attendant
utility and sanitary facilities, be designed so that at one (1) foot above the base flood elevation the
structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and
effects of buoyancy.
(2) A registered Colorado Professional Engineer or architect shall develop and/or review structural
design, specifications, and plans for the construction, and shall certify that the design and methods
of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice as outlined in this subsection.
Such certification shall be maintained by the Floodplain Administrator, as provided in Section 16-750, Floodplain Administrator.

The least modification to the existing floodway has been proposed for this new structure.
The location and finished floor elevation of the proposed structure were chosen for several
reasons. Adding fill to raise the proposed building to one foot above the BFE (Base Flood
Elevation) would require additional fill to be brought into the site, additional disturbance of
the floodway and floodplain, and a decrease in flood storage. Therefore, it has been
determined that the best design is for the floor of the structure to be below the BFE at
elevation 5409, which is 1.4 feet below the BFE of 5410.4.
The prosed structure is an engineered pre-fabricated steel building anchored to a poured
in place concrete foundation, capable of withstanding the effects of the depth and the
flowrate of the expected major flood. To alleviate hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and
buoyancy, although the location is in an area of ineffective flow, nine (9) flood vents or
openings in the walls of the structure, each measuring 16” x 8”, will be installed during
construction. The bottom of the flood vents will be at grade, i.e. they will be installed at the
floor level of the garage as required by section (d) below. The structural design,
specifications and plans have been prepared by the manufacturer of the building, and are
stamped and signed by their engineer. The building will be erected by a professional builder
who will install the nine FEMA approved and ICC-ES certified flood vents.
See:
https://shop.freedomfloodvent.com/freedom-flood-vent-16x8-black-flood-vent-ffv-1608-b/
(d) Enclosures. New construction and substantial improvements, with fully enclosed areas below the
lowest floor that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage in an area other than
a basement and which are subject to flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood
forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this
requirement must either be certified by a registered Colorado Professional Engineer or architect or meet
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or exceed the following minimum criteria:
(1) A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one (1) square inch for every
square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided.
(2) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade.

The nine flood vents will be installed at the same level as the garage floor.
(3) Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices provided that
they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

The proposed structure will be 25 feet by 44 feet, for a total of 1100 square feet. There will be a
12 foot wide roll-up garage door facing south, as well as a side entry door measuring 30” by 70”
and 6 windows measuring 40” x 30” on the east (4) and north (2) facing façade. The doors and
windows are described here for information only. They are not needed for compliance with the
flood opening areas. Consistent with the above criteria, nine flood vent openings totaling 1152
square inches, or 8 square feet, will be installed in the walls of the structure (see 04 Flood Vent
Placement). The structural integrity of the building will not be negatively affected by the flood
vents, as confirmed by the engineer at Great Western Buildings (04 GWB Engineering Letter).
Sec. 16-7-530. - Floodplain variances.

(e)
Limitations. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood
levels during the base flood discharge would result.

The floodplain has been modeled in accordance with Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) requirements. The software that is currently the regulatory software with which to
perform floodplain modeling is the US Army Corps of Engineers Hydrologic Engineering Center
River Analysis System (HEC-RAS). Both existing and proposed conditions were modeled and
results indicate that the proposed structure cause NO RISE in the flood levels during the base
flood discharge.
(f) Approval Standards (Generally). A floodplain variance may be granted for purposes other than
Functionally Dependent Uses (see subsection (g), below, for Functionally Dependent Uses) only upon a
finding by the City Council that:
(1) The relevant factors in Section 16-7-360, Floodplain Development Permit, subsection (e)(2)
(including standards referenced therein) have been weighed, and favor the grant of the floodplain
variance.

See the responses under Section 16-7-360 below.
(2) The floodplain variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.

The application for replacing the old, too low and small and outdated garage is along the principle
of minimum necessary. The majority of the property is in the floodway, and there are not any
alternative locations that remove the proposed structure from the floodway and at the same time
respect the setbacks. The only alternative to the proposed location that is outside the floodway
would be directly south of the main house, near the large willow tree and between Random Road
and the main house. But this location would violate the 75 feet setback requirement. Another
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possibility would be the northeast corner of the property, near the entrance to no. 9 Random
Road. The setback restrictions would pose a challenge, which would mean that the garage would
have to be very close to Blackmer Gulch and hence in the floodway. Both these locations, if they
had indeed been real and feasible alternatives, would require substantial earthwork, gravel, etc.
to allow for vehicles to access the garage. Two large trees will have to be cut, and an internal
access road will have to be constructed. Consequently, none of these locations would meet the
criteria of minimum necessary. The proposed garage, on the other hand, is in the same location
as the existing garage, the location has no hydraulic impacts to the floodway or floodplain, and
the location meets the minimum necessary criteria.
(3) The floodplain variance is only issued upon:
a. Showing a good and sufficient cause;

The existing detached garage is in disrepair and does not meet the current needs or building
standards, nor does it comply with the current floodplain regulations. The old garage is also too
small and has an insufficient ceiling height to fit the owner’s vehicles. The applicant is requesting
this variance to build a replacement structure that meets current building and floodplain
standards for construction.
Most of the property is within the floodway, and the entire property is within the floodplain.
In reviewing alternative placements, it was determined that the setbacks on the property,
together with impacts to the floodplain indicate that the proposed placement is the best
location to minimize impacts to the neighborhood and the floodplain. This is apparent in the
site plan that shows the required setbacks.
b. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the applicant,
and

The entire existing home is within the floodway. The finished floor of the house is above the
Base Flood Elevation (BFE) but the attached garage is below the BFE and is too small and too
low to accommodate today’s vehicles. The applicant intends to construct the proposed detached
garage to be of sufficient size to house the applicant’s vehicles, thus removing them from sight
of the neighborhood, and provide a safer and more aesthetically pleasing storage of his
vehicles, shielded from the forces of nature, including snow and hail.
Exceptional hardship is a term that may be perceived in different ways, but if removing snow
and scraping ice from vehicles in the mornings can be determined as excessive hardship, the
criteria is met. Additionally, during periods of typical seasonal hailstorms the applicant’s vehicles
are exposed to potential damage as there are no buildings that can provide protection from the
elements. Furthermore, without the variance being granted the vehicles, RV and tractor will
have to remain outside and be more prone to theft.
More importantly, however, is the fact that in Cherry Hills Village it is not only normal but
expected that every home has a one-, two- or ideally a three-car garage. Denying the applicant
the opportunity to construct a garage, as a replacement of an outdated existing garage in the
same location, by a failure to grant the variance would constitute a considerable hardship. In
effect it will mean that this property, as compared to other properties in the neighborhood, will
be incumbered in a way other properties are not. Consequently, it is indisputable that the value
of the property will be negatively affected if there is no option but to continue to park vehicles
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outside.
c. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional
threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, the creation of nuisances, fraud on or victimization
of the public, or conflict with other City laws or ordinances.

The floodplain has been modeled in accordance with Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) requirements. The software that is currently the regulatory software with which to
perform floodplain modeling is the US Army Corps of Engineers Hydrologic Engineering Center
River Analysis System (HEC-RAS). Both existing and proposed conditions were modeled and
results indicate that the proposed structure causes NO RISE in the flood levels during the base
flood discharge. This modeling is explained in further detail in the attached document prepared
by AWARE Engineering.
By replacing the decaying existing structure with a new engineered structure built to current
building and floodplain standards, the community and the neighborhood will benefit as all the
vehicles, the tractor and RV that are currently parked outside will be concealed and out of sight.
This is a private, unoccupied structure, and poses no threat to the public safety. The proposed
structure will decrease the likelihood of impacts to the floodplain, and therefore will not cause
any discernable public expense or nuisances.
Sec. 16-7-360. - Floodplain development permit.
(e) Approval Standards.
(2) The Floodplain Administrator may also consider all of the provisions of Article V, Floodplain
Management and Flood Damage Prevention, and the following relevant factors:
a. The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;

The existing structures on the property are already in the floodway/floodplain and were when the
property was purchased. Replacement of the existing garage will improve the safety and bring
the structure into compliance with current floodplain regulations. The existing detached garage
is in disrepair and does not meet the current needs or building standards, nor does it comply
with the current floodplain regulations. The applicant is requesting this variance to build a
replacement structure that meets current building and floodplain standards for construction.
A detailed hydraulic study of both existing and proposed conditions indicate that the proposed
structure causes NO RISE in the flood levels during the base flood discharge. There will be no
discernable change in the hydraulic behavior of the floodplain due to the proposed construction,
thus no increase in erosion or other flooding damage. This modeling is explained in further detail
in the attached document prepared by AWARE Engineering.
b. The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such
damage on the individual owner;

The proposed structure is intended for storage of vehicles, has no electricity or other
utilities, and will be constructed of flood-proof materials, in accordance with current
floodplain regulations. The proposed replacement building will be a pre-fabricated,
engineered steel structure anchored to a cast in place concrete foundation. There will be no
drywall, insulation, or any other materials used in the construction that would be damaged or
cause damage by water. Flood vent openings in the walls will be constructed to bring the
proposed building in compliance with current floodplain regulations for structures in floodways
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(see response to Section 16-5-220 above).
The proposed structure will only be used to park vehicles. No hazardous chemicals will be
stored in the structure. The depth of flooding will be less than 1.5 feet, which is an allowable
depth of water in parking lots and on streets during flooding, without causing damage to
vehicles. There will not be any materials, chemicals, tools, or other items stored within the
structure that will be subjected to flood depths.
c. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;

The only contents of the structure will be vehicles. The structure will be built at the edge of
the floodway. Within the HEC-RAS model, velocity vectors were analyzed, and the
associated velocity at the edges of the floodplain at the cross sections nearest the garage
are less than 3.0 fps. The tractive forces associated with 3.0 fps are not sufficient to move
even coarse sand or loose gravel, and thus it stands to reason that the vehicles stored
within the garage, or the garage itself are not in danger of being swept anywhere. There
will not be any contents stored below the BFE that are subject to being swept out or onto
other lands. It is worth noting that the hydrostatic pressure at the greatest depth during a
hundred year flooding event will be less than 1 pound per square inch (psi), substantially
below any pressure that will cause damage to the proposed building and its contents.
Following is the output table of velocities from the HEC-RAS model.

In hydraulic terms, according to Table 7.3, in Ven Te Chow’s Open Channel Hydraulics, the
maximum permissible velocity is the greatest velocity that will not cause erosion of a channel
body.
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The velocity immediately upstream of the proposed garage is less than 3.0 feet per second
(fps). The following is a chart of maximum allowable velocities, as reported by the US
Department of Agriculture in Chapter 8 of Part 654 Stream Restoration Design National
Engineering Handbook, as studied by the US Army Corps of Engineers.
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d. The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;

The proposed structure will replace an outdated building with a new structure, more
compatible with current development standards in the neighborhood. The proposed garage
and its intended use will improve the rural feel and look of the subject property, while respecting
the need for low-density building development. Removing vehicles and trailers from being parked
out in the open will improve the aesthetics from Random Road, and replacing a deteriorated
concrete brick building with an aesthetically pleasing, simple discreetly colored garage will
definitely elevate the property’s aesthetic impact overall.
e. The safety of access to the subject property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;

The proposed structure is a detached garage only to be used for storing vehicles.
Emergency access is unchanged from the current location. The depth of flooding will
remain unchanged, and is sufficiently shallow to allow emergency vehicles and personnel
full access at all times. The floor elevation of the proposed structure will be at grade level
(5409 ft), which is 1 ft higher than the base of the existing structure, and will therefore pose
less of a danger due to lesser potential flooding depth.
The results of a study of the fording depth of vehicles, in an article in the International
journal of Disaster Risk Reduction, dated April 2016, titled Safety criteria for the trafficability
of inundated roads in urban floodings, are illustrated below:
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The fording or wading depth is defined as the maximum water depth, which can be
forded by a vehicle without supplementary equipment, and is often given in technical
specifications provided by manufacturers. In comparison with passenger cars,
emergency or off-road vehicles are capable of fording waters of higher depths,
especially if they have a higher exhaust or a snorkel.

TYPICAL FORDING DEPTHS OF PASSENGER AND EMERGENCY VEHICLES
The maximum depth of flooding at the garage will be less than 1.5 feet, well below the
fordable depth of passenger as well as emergency vehicles.
f. The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions, including maintenance
and repair of streets and bridges, and public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and
water systems;

This is a private, unoccupied structure. The proposed construction does not alter access, flood
depths, or any related public interests in the property. No changes before, during, or after any
flooding events will require governmental services. There are no proposed streets, bridges,
utilities, public or private that are within the project boundary, and therefore there will be no
impact or governmental costs associated with maintenance or repairs of public facilities. The
applicant will participate in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).
g. The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the flood waters and
the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the subject property;

In hydraulic terms, the maximum permissible velocity is the greatest velocity that will not cause
erosion of a channel body. The velocity immediately upstream of the proposed garage is less
than 3.0 feet per second (fps). According to “Table 7-3: Maximum Permissible Velocities” in Ven
Te Chow’s Open Channel Hydraulics, (considered the best authoritative source of hydraulic
theory internationally for over 50 years,) the tractive force associated with a velocity of 3.0 fps
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would not be great enough to move coarse, loose gravel and cobbles from a channel body. Thus,
it stands to reason that the same velocity also would not be great enough to move the proposed
structure.
The expected depth of water during the 100-year event is less than 1.5 feet. The velocity
during the peak of the 100-year flood at the location of theproposed garage is a nominal
2.7 fps. The following table from the Mile High Flood Control District criteria manual
indicates recommended maximum velocities and depths, and the proposed location is well
below these maximums.

Additionally, the model evaluation indicates that the area proposed for the garage, albeit
designated a floodway, is actually an area of ineffective flow, which is an area of the cross
section that is not conveying flow downstream. Therefore, any structure built in this area
will not affect 100-year peak flow elevations. It is essentially considered a storage area,
much like a pond.
The duration is expected to be less than one hour. The streambed is currently well
vegetated with turf grass, so there is no exposed sediment in the streambed. No sediment
transport is expected. This is an ephemeral stream, being dry most of the year, is not a
high velocity channel, and therefore no wave action is expected.
h.

The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable;

N/A – the property is not a waterfront location. Blackmer/Quincy Gulch runs through the
property, but this is a drainage gulch, and does not have running water in it year around.
(i) The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed
use, building, structure, or improvement;

The proposed structure is essentially a replacement of the existing structure, but slightly
further from the flowline of the creek, and larger. Most of the property is within the floodway,
and the entire property is within the floodplain. In reviewing alternative placements, it was
determined that the setbacks on the property of 25 feet for the sides and 30 feet from the
back (taking the building height and bulk plane restrictions into account), and 75 feet from
the front, together with impacts to the floodplain indicate that the proposed placement is the
only logical location to minimize impacts to the neighborhood and the floodplain. This is
more evident on the revised site plain to which the required setbacks have been added.
Please refer to Sec. 16-7-530. - Floodplain variances, (f) 2. above. The only alternatives to
the proposed location that is outside the floodway would be south of the main house, or in the
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northeast corner of the property. Both locations would compromise the 25 feet and 75 feet
setback requirements, and they would require substantial earthworks, tree cutting, gravel, etc.
to allow for vehicles to access the garage. Additionally, the model evaluation indicates that
the area proposed for the garage, albeit designated a floodway, is actually an area of
ineffective flow, which is an area of the cross section that is not conveying flow downstream.
Therefore, any structure built in this area will not affect 100-year peak flow elevations. It is
essentially considered a storage area, much like a pond. All things considered, the proposed
location is the only one that makes any sense from both a minimum impact and a hydrology
perspective.
j. The relationship of the proposed use to the Master Plan as it pertains to the subject property.

The nine listed strategies to achieve the goal of maintaining the existing land use and
development pattern in Cherry Hills Village Master Plan (page 4) are listed below. Please see
short comments below each strategy as it pertains to this application.
Goal: Maintain the existing land use and development pattern.
Strategies:
1.

Discourage rezoning property that would increase residential density or intensity from what is
allowed through the Village’s current zoning regulations or identified in the future land
use/development map.

Not applicable.
2.

Maintain the Village’s floodplain management regulations and revise as necessary.

No effect.
3.

Discourage new structures and improvements to existing structures within a floodplain unless such
improvements are in compliance with the Village’s floodplain regulations as well as any regulations
of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the State of Colorado and the Urban
Drainage and Flood Control District.

In compliance.
4.

Continue utilization of the most recent version of the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) designating
floodplains in Cherry Hills Village.

Yes.
5.

Encourage property owners to rezone floodplain areas on their property to Open Space (O -1).

Not applicable.
6.

Discourage expanding commercial land uses in the Village. However, if the need arises to diversify
Village funding sources, expansion of commercial or mixed-use land uses should be considered.

Not applicable.
7.

Encourage the use of natural materials to address drainage and erosion issues or other impacts to
development.

Not applicable.
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8.

Encourage institutional properties to maintain the primary mission and function of their use. Should
an institutional property be sold or ownership changes, the property should maintain the existing
use or shall be subject to the uses and standards of the underlying zoning district.

Not applicable.
9.

Evaluate the need for development standards which better address the transition from one adjacent
zoning category or development pattern to another.

Not applicable.
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Exhibit H

ICC-ES Evaluation Report

ESR-4332
Reissued March 2020
This report is subject to renewal March 2022.

www.icc-es.org I (800) 423-6587 I

(562) 699-0543

DIVISION: 08 00 00—OPENINGS
Section: 08 95 43—Vents I Foundation Flood Vents
REPORT HOLDER:
SMART PRODUCT INNOVATIONS, INC.
EVALUATION SUBJECT:
FREEDOM FLOOD VENTTM AUTOMATIC FOUNDATION
FLOOD VENT: MODEL FFV-1 608

1.0 EVALUATION SCOPE
• 2018, 2015, 2012, 2009 and 2006 International Building
Code® (IBC)
2015,

2012,

2009

and

2006

International

Residential Code® (IRC)
Properties evaluated:
B

Physical operation

• Water flow
B

3.2 Engineered Opening:
The FV complies with the design principle noted in
Section 2.7.2.2 and Section 2.7.3 of ASCE/ SEI 24-14
(2018 and 2015 IBC and IRC) [Section 2.6.2.2 of ASCE/
SEI 24-05 (2012, 2009, 2006 IBC and IRC)] for a
maximum rate of rise and fall of 5.0 feet per hour
(0.423 mmls). In order to comply with the engineered
opening requirement of ASCE/ SEI 24, Freedom Flood
Vent”' FVs must be installed in accordance with Section
4.0 below. See Table 1 for vent size and maximum
allowable area coverage for a single vent.
4.0 DESIGN AND INSTALLATION

Compliance with the following codes:

• 2018,

A Subsidia,y of the International Code Council®

• With a minimum of two openings on different sides of
each enclosed area.
• With a minimum of one FV for every 250 square feet
(23.2 m2) of enclosed area.

Weathering

2.0 USES
The model FFV—1608 Freedom Flood Vent”
equalize hydrostatic pressure on walls of
subject to rising or falling floodwaters. With
removed, the model FFV-1608 also provides
ventilation.

The model FFV-1 608 Freedom Flood Vent” is designed to
be installed into walls or overhead doors of existing or new
construction. Installation of the vent must be in accordance
with the manufacturer’s instructions, the applicable code,
and this report. In order to comply with the engineered
opening design principle noted in Sections 2.7.2.2 and
2.7.3 of ASCE/ SEI 24-14 (2018 and 2015 BC and IRC)
[Section 2.6.2.2 of ASCEI SEI 24-05 (2012, 2009, 2006
IBC and IRC)], the Freedom Flood Vent” must be installed
as follows:

is used to
enclosures
the cover
natural air

3.0 DESCRIPTION
3.1 General:
The model FFV-1608 Freedom Flood Vent”' is an
engineered mechanically operated in-wall flood vent (FV)
that automatically allows floodwater to enter an enclosed
area and exit. The FV is comprised of a polycarbonate
frame with mounting flange and a polycarbonate
horizontally pivoting door. When subjected to rising water,
the model FFV-1608 Freedom Flood Vent” door is
activated and pivots to allow water and debris to flow in
either direction to equalize hydrostatic pressure from one
side of the enclosure to the other. The FV features a
removable polycarbonate cover. The FV door will activate
and pivot when subjected to rising water with or without the
polycarbonate cover installed.

• Below the base flood elevation.
• With the bottom of the vent located a maximum of
12 inches (305.4 mm) above the higher of the final
interior grade or floor and the finished exterior grade
immediately under each opening.
5.0 CONDITIONS OF USE
The Freedom Flood Vent” described in this report
complies with, or is a suitable alternative to what is
specified in, those codes listed in Section 1.0 of this report,
subject to the following conditions:
5.1 The model FFV-1 608 Freedom Flood Vent”' unit must
be installed in accordance with this report, the
applicable code and the manufacturer’s published
installation instructions. In the event of a conflict, the
instructions in this report shall govern.
5.2 The model FFV-1608 Freedom Flood Vent”' unit must
not be used in place of “breakaway walls” in coastal
high hazard areas, but are permitted for use in
conjunction with breakaway walls in other areas.

ICC-ES Evaluation Reports are not to be construed as representing aesthetics or any other attributes not specifically addressed, nor are they to be construed
as an endorsement of the subject of the report or a recommendation for its use. There is no warranty by ICC Evaluation Service, LLC, express or implied as
to ony finding or other matter in this report, or as to any product covered by the report
Copyright © 2020 ICC Evaluation Service, LLC. All rights reserved.
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Most Widely Accepted and Trusted

5.3 Use of the Freedom Flood Vent as under-floor space
ventilation is outside the scope of this report.
6.0 EVIDENCE SUBMITTED
Data in accordance with the ICC-ES Acceptance Criteria
for Mechanically Operated Flood Vents (AC364), dated
August 2015 (editorially revised October 2017).
7.0

IDENTIFICATION

Page 2 of 4
7.2 The report
following:

holder’s

contact

information

SMART PRODUCT INNOVATIONS, INC.
430 ANDBRO DRIVE, UNIT I
PITMAN, NEW JERSEY 08071
(800) 507-1527
www.freedomfloodvent.com
infofreedomfIoodvent.com

7.1 The Freedom Flood Vent” model recognized in this
report must be identified by a label bearing the
manufacturer’s name (Smart Product Innovations,
Inc.) and the evaluation report number (ESR-4332.).

TABLE 1—FREEDOM FLOOD VENT
MODEL NAME

MODEL NUMBER

Freedom Flood VentTM

FEy-i 608

For SI: 1 inch

=

MODEL SIZE
1 53/4W

X 8h/l6

COVERAGE (sq. ft.)

250

25.4 mm

FIGURE 1—MODEL FFV-1 608 FREEDOM FLOOD VENTIM: SHOWN WITH COVER REMOVED

FIGURE 2—MODEL FFV-1 608 FREEDOM FLOOD VENTTM: SHOWN WITH FLOOD DOOR PIVOTED OPEN

is

the

ICC-ES Evaluation Report

ESR-4332 CBC and CRC Supplement
Reissued March 2020
This report is subject to renewal March 2022.

www.icc-es.orq

I

(800) 423-6587

I

(562) 699-0543

A Subsidiary of the International Code Council®

DIVISION: 08 00 00—OPENINGS
Section: 08 95 43—Vents I Foundation Flood Vents
REPORT HOLDER:
SMART PRODUCT INNOVATIONS, INC.
EVALUATION SUBJECT:
FREEDOM FLOOD VENTTM AUTOMATIC FOUNDATION FLOOD VENT: MODEL FFV-1 608

1.0 REPORT PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Purpose:

The purpose of this evaluation report supplement is to indicate that the Freedom Flood Vent” Automatic Foundation Flood
Vent: Model FEy-I 608, recognized in ICC-ES master evaluation report ESR-4332, has also been evaluated for compliance
with codes noted below.
Applicable code edition(s):

• 2016 California Building Code (CBC)
• 2016 California Residential Code (CRC)
2.0 CONCLUSIONS
2.1

CBC:

The Freedom Flood Vent” Automatic Foundation Flood Vent: Model FFV-1608, described in Sections 2.0 through 7.0 of the
master evaluation report ESR-4332, complies with CBC Chapters 12, 16 and 16A, provided the design and installation are in
accordance with the 2015 International Building Code® (2015 IBC) provisions noted in the master report and the additional
requirements of 12, 16, and 16A, as applicable.
The product recognized in this supplement has not been evaluated under CBC Chapter 7A for use in the exterior design
and construction of new buildings located in any Fire Hazard Severity Zone within State Responsibility Areas or any
Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area.
2.2 CRC:

The Freedom Flood Vent”‘ Automatic Foundation Flood Vent: Model FFV-1608, described in Sections 2.0 through 7.0 of the
master evaluation report ESR-4332, complies with the 2016 CRC, provided the design and installation are in accordance
with the 2015 International Residential Code® (2015 IRC) provisions noted in the master report.
The product recognized in this supplement has not been evaluated under 2016 CRC Chapter R337, for use in the exterior
design and construction of new buildings located in any Fire Hazard Severity Zone within State Responsibility Areas or any
Wildiand-Urban Interface Fire Area.
The product recognized in this supplement has not been evaluated for compliance with the International Wildiand—Urban

Interface Code®.

This supplement expires concurrently with the evaluation report, reissued March 2020.

ICC-ES Evaluation Reports are not to be construed as representing aesthetics or any other attributes not specficall’ addressed, nor are they to be construed
as an endorsement of the subject ofthe report or a recommendation/or us use. There is no lvarrany by ICC Evaluation Service, LLC. express or implied, as
to any finding or other mailer in this report, or as to any produc covered by (he report.

Copyright © 2020 ICC Evaluation Service, LLC. All rights reserved.
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ICC-ES Evaluation Report

ESR-4332 FBC Supplement
Reissued March 2020
This report is subject to renewal March 2022.

www.icc-es.org

I

(800) 423-6587

I

(562) 699-0543

A Subsidiary of the International Code Council®

DIVISION: 08 00 00—OPENINGS
Section: 08 95 43—Vents I Foundation Flood Vents
REPORT HOLDER:
SMART PRODUCT INNOVATIONS, INC.
EVALUATION SUBJECT:
FREEDOM FLOOD VENTTM AUTOMATIC FOUNDATION FLOOD VENT: MODEL FFV-1 608
1.0

REPORT PURPOSE AND SCOPE

Purpose:
The purpose of this evaluation report supplement is to indicate that Freedom Flood Vent” Automatic Foundation Flood Vent:
Model FFV-1608, recognized in ICC-ES master evaluation report ESR-4332, has also been evaluated for compliance
with
the codes noted below.
Applicable code editions:
I

2017 Florida Building Code—Building

I

2017 Florida Building Code—Residential

2.0 CONCLUSIONS
The Freedom Flood VentTM Automatic Foundation Flood Vent: Model FFV-1608, described in Sections 2.0 through 7.0 of
the
master evaluation report ESR-4332, complies with the Florida Building Code—Building and the Florida Building Code—
Residential, provided the design and installation are in accordance with the International Building Code® (IBC) provisions
noted in the master report.
Use of the Freedom Flood Vent” Automatic Foundation Flood Vent: Model FFV-1608 has also been found to be in
compliance with the High-Velocity Hurricane Zone provisions of the Florida Building Code—Building and the Florida Building
Code-Residential.
For products falling under Florida Rule 9N-3, verification that the report holder’s quality assurance program is audited by a
quality assurance entity approved by the Florida Building Commission for the type of inspections being conducted
is the
responsibility of an approved validation entity (or the code official, when the report holder does not possess an approval
by
the Commission).

This supplement expires concurrently with the evaluation report, reissued March 2020.

ICC-ES Evaluation Reports are not to be construed as representing aesthetics or any other auributes not specifically addressed, nor are
they to be construed
as an endorsement ofthe subject of the report or a recommendation for its use. There is no warranty by ICC Evaluation Service, LLC, express or
implied, as
to any finding or other matter in this report, or as to any product covered by the report.
Copyright © 2020 ICC Evaluation Service, LLC. All rights reserved.
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Exhibit I

Exhibit J

Water Engineering Solutions, LLC
Deborah A. Fisher, P.E., CFM, CPESC
Water Resources Engineer
7972 W. 109th Avenue, Westminster,
CO 80021Phone: 303-919-1725 E-Mail:
civil265@hotmail.com

February 16, 2021
Revised October 15, 2021
Chris Cramer
Floodplain Administrator
2450 E Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
RE:

7 Random Road
Garage Replacement

Dear Mr. Cramer;
The owner of the property at 7 Random Road intends to replace the existing garage on his
property, which lies within the floodplain and partially within the floodway of
Blackmer/Quincy Gulch. The existing garage was constructed in the 1950’s and is in need
of replacement.

EXISTING GARAGE

Page 2

The proposed structure will be a pre-fabricated steel structure sided with rustic red steel wall
panels 25 feet by 44 feet, for a total of 1100 square feet. There will be a 12 foot wide roll-up
garage door facing south, as well as a side entry door measuring 30” by 70” and 6 windows
measuring 40” x 30” on the east (4) and north (2) facing façade. The doors and windows are
described here for information only. They are not needed for compliance with the flood
opening areas; nor do they jeopardize the building during a flood event. There will be no
insulation or wall materials that can absorb humidity, only galvanized or coated steel and
concrete floor. No plumbing or electrical wiring is planned. The building is solely for
storage of vehicles. The proposed structure will have 12-foot side-walls and a 4:12 roof pitch.
Total height of the building will be 16’-2” from the concrete slab. Additional flood vent openings
will be provided in the lower portion of the walls to meet the required area, depth and height for
structures below the Base Flood Elevation (BFE).
The proposed top of the foundation and concrete slab is at elevation 5409.0, slightly
above the existing terrain. The entire structure will be constructed of wet flood-proof
materials, as described above, that are not subject to damage from flooding.

PROPOSED GARAGE

Water Engineering Solutions, LLC
7972 W. 109th Ave., Westminster, CO 80021
phone: 303-919-1725 email: civil265@hotmail.com

Page 3

The current condition of Blackmer/Quincy Gulch is shown on the following photo. It is a
shallow ephemeral stream, meaning that it does not have water in it year around, with wellestablished turf grass that the owner mows frequently. No changes to the waterway are
proposed.

EXISTING STREAM BED

The

regulatory

floodplain

is

shown

on

the Federal Emergency Management

Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Panel 164 of 725, Map No.
08005C0164K, Revised, December 17, 2019, with the following revisions listed.

Water Engineering Solutions, LLC
7972 W. 109th Ave., Westminster, CO 80021
phone: 303-919-1725 email: civil265@hotmail.com

Page 4

Based on my review of the Flood Insurance Studies and updates, Letters of Map
Revision, ( LOMR)s and the current FIRM, it appears that the latest revisions for
mapping this area include the current existing conditions with the existing garage. The
proposed replacement garage is similar to the existing garage, slightly larger, and set
further away from the thalweg (flowline) of the stream.
The floodplain has been modeled in accordance with Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) requirements. The software that is currently the regulatory software with
which to perform floodplain modeling is the US Army Corps of Engineers Hydrologic
Engineering Center River Analysis System (HEC-RAS). Both existing and proposed
conditions were modeled and results indicate that the proposed structure will cause NO RISE
in the flood levels during the base flood discharge.
The certification letter from Advanced Water Resources Engineering included with this
submittal further explains the modeling conditions, and summarizes the results.

Water Engineering Solutions, LLC
7972 W. 109th Ave., Westminster, CO 80021
phone: 303-919-1725 email: civil265@hotmail.com
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A variance to construct the building in the proposed location, and from elevating the building
above the BFE, is being requested for the following reasons. The proposed structure is an
engineered pre-fabricated steel building anchored to a poured in place concrete foundation,
capable of withstanding the effects of the depth of the expected major flood. Adding fill to
raise the proposed building to one foot above the BFE would require additional fill to be
brought into the site, additional disturbance of the floodway and floodplain, and a decrease
in flood storage, with no improvement to the protection of the building. Therefore, it has been
determined through hydraulic analysis that to minimize the impact to the floodplain, the best
design is for the floor of the structure to be constructed at elevation 5409.0, which is 1.4 feet
below the BFE of 5410.4. To alleviate hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and buoyancy,
five flood vent openings in the walls of the structure, each measuring 16” x 8”, will be
installed at the floor level of the garage. The HEC-RAS model evaluation indicates that the
area proposed for the garage, albeit designated within a floodway, is actually an area of
ineffective flow, which is an area of the cross section that is not conveying flow downstream.
Therefore, any structure built in this area will not affect 100-year peak flow elevations. It is
essentially considered a storage area, much like a pond.
The structural design, specifications and plans have been prepared by the manufacturer of
the building, and are stamped and signed by their engineer. The flood vent openings will be
added during the on-site construction, after delivery of the pre-fabricated building by the
manufacturer. This requirement will be addressed in the application for the building permit.
This proposed structure is allowable under FEMA regulations, and meets all of the required
criteria, as outlined in the NFIP Accessory Structures Floodplain Fact Sheet No. 7, from
which the following excerpt is shown:
Other Accessory Structures
In some cases, low-cost accessory buildings may be wet flood proofed instead of
meeting the requirements for elevation or dry floodproofing of buildings. These
structures could include detached garages, storage sheds, small boathouses, and
pole barns. Some municipalities include provisions in their floodplain management
laws allowing non-elevated/non-dry floodproofed accessory structures; in other
municipalities a variance is required (see Floodplain Facts #13: Floodplain
Variances). Criteria for determining whether an accessory structure can be sufficiently
protected using wet-floodproofing techniques include:

•

The building must be used only for parking of vehicles or storage of
tools, materials, andequipment;

•

The structure shall not be designed or used for human habitation;

•

The accessory structure represents a minimal investment of less than
10% of the value of the property;

Water Engineering Solutions, LLC
7972 W. 109th Ave., Westminster, CO 80021
phone: 303-919-1725 email: civil265@hotmail.com

Exhibit K

Colorado

garage structure at 7 Random Road in Cherry Hills Village, CO

Lower Blackmer Gulch
the City of Cherry Hills Village
September 4, 2020

6-22-2021

Principal Engineer

6-22-2021

AWARE, LLC
900 Forest St.
Denver, CO 80220

Exhibit L

April 7, 2022
Ethen Westbrook
City of Cherry Hills Village
2450 E. Quincy Ave
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
RE:

Conformance Letter for 7 Random Road Floodplain Variance

Dear Ethen,
Kimley-Horn has completed our review of the final submittal of the Floodplain Variance modeling for the
proposed improvements at 7 Random Road. Based on the applicant’s submittal and response to our
review comments the previously noted plans and reports are found to be in general conformance with the
City code.
Feel free to reach out to us with any questions and thank you for the opportunity to serve Cherry Hills
Village.
Thank you,
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Brice Hammersland, P.E.
Project Engineer

kimley-horn.com

Shelby Madrid, P.E.
Project Engineer

4582 South Ulster Street, Suite 1500, Denver, CO 80237

303 228 2300

Exhibit M

Minutes of the
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
Held on Tuesday, May 10, 2022, at 5:00 p.m.
Chair Lucas called the meeting to order at 5:10 p.m.
ROLL CALL
Present at the meeting were the following Planning and Zoning Commissioners: Chair Bill
Lucas, Vice Chair Earl Hoellen, Commissioner Doris Kaplan, Commissioner Britta Miles, and
Commissioner Jennifer Miller.
Absent from the meeting were the following Planning and Zoning Commissioners: Mike
LaMair, and David Wyman.

Present at the meeting were the following staff members: Evin King, Assistant City Attorney,
Will Wilhelm, City Engineer, Paul Workman, Planning Manager, and Ethen Westbrook,
Community Development Clerk.
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD
None
CONSENT AGENDA
Chair Lucas continued the approval of the minutes from the consent agenda item to the June 14,
2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.
NEW BUSINESS
a. Floodplain Variance for a New Accessory Structure at 7 Random Road
Planning Manager Paul Workman gave a presentation regarding the proposed floodplain
variance for a new accessory structure at 7 Random Rd. Mr. Workman provided
information on floodplain definitions, municipal code criteria, applicant analysis of the
code criteria, staff analysis of the code criteria and staff recommendation of approval of
the floodplain variance request.
Commissioner Kaplan asked how the floodplain variance would affect the city and its
taxpayers.
Mr. Workman explained that with no rise analysis and ensuring the construction meets
approved plans, there should be no additional cost for the city or its taxpayers.

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
May 10, 2022
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Vice Chair Hoellen stated a floodplain variance should only be approved in extreme
measure cases with the existing lot and structures.
Mr. Workman agreed and stated the city is recommending approval due to the entire
property being within the floodplain and the chosen location of the new accessory
structure having the least amount of impact on the floodplain as possible.
Vice Chair Hoellen stated the new accessory structure is by a ditch.
Mr. Workman explained if the new accessory structure was located elsewhere on the lot,
it would create more disturbance within the floodplain.
Vice Chair Hoellen wanted it to be clear for the record that the best location of the new
accessory structure should not be due to aesthetics or cost. He explained that the
floodplain variance request should account for extraordinary measure to ensure the best
alternative possible with the minimal impact request.
Mr. Workman explained the size of the building with modern day cars show the applicant
asking for a minimal impact request.
Vice Chair Hoellen stated his belief for importance of including other hazardous
materials in the recommended motion.
Commissioner Miles asked if the conditions mentioned in the motion will have to be met
in the future.
Mr. Workman stated the conditions run with the property and a resolution will be
completed to state the conditions with the variance request if approved.
Commissioner Kaplan asked what enforcement would look like if conditions were not
met.
Mr. Workman stated the city would receive a phone complaint stating a condition not
being met. He explained code enforcement would then investigate the complaint with a
site visit and assess any applicable citations.
Chair Lucas asked why no electrical for the accessory structure.
Mr. Workman stated the applicant would explain the reasoning for no electrical with their
presentation.
Chair Lucas asked if other properties on Random Road have had similar cases.
Mr. Workman stated the structures along Random Road are original construction and will
be subject to floodplain regulations.

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
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Chair Lucas asked if the floodplain could change over time.
Mr. Workman stated there is a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) process to change the
floodplain.
City Engineer Wilhelm stated FEMA also updates the floodplain maps with new data
every ten years.
Chair Lucas asked if there is a rendering of the structure.
Mr. Workman explained he will let the applicant include any renderings in their
presentation but also stated the applicant is required to sign an HOA acknowledgement to
verify any HOA regulations will be followed.
Commissioner Miller asked if the commission could hear from the applicant regarding
the steel framing of the structure.
City Engineer Wilhelm stated there is a rendering of the structure included in the packet
materials.
Chair Lucas recalled a past floodplain variance case regarding a pool and asked staff if
they knew why the floodplain variance request was denied.
Vice Chair Hoellen stated City Council denied the request due to there being other
possible locations for the pool that were not in the floodplain.
Mr. Workman explained the code criteria and the subjective analysis that occurs. He
stated the subject property is entirely located within the floodplain.
Vice Chair Hoellen stated the floodplain should not be disturbed if there are other
alternatives.
Mr. Workman the code criteria sets a high bar for an applicant to obtain approval
regarding a floodplain variance.
Fredrik Klaveness, property owner of 7 Random Road, gave a presentation explaining no
electrical was proposed to keep the impact of any work minimal, the structure does not
require electrical work, the architecture will match the existing home, the design is meant
to be simple, and the steel framing is due to the floodplain rather than using wood.
Chair Lucas asked for any public comment regarding the floodplain variance request.
No public comment occurred.
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Vice Chair Hoellen stated the importance of the extraordinary measures taken by the
applicant to show the least amount of disturbance with the floodplain and the minimal
impact of the request.
Chair Lucas stated a majority of the neighborhood is in the floodplain.
Vice Chair Hoellen made a motion to recommend to City Council approval of the request for a
floodplain variance to replace the existing garage at 7 Random Road with a new garage as set
forth in the application based upon the finding that the approval criteria have been met, as set
forth in the staff report and the evidence presented, subject to the following conditions:
1. Prior to the final inspection for the proposed building the applicant shall provide the City
with “as built” drawings, including an “Elevation Certificate,” to ensure that construction of
the garage was consistent with the approved plans.
2. The applicant and subsequent owners of the subject property may not install any electrical,
heating, ventilation, plumbing, or air conditioning equipment, interior walls, insulation, or other
service facilities without prior written approval of the City and proof from the applicant that they
have been designed and located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the
components during conditions of flooding.
3. There shall be no storage of chemicals, including but not limited to; oil, gas, fertilizer, and
anti-freeze, or other hazardous materials at or below two (2) feet from the proposed concrete slab
of the garage.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller.

HOELLEN
KAPLAN
LAMAIR
LUCAS
MILES
MILLER
WYMAN
TOTAL

AYES
X
X
ABSENT
X
X
X
ABSENT
5

NAYS

ABSENT

ABSENT
0

The motion passed.
REPORTS
a. Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission
None
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b. City Staff
Planning Manager Paul Workman stated the O-1 zone district accessory structure setback
item that was previously discussed with the Planning and Zoning Commission, was
continued to the June 7, 2022, City Council meeting. Mr. Workman reported the
Citizen’s Advisory Task Force (CAT) will be meeting May 11, 2022. He also explained
the schedule of the Master Plan project and the goal to adopt the Master Plan fall of 2022.
c. City Attorney
None

ADJOURNMENT
Chari Lucas adjourned the meeting at 6:08 p.m.

______________________________________
Bill Lucas, Chair

___________________________________________
Ethen Westbrook, Community Development Clerk

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
May 10, 2022
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Exhibit N
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

bruce scott
Paul Workman; Fredrik Klaveness
Public Hearing: 7 Random Road, May 10, 2022
Thursday, May 5, 2022 10:05:54 AM
Outlook-dxv1gskj.png

Mr. Workman: I am the owner of 12 Random Road but I am unable to attend the above
hearing. Please be advised I strongly support Mr. Klaveness' replacement of his existing
garage. I believe I can see three other garage/barns from my patio all of which are used for
the same purpose Mr. Klavness requires. Please advise if you need anything further from
me. Bruce Scott

Bruce Scott
CEO

1455 S. Lipan Street, Denver, CO 80223

O 303.477.8300   |   M 303.888.6001
centricelevator.com

ARIZONA   |   COLORADO   |   HAWAII   |   OREGON

From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Chris Wright
Paul Workman
Liz Wright
Comments to Floodplain Variance Application - 7 Random Road
Thursday, May 12, 2022 9:37:24 PM

Paul:
My wife, Liz, and I live at 19 Random Road. We are fully supportive of the Klaveness’s plan to replace their
garage. They are kind, thoughtful neighbors and have a plan that we believe will enhance the already charming
nature of Random Road. We highly recommend prompt approval of their plans. Thanks so much for your work and
consideration of our input. Kind regards,
Chris
Sent from my iPad

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Zack Holland
Paul Workman
Comments to Floodplain Variance Application - 7 Random Road
Friday, May 13, 2022 8:53:12 AM

Mr Workman,
I am Fredrik's direct neighbor to the west and the neighbor most impacted by this proposed
structure. I'm in full support of this project moving ahead.
Zack Holland
5 Random Road

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 11c(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

PAUL WORKMAN, PLANNING MANAGER

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MONTH END REPORT FOR
MAY 2022
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

BUILDING PERMITS SUMMARY:
Total Permits
Total Revenue
New Home Permits
New Home Revenue
Remodel/Addition Permits
Remodel/Addition Revenue

May 2022
79
$211,909
3
$94,612
16
$95,496

YTD 2022
312
$584,882
8
$270,831
49
$209,102

YTD 2021
350
$777,359
3
$115,366
59
$477,254

YTD % Change
-11%
-25%
167%
135%
-17%
-56%

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
•
On May 10, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission heard a request for a floodplain variance at 7
Random Road. At the end of the hearing, the Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval
of the request, subject to conditions.
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS:
•
There was no Board of Adjustment and Appeals meeting in May due to a lack of cases.
MASTER PLAN CITIZENS ADVISORY TASKFORCE (CAT)
•
The fifth CAT meeting was held on May 11, 2022. At this meeting, the CAT discussed the results of
the second round of public input, some draft Goals, and some draft Actions for the Community
Character, Land Use, and the Parks, Trails, and Open Space chapters.
ATTACHMENTS:
Exhibit A: Planning Project Activity List
Exhibit B: Year-to-Date Permit Activity Graphs
Exhibit C: Permit Summary Table
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EXHIBIT A

Planning Project Activity List

Community Development Department
Report Date: June 2, 2022

City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are advised to avoid discussing quasi-judicial land use
matters with any person outside of the public hearing process. The restriction on discussion of quasi-judicial
matters is generally considered to take effect when a formal application has been filed with the City. The following
list includes only those matters for which the City has received a formal application. City Council and Planning and
Zoning Commission Members are nevertheless advised to use caution in discussing any land use matter that may
become quasi-judicial, even before the filing of a formal application.

Quasi-Judicial Cases
Applicant

Address

Description
Floodplain Variance for an existing R-3
lot owned by Cherry Hills Country Club to
modify floodplain boundaries to allow
for the construction of a single-family
residence.
A request to relocate the cell tower from
John Meade Park to the city owned
parcel at the northwest quadrant of the
intersection of University Blvd and
Quincy Ave.

PTRC
Review

P&Z Review

Council Review

N/A

TBD

TBD

N/A

TBD

TBD

Joe Jundt

3727 S. Ogden
St.

Crown Castle

2301 East
Quincy Avenue

Fredrik Klaveness

7 Random Rd

A request for a Floodplain Variance to
build an accessory structure in the
floodplain.

N/A

May 10,
2022

June 21, 2022

Rene and Dean
Sheikh

4301 S. High St

Floodplain Variance to allow for home
construction.

N/A

TBD

TBD

Cherry Hills Country
Club

1, 3, and 5
Fairway Ct

Rezone three lots from R-3 to O-1.

N/A

TBD

TBD

Cherry Hills Country
Club

4125 S.
University Blvd

Major Special Event Permit for the 2023
US Amateur Open.

N/A

TBD

TBD

BRAVE Church

SWC of
Hampden and
Monroe

Rezone the existing parking lot from R-4
to R-1 to allow for the continued use of
the parking lot.

N/A

TBD

TBD

Planning Project Activity List

Community Development Department

Non Quasi-Judicial Cases and Ordinance Amendments
Applicant

Address

Description

Cherry Hills
Park
Subdivision
4545 S.
University Blvd

Cherry Hills Country
Club

4125 S.
University Blvd

Arend Accola and
Walter Kelly

950 and 1000
E. Stanford Ave
Address

Proposed modifications to their overall
drainage plans to accommodate more
storm runoff
Administrative Site Plan Amendment for
two shade structures
Administrative Site Plan Amendment for
a 200 square foot addition on the north
side of the clubhouse.
Move a shared property line to align
with an existing fence.
Description

N/A

N/A

Cherry Hills Park HOA
St. Mary’s Academy

N/A

PTRC
Review

P&Z Review

Council Review

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
BOAA Review
N/A

TOTAL PERMITS
Year to Date through May
10 Year COMPARISON

1

Exhibit B

NEW RESIDENCES
Year to Date through May
10 YEAR COMPARISON

2

ADDITIONS & REMODELS
Year to Date through May
10 YEAR COMPARISON

3

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE BUILDING DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT
May 1 - 31, 2022
1. Residences
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
2. Addition & Remodels
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
3. Accessory & Recreational Structures
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
4. Other Buildings, Structures, Misc.
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
5. Electrical
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Arapahoe County Use Tax
Totals
Number Issued
Project Valuation
Building Permit Fee
Reinspection/ Investigation Fee
Plan Review Fee
Service Expansion Fee
Total Fees Collected by City

2022 YTD

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

MAY

8
1
$18,888,720.00 $3,500,000.00
$189,487.20
$35,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$25,427.50
$2,402.50
$55,914.60
$9,079.40
$23,610.90
$4,375.00

2
$5,869,360.00
$58,693.60
$0.00
$9,640.00
$16,505.90
$7,336.70

1
$3,169,360.00
$31,693.60
$0.00
$2,850.00
$7,852.50
$3,961.70

1
$250,000.00
$2,500.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$312.50

3
$6,100,000.00
$61,600.00
$0.00
$10,535.00
$22,476.80
$7,625.00

49
12
$18,485,017.10 $1,398,504.10
$184,634.42
$14,005.04
$0.00
$0.00
$11,450.00
$960.00
$13,036.70
$997.90
$23,105.41
$1,748.14

9
$2,954,575.00
$29,290.00
$0.00
$1,560.00
$762.80
$3,693.22

6
$5,209,319.00
$52,113.19
$0.00
$3,520.00
$1,755.00
$6,511.65

6
$781,881.00
$7,818.81
$0.00
$800.00
$42.30
$977.35

16
$8,140,738.00
$81,407.38
$0.00
$4,610.00
$9,478.70
$10,175.05

2
$410,000.00
$4,100.00
$0.00
$960.00
$1,299.60
$512.50

6
$593,795.00
$5,937.95
$0.00
$560.00
$1,457.90
$742.25

3
$358,000.00
$3,580.00
$0.00
$1,920.00
$1,464.50
$447.50

3
$256,300.00
$2,563.00
$0.00
$560.00
$849.40
$320.38

29
661,009
6,252
$0.00
$1,340.00
$345.60
$747.21

27
$583,269.41
$5,774.91
$0.00
$1,360.00
$0.00
$604.03

35
$870,875.83
$8,716.76
$0.00
$2,390.00
$0.00
$1,037.12

23
$1,243,190.00
$5,961.87
$0.00
$2,150.00
$0.00
$0.00

20
$429,725.00
$8,647.66
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

22
$447,801.00
$5,721.54
$0.00
$1,000.00
$0.00
$0.00

16
$1,808,095.00
$18,080.95
$0.00
$4,320.00
$5,635.80
$2,260.13

2
$190,000.00
$1,900.00
$0.00
$320.00
$564.40
$237.50

138
$3,533,462.11
$33,493.60
$0.00
$7,890.00
$449.35
$4,032.53

28
$773,212.91
$7,732.13
$0.00
$2,120.00
$0.00
$941.54

101
$2,959,803.00
$27,344.80
$0.00
$7,717.42
$0.00
$0.00

21
$433,650.00
$6,671.44
$0.00
$800.00
$0.00
$0.00

$
$
$
$

19
645,095 $
5,018 $
$0.00
680
$103.75
703
15
$405,437.00
$342.29
$0.00
$3,767.42
$0.00
$0.00

312
64
47
65
57
79
$45,675,097.21 $6,295,367.01 $10,284,466.73 $10,876,673.23 $2,402,875.41 $15,815,714.83
$453,040.97
$65,308.61
$97,443.60
$101,958.70
$28,321.38
$160,008.68
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$56,804.92
$6,602.50
$16,607.42
$10,420.00
$4,080.00
$19,095.00
$75,036.45
$10,641.70
$18,672.05
$11,411.00
$1,506.80
$32,804.90
$584,882.34
$82,552.81
$132,723.07
$123,789.70
$33,908.18
$211,908.58
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CITY OF CHEY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoDo
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: Ilc(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JASON LYONS, CHIEF

SUBJECT: POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTH END REPORT FOR MAY 2022
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

The following is an update for the Police Department:
The motorcycle enforcement team successfully completed their annual rider recertification
training and will begin their summer enforcement activity.
Chief Lyons and Detective Firko attended the Charlou Homeowner’s Association annual
meeting. Detective Firko presented an update on criminal activity occurring in Cherry Hills
Village and provided tips for crime prevention. Chief Lyons introduced himself and fielded
questions from the group.
Officers increased their presence at all three schools in response to the tragedy in Uvalde, Texas.
The department received numerous e-mails and calls from parents who expressed their
appreciation for our extra attention at the schools.

Investigations Case Summary:
There were 7 Vehicle Trespass reports for the month of May:
-

In the first, the victim reported someone entered her automobile by shattering a rear
window and took her purse. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
In the second, the victim reported someone entered her unlocked automobile and stole her
—

-

purse. This case is inactive
-

—

no additional investigative leads.

In the third, the victim reported someone entered his unlocked truck and stole tools while

he was working at a construction site. This case is inactive
leads.
-

—

no additional investigative

In the fourth, the victim reported someone entered their unlocked automobile and took
$5. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
In the fifth, the victim reported someone stole his electronic tablet and wallet from his
—

-

unlocked work truck. This case is inactive
Page 1 of 2

—

no additional investigative leads.

CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO

-

In the sixth, the victim reported someone stole his cell phone from an unlocked work
truck. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
In the seventh, the victim reported someone entered his unlocked automobile and stole
fishing gear. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
—

-

—

There was 1 Fraud report for the month of May:
The victim reported someone altered a check she placed in a USPS mailbox in Denver.
This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
-

—

There were 3 Motor Vehicle Theft reports for the month of May:
In the first, the victim reported someone stole an automobile that was parked in his
driveway. The vehicle was unlocked with the keys left inside the car. This case active
and under investigation.
In the second, the victim reported his truck was stolen while parked at a construction site
where he was working. This case is active and under investigation.
In the third, the victim reported someone stole his truck from a construction site where he
was working. The truck was unlocked, and the keys were left inside the vehicle.
Englewood PD recovered the truck in their city shortly after the crime occurred and the
vehicle was returned to the owner. This case is inactive no additional investigative
leads.
-

-

-

—

There were 4 Theft reports for the month of May:
In the first, the victim reported someone stole his utility trailer from a home that is being
renovated. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
In the second, a contractor reported building material was stolen from a home under
construction. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
In the third, the victim reported her purse was taken from a storage closet at her place of
employment. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
In the fourth, the victim reported someone stole the rear license plate on her automobile
while parked at a trailhead. This case is inactive no additional investigative leads.
-

—

-

—

-

—

-

—

There was 1 Burglary report for the month of May:
The victim reported someone entered his residence while he was on vacation. Entry was
made by breaking the glass on a second story balcony door. Items of jewelry were
reported stolen in this incident. This case active and under investigation.
-

There was 1 Assault report for the month of May:
A security supervisor at a private school reported an assault occurred at an after-prom
party at a residence. This case active and under investigation.
-

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Police Department Monthly Activity and Graphs
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 11c(i)

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

LINDSEY WHITE, MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK

SUBJECT: MUNICIPAL COURT MONTH END REPORT FOR MAY 2022
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

ISSUE
Municipal Court Statistics
Monthly Totals
Citations filed
Court appearances/guilty to original
Plea by mail letters sent
Revenue

2021
260
112
101
$19,909

2022
214
159
99
$18,898

Difference
-18%
42%
-2%
-$1,012

BUDGET IMPACT STATEMENT
Through May 2022 the Municipal Court has collected 31% of the total budgeted revenue
amount.
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Municipal Court Monthly Activity and Graphs
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EXHIBIT A

May 2022

Personnel Summary

Commendations:
Officer:
Received From:
Details:

Damian Kissler
Citizen
Officer Kissler received a thank you letter from a citizen who had a flat tire.
Officer Kissler helped the citizen and waited for her to get back on the road.
She thanked Officer Kissler for making her feel safe. Great job!

CHVPD Officers
Received From: Citizens
Details:
Due to recent events, the police department increased patrols at all schools for
several days. As a result, the department received numerous phone calls and
thank you letters regarding the extra police presence. Thanks to all the officers
who work hard to keep the schools a safe place. Great job!

CHERRY HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS

YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE
2022
2021
May 2022
TRAFFIC ACCIDENT

PERCENT
CHANGE

13

84

63

33%

263

863

1024

-16%

PARKING TICKETS

6

41

18

128%

TRAFFIC WARNINGS

63

307

511

-40%

DUI ARRESTS

1

19

4

375%

DUS ARRESTS

0

0

0

100%

#CRIMEREPORTS

17

81

74

9%

#ALARMS

40

198

156

27%

# ARRESTS (INCLUDES DUIS & DUS’s)

3

26

6

333%

CITIZEN ASSISTS

9

31

29

7%

ASSISTTOOTHERAGENCY

18

60

54

11%

1577

8123

10917

-26%

CRIME PREVENTION NOTICES

22

75

108

-31%

FIELD INTERVIEW CARDS

4

6

3

100%

ALL CITATIONS

PROPERTY CHECKS (HW&BLDG)
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Cherry Hills Village
Code Enforcement Statistics
May 2022
Code Enforcement Issues

Month

YTD

On View Violations/Inpections

21

59

Requests for Service

15

37

SightngIe Violations

0

0

Construction Site Violations

10

23

Permit Violations

5

8

4
0
1
0
0
2
3
4
18
17
7
0
4
18

4
1
1
3
0
2
5
8
45
47
13
1
15
45

Stop Work Orders Served
Fence Violations
Weed Violations
Trash, Debris and Junk
Trees/Bushes Violations
Zoning Violations
Right of
Violations
RoIl-offs/Port-a-let Violations
Violations
-

Summons Issued
Notice of Violations
Misc. Code Violations

Year To Date
a On View
Violations/lnsp
ections

a Requests for
Service

Year to Date

Various Code
Violations

24%
• Right of Way &
Site Triangle
Violations

4%—

• Construction
Violations

Year to Date
1%
24%

I Warning &
Personal
Contacts
• Notice of
Violations
• Summons
Issued

Cherry Hills Village
Animal Control Statistics
May 2022
Animal Control Issues
Educational Contacts
Control of Dogs
Barking Dogs
Aggressive Dogs
Wildlife Complaints
Written Warnings
Summons Issued

1

I

Month
30
15
2
1
6
18
0
0

YTD
109
42
9
2
45
93
0
0

Year to Date
a Verbal
Warnings

a Written
Warnings
aSummons
Issued

Year to Date
a Educational
Contacts
I Wildlife
Complaints

Year to Date
17%
‘—

a Control of
Dogs
Barking Dogs
S Aggressive
Dogs

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

COLORADO

City Hall
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: 11c(i)

MEMORANDUM
TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

SUBJECT: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT MONTH END REPORT FOR MAY 2022
DATE:

JUNE 21, 2022

The streets crew worked on the following projects in May:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Completed gravel road maintenance on Parkway Drive, Cherry Lane Drive, Fairfax
Street, Lynn Road, Sterling Avenue and Mansfield Avenue using 450 gallons of mag
chloride, 650 gallons of water and 4 tons of material was added.
Inspected City drainage system and cleaned culverts
Performed sweeping operations throughout City using 2,000 gallons of water and
removed 50 tons of debris
Responded to late spring snow event with heavy tree damage
Worked the City’s annual Shredding Event
Prepared High Street for paving project:
- Removed 150 tons of rock, roadbase and dirt
- Removed 5 tons of asphalt
- Added 20 tons of road base

The parks crew worked on the following projects in May:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Worked on irrigation repairs
Performed mowing operations
Worked on flowerbed renovation and planting
Completed tree and flowerbed mulching
Performed entry feature cleanup
Planted trees and performed tree maintenance including pruning, branch removal, stump
grinding and watering
Performed trail sweeping and trail maintenance
City wide trash pick up
Performed maintenance work at Quincy Farm and in all City Parks and open space
Responded to snowstorm that caused several downed branches and trees Citywide.
1

The City issued 19 right-of-way permits in May bringing the total number of permits issued this
year to 82.
The 2022 Chipseal Construction Project is scheduled to begin the week of June 20th.
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: May 2022 Public Works Logs and Right-of-Way Monthly Report
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Exhibit A

MAY 2022 PARKS RECORD LOG SHEET

Week 18
ad Administrative Office Work
bm Building Maintenance
cn Concrete
cp Overseeing contractor project
cr Crackseal
fn Fence repairs
ft Fertilizing Trees
gm Gen. Maint to trails, parks, ROW
gps GPS and Mapping
hl-d Loads to dump
hI-po Materials to shop
hl-r Loads to recycle shop
hi-s Loads to shop
r Irrigation repairs
In Landscape Repairs
Misc Miscellaneous
mw-p Mowing Parks
mw-e Mowing entry features
mw-r Mowing rights of ways
mw-t Mowing Trails
ol Planting
pm Preventative maint/repair on equip
oo Purchase materials all operations
se Special Events
sg Sign repair
shp Shop Work
sn-Snow
spw-Spray Weeds
sw-t Sweeping trails
tr Training & Conf/including safety
ts Trash both cans and loose trash
tt Trimming trees & maint & wrapping
wa Watering
wd-m Weed cutting mains
wd-p Weed cutting parks
wd-r Weed cutting rights of ways
wd-t Weed cutting trails
pto Paid Time Off
hol Holiday Pay
to-c Time off comp
to-w Time off for workers comp

Week 19
9

-

Week 20 Week 21 Week
10
12

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

60

25

34

-

-

-

-

-

10

-

25

-

-

20

-

-

-

31
20
38
10

10
10
35
20

-

50

-

40

-

-

-

-

-

63

-

10

-

-

-

120

92

-

52

-

10

-

-

-

-

37

39

71

240
240
MATERIALS

273

250

40

-

-

-

TOTAL HOURS
mu Mulch
Is Top soil
sr-r Split rail Rails
sr-p Split rail Posts
lb Tree branches
Sod
ms Misc materials
rb Road Base
Bollards
Rock
Construction Materials
Clippings
Trash
Planters Mix
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

TOTALS
31
0
0
0
0
0
0
1 19
0
0
0
0
0
35
0
61
30
73
30
0
90
0
0
0
0
0
63
0
0
10
0
212
0
52
10
0
0
187
0
0
0
0
1003

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

_____

MAY 2022 STREETS RECORD LOG SHEET

Week 19

Week 18
ad Administrative Office Work
as Asphalt patching operations
bm Building Maintenance
cn Concrete repairs
cp Overseeing contractor operations
cr Sealing Operation
dr Drainage Work
em Equipment Maintenance
gm General Maintenance
gr Grounds Maintenance
gv Gravel road maintenance
hl-d Loads to dump
hi-po Materials hauled to shop
hI-r Loads to recycle plant
hi-s Loads to shop
ir Irrigation repairs
In Landscape Repairs
ms Material Stockpiling
Misc
oc-OnCall
pm Preventative Maintenance
P0 Purchasing materials
pt Painting Street
sg-SignWork
sh Shouldering Work
shp Shop Maintenance
sn Snow removal operations
sp Specal Event
sw Sweeper operations & cleanup
tp Thermo Plastic
tr Training
tr-pl Plow Training
tr-sw Sweeper Training
tr-sa Safety Training
tr-he Heavy Equipment Training
wo Work Order
tt-TreeTrimming
pto Paid time off
Hol Holiday
TOTALS

6

-

-

Week 20

Week 21

8
80

-

-

10

-

-

20
10

-

-

-

20
8

-

-

93

12

2

32

210

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

39

-

40

-

30
12

-

-

21

-

15

30

-

5

-

46

-

-

-

-

5

-

-

20

50

195

222

-

as- Asphalt
rb Road base
cm Cold Mix
cn Concrete (demo)
cn Concrete (laid)
cr-CrackSeal
ts Topsoil
tb-Tree Branches
ss Salt/Sand
is Ice Slicer
ms Misc.
sw Sweepings
tp Thermo Plastic
Rock/Ditch Dirt
Water
Mag Chloride
Dump
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

197
MATER IALS
tons
tons
bags
tons
yards
Bags
yards
tons
tons
tons
loads
Tons
Boxes
tons
gal
gal
tons

210

4

30
900

120

Week

TOTALS
14
80
0
0
10
0
20
30
8
0
315
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
73
0
70
12
0
66
0
51
0
0
0
0
5
0
70
0
824
0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
150
900
0
0

2022 RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMITS
MONTHLY REPORT
JANUARY 2022
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

5

MAJOR
LAN DSCAPE

JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

6

TOTAL
PER M ITS
11

FEBRUARY 20 2
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

8

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY
1

1

PARKS!
TRAILS
5

1

TOTAL
PERMITS
16

MARCH 2022
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

14

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY
4

2

TOTAL
PER M ITS
20

APRIL 2022
UTILITY
DRIVEWAY
WORK INSTALL/REPAIR
8
3

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
OCCUPANCY
4

TRAILS

MAi OR
LAN DSCAPE

JOBS

1

TOTAL
PERMITS
16

MAY 2022
UTILITY
WORK
7

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

4

OCCUPANCY
4

PARKS!
TRAILS

LAN DSCAPE

PARKS!
TRAILS

LAN DSCAPE

PARKS!
TRAILS

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
19

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS

4
JUNE 2022

UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

I

JULY 2022
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

0

AUGUST 2022
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

SEPTEMBER 2( ) 22
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

OCTOBER 2022
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

NOVEMBER 2( ); 22
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

TOTAL
PER M ITS
0

DECEMBER 2022
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

PARKS!
TRAILS

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

2022 YEAR END
TOTALS
UTILITY
WORK
42

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR
8

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD
13

OCCUPANCY
18

PARKS/
TRAILS

MAJOR
JOBS

LANDSCAPE
1

0

TOTAL
PERMITS
82
0

